
Members of the public are welcome to view this meeting and receive information 
about it.   
 

North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the 
information you need.  We are able to provide our documents in alternative 
formats including Braille, audiotape, large print and alternative languages.   
 

For further information please call 0191 643 5359. 
 

 
 

 

Planning 
Committee 

 
20 April 2021 
 
To be held on Tuesday, 27 April 2021 commencing at 10.00 am. 
This meeting will be conducted using video conferencing technology and streamed live 
on the Council's YouTube channel.  
 
Agenda 

Item 
 

 Page 
 

1.   Apologies for absence 
 
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting. 
 

 

2.   Appointment of substitutes 
 
To be informed of the appointment of any substitute members for the 
meeting. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable 
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that 
interest. 
 
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the requirement 
to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have 
been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the 
agenda. 
 

 

4.   Minutes 
 
To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting held on 16 March 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 

5 - 8 

Public Document Pack



Agenda 
Item 

 

 Page 

 

 

5.   Planning Officer Reports 
 
To receive the attached guidance to members in determining planning 
applications and to give consideration to the planning applications listed 
in the following agenda items. 
 
 

9 - 14 

6.   21/00029/FUL, Unicorn House, Stephenson Street, North Shields 
 
To consider a full planning application from North Tyneside Council for 
the creation of 28 units (Use Class C3) comprising of 22 town houses 
and 6 apartments, together with vehicle parking and associated works. 
 
 

15 - 48 

7.   20/01741/FUL, Plot 11, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park 
 
To consider a full planning application from BP Oil Ltd & Highbridge 
Business Park Ltd for the erection of a petrol filling station (Sui Generis) 
with associated retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee shop 
(Use Class E) with associated car parking, service arrangements, 
landscaping and access including the provision of a new roundabout. 
 

49 - 
114 

Circulation overleaf …



 

 
 

Members of the Planning Committee:  
 

Councillor Ken Barrie Councillor Trish Brady (Deputy Chair) 
Councillor Brian Burdis Councillor Linda Darke 
Councillor Sandra Graham Councillor Muriel Green 
Councillor Frank Lott (Chair) Councillor Paul Richardson 
Councillor Willie Samuel Councillor John Stirling 
Councillor Frances Weetman  



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Planning Committee 

 
Tuesday, 16 March 2021 

 
Present:  Councillor F Lott (Chair) 

  Councillors K Barrie, T Brady, L Darke, S Graham, 
M Green, T Mulvenna, P Richardson and W Samuel 

 
Apologies:  Councillors B Burdis and J Stirling 

 
 
PQ135/20 Appointment of substitutes 

 
Pursuant to the Council's Constitution the appointment of the following substitute members 
was reported: 
Councillor T Mulvenna for Councillor B Burdis 
 
 
PQ136/20 Declarations of Interest 

 
Councillor T Brady stated that planning application 20//01181/FUL, Centurion Park Golf 
Club, was located within Northumberland Ward, the ward she represented. In this capacity 
she had received representations from residents relating to the application but she had not 
predetermined the matter and would consider it with an open mind. 
 
 
PQ137/20 Minutes 

 
Resolved that the minutes of the meeting held on 16 February 2021 be confirmed and 
signed by the Chair. 
 
 
PQ138/20 Planning Officer Reports 

 
The Committee received guidance in relation to the principles of decision making when 
determining planning applications and then gave consideration to the planning applications 
listed in the following minutes. 
 
 
PQ139/20 20/02419/FUL, Hadrian Yard A B & C, Hadrian Way, Wallsend 

 
It was reported that on 11 March 2021 the applicants had notified the Authority of their 
decision to withdraw this application. The applicants had submitted a new application which, 
subject to validation, would be a matter for further consultation and determination. 
 
 
PQ140/20 20/01181/FUL, Centurion Park Golf Club, Rheydt Avenue, Wallsend 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with an addendum 
circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a full planning application from Harrison Golf 
and Leisure Newcastle Ltd for for construction of a driving range with associated parking, 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



 

2 
Tuesday, 16 March 2021 

including ancillary sports bar/restaurant, pro shop, golf academy, golf club changing 
facilities, and function rooms, creation of a new vehicular access and reconfiguration of 
Wallsend Golf Course.  
 
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various maps, plans 
and photographs. 
  
Members of the Committee asked questions of officers and made comments. In doing so 
the Committee gave particular consideration to: 

a) the location of the proposed access from West Street and its impact on the amenity 
of nearby residents and the local highway network; 

b) the evidence presented by the applicants to demonstrate that the height of the 
proposed fencing around the driving range would be more than sufficient to prevent 
golf balls landing on the Coast Road; 

c) the revised orientation of the driving range and the revised measures to mitigate 
against the loss of established woodland and wildlife habitat which would result in a 
net gain in habitat units and hedgerow units; and 

d) the economic benefits of the proposed development for the Wallsend and 
surrounding area.  

  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the planning 
officers report and incorporating the amendments set out in the addendum to the report. 
 
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the relevant policies 
contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning Policy Framework, the 
proposed development was acceptable in terms of the principle of development, including 
the use of open space, and its impact on the amenity of nearby residents, the character and 
appearance of the area, landscaping and biodiversity and highway safety.) 
 
 
PQ141/20 20/01563/FUL, 11 Spanish City Plaza, Whitley Bay 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with an addendum 
circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a full planning application from Carlton Club Ltd 
for the redevelopment of former Carlton Club (Bingo Hall) into various commercial uses to 
include function room/wedding suite, cabaret/performance venue, late night venue/cocktail 
bar, restaurant, circulation/including 2no pop up bars, 2no commercial units to new upper 
floors, including the construction of new two storey extension with second floor external 
terrace and internal alterations.  
 
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various maps, plans 
and photographs. Since publication of the report a legal agreement had been completed 
with the applicants for a financial contribution of £3,775 towards coastal mitigation scheme 
and consequently officers revised their recommendation to the Committee to permit the 
application subject to conditions. 
  
Members of the Committee welcomed the proposed development in terms of completing the 
re-development of the Spanish City area, protecting and enhancing the Grade II listed 
building and providing an attractive venue for use by residents from across the borough.  
  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the planning 
officers report. 

Page 6



 

3 
Tuesday, 16 March 2021 

 
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the relevant policies 
contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning Policy Framework, the 
proposed development was acceptable in terms of the principle of development and its 
impact on neighbouring amenity, the character and appearance of the area, biodiversity and 
highway safety.) 
 
 
PQ142/20 20/01564/LBC, 11 Spanish City Plaza, Whitley Bay 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers in relation to an application 
for listed building consent from Carlton Club Ltd for the redevelopment of former Carlton 
Club (Bingo Hall) into various commercial uses to include function room/wedding suite, 
cabaret/performance venue, late night venue/cocktail bar, restaurant, circulation/including 
2no pop up bars, 2no commercial units to new upper floors, including the construction of 
new two storey extension with second floor external terrace and internal alterations. 
 
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various maps, plans 
and photographs. 
  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the planning 
officers report. 
 
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the relevant policies 
contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning Policy Framework, the 
proposed development was acceptable in terms of its impact on the character and 
appearance of the listed building.) 
 
 
PQ143/20 20/00604/REM, Howdon Green Industrial Estate, Norman Terrace, 

Wallsend 
 

The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with an addendum 
circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a reserved matters application from Mr Ken 
Haldane pursuant to outline planning approval for residential development for 83 dwellings 
including details of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping of the site. 
 
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various maps, plans 
and photographs. 
  
Members of the Committee asked questions of officers and made comments. In doing so 
the Committee considered: 

a) the conditions attached to the outline planning permission in relation to contaminated 
land and gas protection; 

b) the amendments made to the proposed cycle paths during the application process to 
address the concerns raised by Northumbria Police; and 

c) the location and nature of the affordable housing units within the site. 
  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions set out in the planning 
officers report and the addendum to the report. 
 
 

Page 7



 

4 
Tuesday, 16 March 2021 

(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the relevant policies 
contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning Policy Framework, the 
reserved matters were acceptable in terms of layout, scale, appearance and landscaping.) 
 
 
PQ144/20 20/02057/FULH, 6 Eastfield Terrace, Benton 

 
The Committee considered a report from the planning officers, together with an addendum 
circulated prior to the meeting, in relation to a full householder planning application from 
Modo Bloc for a two storey extension to the east of the property and single storey extension 
to the south. 
 
A planning officer presented details of the application with the aid of various maps, plans 
and photographs. It was reported that following an amendment to the application to remove 
a glazed link from the northern elevation of the two storey extension, the proposed condition 
no. 5 set out in the report was no longer considered necessary.   
  
Resolved that the application be permitted subject to the conditions numbered 1 to 4 and 6 
as set out in the planning officers report. 
 
(Reasons for decision: The Committee concluded that, having regard to the relevant policies 
contained in the Council’s Local Plan 2017 and National Planning Policy Framework, the 
proposed development was acceptable in terms of its impact on neighbouring residential 
amenity and the character and appearance of the area.) 
 
 
PQ145/20 Exclusion Resolution 

 
Resolved that under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) and 
having applied a public interest test as defined in Part 2 of Schedule 12A of the Act, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Paragraph 5 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act. 
 
 
PQ146/20 18/00881/FUL, Land at Backworth Business Park, Ecclestone Close, 

Backworth 
 

Having considered a report presented by the planning officers, members reviewed the 
reasons for refusing to permit a full planning application for construction of 67 residential 
dwellings (C3) and 14 No. B1, B2 & B8 commercial units totalling 650 sqm, with associated 
road infrastructure, car parking spaces, open spaces, gardens and landscaping, in response 
to an appeal lodged by the applicant’s, Northumberland Estates.  
 
Resolved that all the reasons for refusal of planning application 18/00881/FUL be 
withdrawn. 
 
 

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

Date:  27 April 2021 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION REPORTS 
 
 
Background Papers - Access to Information 
 
The background papers used in preparing this schedule are the relevant 
application files the numbers of which appear at the head of each report.  These 
files are available for inspection at the Council offices at Quadrant East, The 
Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North Tyneside. 

 
Principles to guide members and officers in determining planning 
applications and making decisions 
 
Interests of the whole community 
 
Members of Planning Committee should determine planning matters in the 
interests of the whole community of North Tyneside. 
 
All applications should be determined on their respective planning merits. 
 
Members of Planning Committee should not predetermine planning 
applications nor do anything that may reasonably be taken as giving an 
indication of having a closed mind towards planning applications before reading 
the Officers Report and attending the meeting of the Planning Committee and 
listening to the presentation and debate at the meeting. However, councillors 
act as representatives of public opinion in their communities and lobbying of 
members has an important role in the democratic process. Where members of 
the Planning Committee consider it appropriate to publicly support or oppose a 
planning application they can do so. This does not necessarily prevent any 
such member from speaking or voting on the application provided they 
approach the decision making process with an open mind and ensure that they 
take account of all the relevant matters before reaching a decision. Any 
Member (including any substitute Member) who finds themselves in this 
position at the Planning Committee are advised to state, prior to consideration 
of the application, that they have taken a public view on the application. 
 
Where members publicly support or oppose an application they should ensure 
that the planning officers are informed , preferably in writing , so that their views 
can be properly recorded and included in the report to the Planning Committee. 
 
All other members should have regard to these principles when dealing with 
planning matters and must avoid giving an impression that the Council may 
have prejudged the matter. 
 
 
 
 
 Page 9

Agenda Item 5



Planning Considerations 
 
Planning decisions should be made on planning considerations and should not 
be based on immaterial considerations. 
 
The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as expanded by Government 
Guidance and decided cases define what matters are material to the 
determination of planning applications. 
 
It is the responsibility of officers in preparing reports and recommendations to 
members to identify the material planning considerations and warn members 
about those matters which are not material planning matters. 
 
Briefly, material planning considerations include:- 
 
 North Tyneside Local Plan (adopted July 2017);  
 
 National policies and advice contained in guidance issued by the Secretary 

of State, including the National Planning Policy Framework, Planning 
Practice Guidance, extant Circulars and Ministerial announcements; 

 
 non-statutory planning policies determined by the Council; 
 
 the statutory duty to pay special attention the desirability of preserving or 

enhancing the character or appearance of conservation areas; 
 
 the statutory duty to have special regard to the desirability of preserving a 

listed building or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic 
interest which it possesses; 

 
 representations made by statutory consultees and other persons making 

representations in response to the publicity given to applications, to the 
extent that they relate to planning matters. 

 
There is much case law on what are material planning considerations.  The 
consideration must relate to the use and development of land. 
 
Personal considerations and purely financial considerations are not on their 
own material; they can only be material in exceptional situations and only in so 
far as they relate to the use and development of land such as, the need to raise 
income to preserve a listed building which cannot otherwise be achieved. 
 
The planning system does not exist to protect private interests of one person 
against the activities of another or the commercial interests of one business 
against the activities of another. The basic question is not whether owners and 
occupiers or neighbouring properties or trade competitors would experience 
financial or other loss from a particular development, but whether the proposal 
would unacceptably affect amenities and the existing use of land and buildings, 
which ought to be protected in the public interest. 
 

Page 10



Local opposition or support for the proposal is not in itself a ground for refusing 
or granting planning permission, unless that opposition or support is founded 
upon valid planning reasons which can be substantiated by clear evidence. 
 
It will be inevitable that all the considerations will not point either to grant or 
refusal.  Having identified all the material planning considerations and put to 
one side all the immaterial considerations, members must come to a carefully 
balanced decision which can be substantiated if challenged on appeal. 
 
Officers' Advice 
 
All members should pay particular attention to the professional advice and 
recommendations from officers. 
 
They should only resist such advice, if they have good reasons, based on land 
use planning grounds which can be substantiated by clear evidence. 
 
Where the Planning Committee resolves to make a decision contrary to a 
recommendation from officers, members must be aware of their legislative 
responsibilities under Article 35 of the Town & Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) to: 
 
When refusing permission:  

 state clearly and precisely the full reasons for any refusal including 
specifying all the policies and proposals in the development plan 
relevant to the decision; or 
 

When granting permission: 
 give a summary of the reasons for granting permission and of the 

policies and proposals in the development plan relevant to the decision; 
and 

 state clearly and precisely full reasons for each condition imposed, 
specifying all policies and proposals in the development plan which are 
relevant to the decision; and 

 in the case of each pre-commencement condition, state the reason for 
the condition being a pre-commencement condition.  

 
And in both cases to give a statement explaining how, in dealing with the 
application, the LPA has worked with the applicant in a proactive and positive 
manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation to dealing 
with the application, having regard to advice in para.s 186-187 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Lobbying of Planning Committee Members 
 
While recognising that lobbying of members has an important role in the local 
democratic process, members of Planning Committee should ensure that their 
response is not such as to give reasonable grounds for their impartiality to be 
questioned or to indicate that the decision has already been made. If however, 
members of Committee express an opinion prior to the Planning Committee this 
does not necessarily prevent any such member from speaking or voting on the 
application provided they approach the decision making process with an open Page 11



mind and ensure that they take account of all the relevant matters before 
reaching a decision. Any Member (including any substitute Member) who finds 
themselves in this position at the Planning Committee are advised to state, prior 
to consideration of the application, that they have taken a public view on the 
application. 
  
 
Lobbying of Other Members 
 
While recognising that lobbying of members has an important role in the local 
democratic process, all other members should ensure that their response is not 
such as to give reasonable grounds for suggesting that the decision has 
already been made by the Council. 
 
Lobbying  
 
Members of the Planning Committee should ensure that their response to any 
lobbying is not such as to give reasonable grounds for their impartiality to be 
questioned. However all members of the Council should ensure that any 
responses do not give reasonable grounds for suggesting that a decision has 
already been made by the Council. 
 
Members of the Planning Committee should not act as agents (represent or 
undertake any work) for people pursuing planning applications nor should they 
put pressure on officers for a particular recommendation. 

Page 12



PLANNING APPLICATION REPORTS 
CONTENTS 

 
6 21/00029/FUL  Tynemouth  
  

Unicorn House Stephenson Street North Shields Tyne And Wear NE30 1BB  
  
 
7 20/01741/FUL  Valley  
  

Plot 11 The Silverlink North Cobalt Business Park West Allotment 
NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE   

  
 
 
 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
Application 
No: 

21/00029/FUL Author: Rebecca Andison 

Date valid: 6 January 2021 : 0191 643 6321 
Target 
decision date: 

7 April 2021 Ward: Tynemouth 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Unicorn House, Stephenson Street, North Shields, Tyne And 
Wear, NE30 1BB 
 
Proposal: Creation of 28 units (Use Class C3) comprising of 22 town 
houses and 6 apartments, together with vehicle parking and associated 
works (AMENDED PLANS)  
 
Applicant: North Tyneside Council, North Tyneside Council Quadrant East (2nd 
Floor) Cobalt Business Park North Shields NE27 0BY 
 
Agent: IDPartnership, Grace Paul St Jude's Barker Street Shieldfield Newcastle 
Upon Tyne NE2 1AS 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Committee is recommended to indicate that it is minded to grant this 
application and  
 
a) authorise the Head of Housing, Environment and Leisure to determine 

the application subject to the conditions set out below and the addition, 
omission or amendment of any other conditions considered necessary 
and the completion of an agreement under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following: 

Affordable housing: 25% - 7 units 
Ecology and Biodiversity: £2,5460 
Allotments: £3,629.12  
Equipped play: £19,600 
Parks and greenspace: £14,909 
Primary education: £75,000 (6 additional primary aged pupils) 
Employment and Training: 1 apprenticeship or £7,000 per 
apprenticeship or a mix of both 
Coastal Mitigation: £9,436 towards the Coastal Mitigation Scheme. 

 
b) authorise the Head of Law and Governance and the Head of 

Environment, Housing and Leisure to undertake all necessary 
procedures under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 to secure the 
following highway improvements:  

New car park accesses 
Individual footway crossings 
Upgrade of footpaths abutting the site 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



 

Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 

 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
1.0 Main Issues 
1.1 The main issues for Members to consider are: 
- Principle; 
- Impact on the living conditions of surrounding occupiers, and whether the 
proposal would provide a sufficient residential living environment for future 
occupiers;  
- Impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the site and its 
surroundings; 
- Impact on trees and biodiversity; and  
- Whether there is sufficient car parking and access provided. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The application site is located between Stephenson Street and Norfolk Street 
within North Shields town centre.  It contains a detached three storey building 
with a car park at the rear (west).  The building is currently vacant but was 
previously occupied by offices.   
 
2.2 The surrounding area contains both residential and commercial uses.  To the 
east is North Shields Police Station and residential properties on Stephenson 
Street, to the south are offices and a public house, and to the north are 
Northumbria House and Stephenson House, which have recently been converted 
into residential apartments.  Beyond Norfolk Street to the west is a public car 
park and the rear elevations of properties on Howard Street. 
 
2.3 The boundary of Northumberland Square Conservation Area lies beyond 
Suez Street to the north and beyond the car park to the west.  The site is 
allocated for mixed use development within the Local Plan (site 61 Norfolk Street 
and Stephenson Street car park). 
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for 28no.residential units comprising 22no. 
town houses and 6no. apartments, together with vehicle parking and associated 
works.  10no. of the town houses have 3-bedrooms plus a study and 12no. have 
3-bedrooms plus a study/4th bedroom.  4no. 2-bed and 2no. 1-bed apartments 
are proposed. 
 
3.2 The proposed town houses face onto Stephenson Street and Norfolk Street 
while the apartments face north onto Suez Street.  Parking is proposed within the 
front gardens and two courtyards. 
 
 

Page 16



 

4.0 Relevant Planning History 
20/00560/DEMGDO - The building is a large modern office block that was 
previously  occupied by North Tyneside Council.  It is intended to demolish all 
ancillary structures (except for an electricity sub station) and hard standings 
within the confines of the site.  The site is located on the corner of Suez Street 
and Stephenson Street, North Shields – Permitted 01.06.2020 
 
17/01137/PRIGDO - Notification for prior approval for proposed change of use 
from offices (use class B1a) to 43 residential units (use class C3) – Permitted 
22.09.2017 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
6.0 Government Policy 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework (February 2019) 
 
6.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (As Amended) 
 
6.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
LPAs to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development in determining 
development proposals. Due weight should still be attached to Development Plan 
policies according to the degree to which any policy is consistent with the NPPF. 
 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
7.0 Main Issues 
7.1 The main issues for Members to consider are: 
- Principle; 
- Impact on the living conditions of surrounding occupiers, and whether the 
proposal would provide a sufficient residential living environment for future 
occupiers;  
- Impact of the proposal on the character and appearance of the site and its 
surroundings; 
- Impact on trees and biodiversity; and  
- Whether there is sufficient car parking and access provided. 
 
7.2 Consultation responses and representations received as a result of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
8.0 Principle 
8.1 Paragraph 7 of NPPF states that the purposed of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development.  
 
8.2 Paragraph 8 of NPPF states that a social objective is one of the three 
overarching objectives of the planning system and that amongst other matters it 
should seek to support a sufficient number and range of homes to meet present 

Page 17



 

and future needs which support communities’ health, social and cultural well-
being. 
 
8.3 Paragraph 11 of NPPF introduces a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development, which amongst other matters states that decision takers should 
approve development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan 
without delay. 
 
8.4 Paragraph 59 of NPPF states that to support the Government’s objective to 
significantly boost the supply of homes, it is important that sufficient amount and 
variety of land can come forwards where it is needed, that the needs of groups 
with specific housing requirements are addressed and that land with permission 
is developed without unnecessary delay. 
 
8.5 Policy DM1.3 states that the Council will work pro-actively with applicants to 
jointly find solutions that mean proposals can be approved wherever possible that 
improve the economic, social and environmental conditions in the area. 
 
8.6 Policy S1.4 states that proposals for development will be considered 
favourably where it can be demonstrated that they would accord with the 
strategic, development or areas specific policies of the Local Plan. 
 
8.7 Policy S4.1 states that the full objectively assessed housing needs of North 
Tyneside will be met through the provision of sufficient specific deliverable 
housing sites, including the positive identification of brownfield land and 
sustainable greenfield sites that do not fall within the Borough's Green Belt, whilst 
also making best use of the existing housing stock. 
 
8.8 The development would contribute to meeting the housing needs of the 
borough and is therefore considered to accord with the aims of the NPPF and 
Policies S4.1 and S4.3.   It is located in a highly sustainable location close to 
public transport links, shops and services.  
 
8.9 Having regard to the above; the principle of the proposed development is 
considered acceptable subject to consideration of the following matters: 
 
8.10 North Tyneside Council Housing Land Supply 
8.11 Paragraph 73 of National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local 
planning authorities to identify and maintain a rolling five-year supply of 
deliverable housing land.  This includes an additional buffer of at least 5%, in 
order to ensure choice and competition in the market for housing land. 
 
8.12 The most up to date assessment of housing land supply informed by the 
March 2019 five-year Housing Land Supply Summary identifies the total potential 
five-year housing land supply in the borough at 5,396 new homes (a total which 
includes delivery from sites yet to gain planning permission). This represents a 
surplus against the Local Plan requirement (or a 6.1 year supply of housing land). 
It is important to note that this assessment of five-year land supply includes just 
over 2,000 homes at proposed housing allocations within the Local Plan (2017).  
 

Page 18



 

8.13 Although the Council can demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable 
housing sites, this figure is a minimum rather than a maximum.  Further planning 
permissions that add to the supply of housing can be granted which add to the 
choice and range of housing.   
 
8.14 The application site is identified for mixed use development under Policy 
S4.3 of the Local Plan (site 61 Norfolk Street and Stephenson Street car park).  
The Local Plan suggests that the site could accommodate around 41no. 
dwellings.  This figure includes the Norfolk Street car park which does not form 
part of this application.  14no. of these units form part of the 5-year housing land 
supply.   
 
8.15 Although the Council can demonstrate a five year supply of deliverable 
housing sites, this figure is a minimum rather than a maximum.  Further planning 
permissions that add to the supply of housing can be granted which add to the 
choice and range of housing.   
 
9.0 Impact on the amenity of existing and future occupiers 
9.1 NPPF paragraph 180 states that planning decisions should also ensure that 
new development is appropriate for its location taking into account the likely 
effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, living conditions and 
the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity of the site or the wider 
area to impacts that could arise from the development. In doing so they should 
mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting from noise 
from new development  and avoid noise giving rise to significant adverse impacts 
on health and the quality of life. 
 
9.2 The NPPF states that planning should always seek to secure high quality 
design and a good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of 
land and buildings.  
 
9.3 Policy S1.4 of the Local Plan states that development proposals should be 
acceptable in terms of their impact upon local amenity for new or existing 
residents and businesses, adjoining premises and land uses. 
 
9.4 DM5.19 states that development proposals that may cause pollution either 
individually or cumulatively of water, air or soil through noise, smell, smoke, 
fumes, gases, steam, dust, vibration, light, and other pollutants will be required to 
incorporate measures to prevent or reduce their pollution so as not to cause 
nuisance or unacceptable impacts on the environment, to people and to 
biodiversity. Development that may be sensitive (such as housing, schools and 
hospitals) to existing or potentially polluting sources will not be sited in proximity 
to such sources. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near to 
sensitive areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated. 
 
9.5 Policy DM6.1 of the Local Plan states that proposals are expected to 
demonstrate a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; a safe 
environment that reduces opportunities for crime and antisocial behaviour; and a 
good standard of amenity for existing and future residents and users of buildings 
and spaces. 
 

Page 19



 

9.6 Policy DM4.9 states that to ensure that new homes provide quality living 
environments for residents both now and in the future and to help deliver 
sustainable communities, from the 1 October 2018 the following standards will 
apply, subject to site viability: 
 
Accessibility of homes: 
Market Housing  
a.For new housing developments, excluding low-rise non-lift serviced flats, 50% 
of homes are to meet building regulation M4(2) – ‘Category 2 -accessible and 
adaptable dwellings’.  
 
Affordable Housing 
b. For all new housing developments, excluding low-rise non-lift serviced flats, 
90% of homes should meet building regulation M4(2) – ‘accessible and adaptable 
dwellings’. 
c. 10% of new homes where the local authority is responsible for allocating or 
nominating a person to live in that dwelling should meet building regulation M4 
(3) (2) (b). When providing for wheelchair user housing, early discussion with the 
Council is required to obtain the most up-to-date information on specific need in 
the local area. Where there is no specific need identified, then M4 (3) (2) (a) will 
apply, to allow simple adaptation of the dwelling to meet the future needs of 
wheelchair users. 
 
Internal Space in a Home: 
d. All new homes, both market and affordable, will meet the Government’s 
Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS). 
 
9.7 Impact on existing residents – 
9.8 Separation distances between the proposed dwellings and existing properties 
on Howard Street and Stephenson Street measure approximately 46m and 23m 
respectively.  This is considered to be sufficient to protect the amenity of existing 
residents.   
 
9.9 Northumbria House is located to the north west.  This 5-storey building 
contains flats with windows in the south and east elevations.  The south facing 
windows would be located approximately 8m from the gable elevation of unit 19 
but would still have an open aspect around the sides of this property.  The east 
facing windows would be located approximately 29m from the proposed 
dwellings on plots 7 and 8. 
 
9.10 There are also residential flats in Stephenson House, which is located on 
the north side of Suez Street.  The south facing windows in this building would be 
located approximately 23m from the proposed apartments at the north end of the 
site.  This is considered to be acceptable in terms of the impact on light, outlook 
or privacy. 
 
9.11 Having regard to the above the impact on the living conditions of existing 
residents is considered to be acceptable. 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

9.12 Amenity of future occupiers –  
9.13 The application site is located within North Shields town centre and 
residents of the proposed development could be affected by road traffic noise, 
noise from external plant associated with nearby commercial units, and noise 
arising from customer voices and amplified music at the adjacent Bell and Bucket 
public house.  Normally a noise survey would be required as part of the 
application to assess existing noise levels and ensure appropriate mitigation 
measures are taken.  However, due to current restrictions related to the Covid 
pandemic noise levels in the area are not representative of the normal conditions 
and it has not been possible for a noise assessment to be carried out. 
 
9.14 The Manager of Environmental Health has provided comments.  She 
acknowledges the difficulties in obtaining a representative noise assessment and 
notes that the impact of noise from the public house will be mitigated by the high 
(4-5m) boundary wall and the fact that the closest proposed dwelling would have 
the gable elevation facing towards the pub.  To ensure the impact of noise is 
adequately mitigated she recommends conditions in respect of: a noise scheme 
to address traffic and commercial noise, ventilation scheme, construction hours 
and dust suppression. 
 
9.15 Subject to these conditions the impact of noise on future occupiers is 
considered to be acceptable. 
 
9.16 The layout of the development is also considered to be acceptable in terms 
of the standard of living accommodation provided for future occupiers.  Each 
dwelling would be provided with a front and rear garden and there is a small 
communal garden for the apartments.  The development provides adequate 
separation distances between properties within the development to ensure that 
future occupiers enjoy good levels of light, outlook and privacy, and the floor 
areas meet the Government’s Nationally Described Space Standard (NDSS). 
 
9.17 It is officer opinion that, subject to the conditions discussed above, the 
development would provide an acceptable living conditions for future occupiers 
and avoids having an adverse impact on existing residents. Members need to 
consider whether they agree. 
 
10.0 Impact on Character and Appearance 
10.1 Paragraph 124 of the NPPF recognises that the creation of high-quality 
buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development 
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable 
development, creates better places in which to live and work and helps make 
development acceptable to communities.  
 
10.2 Paragraph 127 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions, 
amongst other matters, should ensure that developments:  
-will function well and add to the overall quantity of the area, not just for the short 
term but over the lifetime of the development;  
-are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate 
and effective landscaping; 

Page 21



 

-establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, 
spaces, building types and materials to create attractive, welcoming and 
distinctive places to live, work and visit;  
-optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate 
amount and mix of development (including green and other public space) and 
support local facilities and transport networks; and 
-create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health 
and well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and 
where crime and disorder and the fear of crime, do not undermine the quality of 
life or community cohesion and resilience.  
 
10.3 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF makes it clear that permission should be 
refused for development of poor design that fails to take the opportunities 
available for improving the character and quality of an area and the way it 
functions, taking into account any local design standards or style guides in plans 
or supplementary planning documents. 
 
10.4 Policy DM6.1 of the Local Plan states that applications will only be permitted 
where they demonstrate high and consistent design standards. Designs should 
be specific to the place, based on a clear analysis the characteristics of the site, 
its wider context and the surrounding area. 
 
10.5 Policy DM6.6 states that proposals that affect heritage assets or their 
settings, will be permitted where they sustain, conserve and, where appropriate, 
enhance the significance, appearance, character and setting of heritage assets in 
an appropriate manner. 
 
10.6 The Council has produced an SPD on Design Quality, which seeks to 
encourage innovative design and layout and that contemporary and bespoke 
architecture is encouraged.  The chosen design approach should respect and 
enhance the quality and character of the area and contribute towards creating 
local distinctiveness. 
 
10.7 The 22no. proposed houses are arranged in two terraces and one semi-
detached pair, fronting Stephenson Street and Norfolk Street.  Between the two 
terraces is a courtyard parking area with access from the south.  The appearance 
of the parking area is softened with trees and landscaping. There are further 
landscaped areas along the development frontages to help break up the in-plot 
parking spaces.  The 6no. apartments would be located in a separate north 
facing building with a second parking area at the rear.  This would be accessed 
from Stephenson Street and again contains trees and landscaping. 
 
10.8 A Design and Access Statement has been submitted as part of the 
application. This explains that the proposed design seeks to reflect the Georgian 
architecture of the surrounding area in a contemporary way.  Two house types 
are proposed for the houses.  These are 2.5 storey with increased height on 
prominent corners to ‘bookend’ the development.  Rooms within the roof are 
facilitated through dormer windows and roof lights.  The design includes feature 
windows to help break up the terraces and varying brick colours to add interest to 
the streetscene.  The apartments would be 3-storey and include single storey flat 

Page 22



 

roofed elements on either side.  The roofs of these would provide balconies for 
the first floor flats. 
 
10.9 The Planning Policy Officer (Design) has provided comments.  He states 
that the overall design and layout successfully responds to the site and the 
surrounding area, noting that development would create an attractive 
streetscene.  Changes have been made to address his concerns regarding some 
of the boundary treatments.  The boundaries enclosures now proposed include 
hedging and low walls to the front gardens, 1.8m fencing with brick piers to the 
rear boundaries and 1.8m high brick walls at the car park entrances.    
 
10.10 The site is located outside of but close to the boundary of Northumberland 
Square Conservation Area.  The impact on the setting of the conservation area 
has been considered.  It is officer opinion that the development would enhance 
the setting of the conservation by removing the existing vacant office building and 
introducing a high quality residential development. 
 
10.11 Members need to consider whether the design and layout of the proposed 
development is acceptable and whether it accords with the advice in the NPPF, 
Policy DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan and the ‘Design Quality’ SPD and 
weight this in their decision.  Subject to conditions to control the construction and 
surfacing materials, it is officer advice that the design is acceptable and accords 
with national and local planning policies. 
 
11.0 Landscaping and ecology 
11.1 An environmental role is one of the three dimensions of sustainable 
development according to NPPF, which seeks to protect and enhance our 
natural, built and historic environment by amongst other matters improving 
biodiversity. 
 
11.2 Paragraph 175 of NPPF states that when determining planning application 
that if significant harm to biodiversity cannot be avoided, or as a last resort 
compensated for, then planning permission should be refused. 
 
11.3 Policy DM5.5 of the Local Plan states that all development proposals should 
amongst other matters protect biodiversity and minimise the fragmentation of 
habitats and wildlife links. 
 
11.4 Local Plan Policy DM5.6 states that proposals that are likely to have 
significant effects on features of internationally designated sites, either alone or 
in-combination with other plans or projects, will require an appropriate 
assessment. Proposals that adversely affect a site’s integrity can only proceed 
where there are no alternatives, imperative reasons of overriding interest are 
proven and the effects are compensated.  
 
11.5 Policy DM5.9 supports the protection and management of existing woodland 
trees, hedgerow and landscape features.  It seeks to secure new tree planting 
and landscaping scheme for new development, and where appropriate, promote 
and encourage new woodland, tree and hedgerow planting schemes and 
encouraging native species of local provenance. 
 

Page 23



 

11.6 The Coastal Mitigation SPD contains additional guidance and information on 
the mitigation expected from development within North Tyneside to prevent 
adverse impacts on the internationally protected coastline. Development can 
adversely affect the Northumbria Coast SPA /Ramsar through additional 
pressure from local residents and visitors.   It is proposed to introduce a coastal 
wardening service as part of a wider Coastal Mitigation Service that will 
implement a range of targeted and coordinated physical projects to mitigate the 
impacts at the coast. The SPD sets out a recommended developer contribution 
towards this service that would contribute to the avoidance or mitigation of 
adverse impacts on internationally protected species and habitats.   
 
11.7 The site is occupied by the existing office building and hard surfacing but 
contains a number trees within the car park and at the northern end of the site.  
An Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Landscape Strategy have been 
submitted as part of the application.  It is necessary to remove 28no. existing 
trees and 1no. tree group to construct the development.  Of these trees 12no. are 
category B trees (moderate retention) and the rest category C (low retention).  
26no. replacement trees are proposed within the gardens, car park areas and 
along Norfolk Street. 
 
11.8 The Landscape Architect has been consulted and provided comments.  She 
states that the existing trees contribute to the character and quality of the 
landscape, but some are struggling due to the environment in which they are 
located.  She recognises that the development provides an opportunity for 
improved landscaping and that a comprehensive planting scheme is proposed.  
She considers that the proposed landscape scheme provides adequate 
mitigation for the loss of trees.  A condition is recommended in respect of a 
detailed planting scheme. 
 
11.9 A Bat Risk Assessment has been carried out and submitted as part of the 
application.  The assessment concludes that the buildings and trees are of 
negligible suitability for use by roosting bats.  Trees within the site provide some 
opportunity for nesting birds but none were recorded during the survey.   The 
Biodiversity Officer has commented and raises no objections to the application.  
She recommends conditions in respect of: a detailed planting scheme, bat and 
bird boxes, external lighting and the timing of tree removals. 
 
11.10 The development lies within 6km of the coast and therefore has the 
potential to impact on the Northumbria Coast SPA/Ramsar site through additional 
visitor disturbance.  To mitigate this impact, in accordance with the Coastal 
Mitigation SPD, the developer has agreed to make a contribution of Ј337 per 
dwelling towards coastal mitigation. 
 
11.11 Natural England has been consulted. They have advised that they have no 
objections to the application subject to appropriate mitigation being to mitigate 
the impact of additional visitors on the Northumberland Coast SPA and Ramsar 
Site.   
 
11.12 Members need to consider whether the impact on trees and ecology would 
be acceptable and in accordance with policies DM5.5 and DM5.9 and weight this 

Page 24



 

in their decision. Subject to conditions and a contribution towards the Coastal 
Mitigation Scheme, it is officer advice that the impact is acceptable.  
 
12.0 Whether there is sufficient car parking and access provided 
12.1 NPPF recognises that transport policies have an important role to play in 
facilitating sustainable development, but also contributing to wider sustainability 
and health objectives. 
 
12.2 All development that will generate significant amounts of movement should 
be required to provide a Travel Plan (TP), and the application should be 
supported by a Transport Statement (TS) or Transport Assessment (TA) so the 
likely impacts of the proposal can be fully assessed. 
 
12.3 Paragraph 109 of NPPF states that development should only be prevented 
or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on 
highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be 
severe. 
 
12.4 Policy DM7.4 seeks to ensure that the transport requirements of new 
development, commensurate to the scale and type of development, are take into 
account and seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental 
impacts and support residents and health and well-being. 
 
12.5 The Transport and Highways SPD sets out the Council’s adopted parking 
standards. 
 
12.6 50no. parking spaces are proposed for the 28no. proposed properties.  The 
town houses would have driveways with direct access onto Norfolk Street and 
Stephenson Street, and additional parking within a rear courtyard accessed from 
Stephenson Street.  Parking for the 6no. apartments is proposed in a separate 
courtyard, also accessed from Stephenson Street.  Each dwelling would be 
provided with a covered cycle store within the rear garden and a communal store 
would be provided for the apartments. 
 
12.7 The Highway Network Manager been consulted and raises no objection to 
the application.  He advises that an appropriate level of parking would be 
provided for the development and notes that the site is in a highly sustainable 
with excellent links to public transport.  While some on-street parking would be 
lost from Norfolk Street and Stephenson Street this would not impact on the 
overall regeneration plan for the town centre. 
 
12.8 The Highway Network Manager recommends conditions including in respect 
of a construction management plan, refuse storage, and off-site highway works. 
 
12.9 Having regard to the above, and subject to the conditions requested by the 
Highway Network Manager, it is officer advice that the proposal complies with the 
advice in NPPF, policy DM7.4 and the Transport and Highways SPD.  
 
 
 
 

Page 25



 

13.0 Other issues 
13.1 Contaminated Land  
13.2 Paragraph 179 of NPPF states that where are site is affected by 
contamination of land stability issues, responsibility for securing safe 
development rests with the developer and/or landowner. 
 
13.3 Policy DM5.18 ‘Contaminated and Unstable Land; states that where the 
future users or occupiers of a development would be affected by contamination 
or stability issues, or where contamination may present a risk to the water 
environment, proposals must be accompanied by a report.  
 
13.4 There is a potential for contamination to be present on the site from former 
vehicle refuelling and servicing, and from the demolition of buildings. The 
Contaminated Land Officer has stated that conditions will be required to address 
these issues. 
 
13.5 Subject to these conditions, it is officer advice that the proposal complies 
with policy DM5.18 of the Local Plan 2017.  
 
13.6 Flooding 
13.7 The National Planning Policy Framework states that when determining any 
planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is 
not increased elsewhere.  Where appropriate, applications should be supported 
by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. 
 
13.8 Policy DM5.12 of the Local Plan states that all major developments will be 
required to demonstrate that flood risk does not increase as a result of the 
development proposed, and that options have been undertaken to reduce overall 
flood risk from all sources, taking into account the impact of climate change over 
its lifetime. 
 
13.9 Policy DM5.14 states that applicants will be required to show, with evidence, 
they comply with the Defra technical standards for sustainable drainage systems 
(unless otherwise updated and/or superseded.  On brownfiled sites, surface 
water run off rates post development should be limited to a maximum of 50% of 
the flows discharged immediately prior to the development where appropriate 
and achievable.  For greenfield sites, surface water run off post development 
must meet or exceed the infiltration capacity or the greenfield prior to 
development incorporating an allowance for climate change. 
 
13.10 The site contains an existing building and a large area of hardstanding.  It 
is located within Flood Zone 1 and is not within a Critical Drainage Area. 
 
13.11 It is proposed to provide surface water attenuation via the use of an 
underground attenuation tank and permeable paving in order to restrict the 
discharge rate before discharging into local sewer network. 
 
13.12 The Local Lead Flood Officer has provided comments and states that he 
has no objections to the proposals.  He queries whether the permeable paving 
will be connected to the surface water drainage system and recommends 
conditions in respect of the detailed drainage design and SUDs management.  

Page 26



 

The applicant has confirmed that the permeable paving will be connected to the 
surface water drainage system.   
 
13.13 Northumbrian Water has also provided comments.  They state that they 
have no objections to the development and recommend a condition requiring that 
the development is carried out in accordance with the submitted Surface Water 
Drainage Assessment. 
 
13.14 Subject to the above conditions, it is officer advice that the proposal would 
not have an adverse impact in terms of flooding and would accord with the advice 
in NPPF and policies DM5.12 and DM5.14.  Members need to consider whether 
they agree. 
 
13.15 S106 Contributions 
13.16 Paragraph 54 of NPPF states that local planning authorities should 
consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made 
acceptable through the use of conditions or planning obligations.  Planning 
obligations should only be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable 
impacts through a planning condition. 
 
13.17 Paragraph 56 of NPPF states that planning obligations must only be 
sought where they meet all of the following tests: 
a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
b) Directly related to the development; and 
c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 
13.18 Policy S7.1 states that the Council will ensure appropriate infrastructure is 
delivered so it can support new development and continue to meet existing 
needs. Where appropriate and through a range of means, the Council will seek to 
improve any deficiencies in the current level of provision. 
 
13.19 Policy DM7.2 states that the Council is committed to enabling a viable and 
deliverable sustainable development.  If the economic viability of a new 
development is such that it is not reasonably possible to make payments to fund 
all or part of the infrastructure required to support it, applicants will need to 
provide robust evidence of the viability of the proposal to demonstrate this.  
When determining the contributions required, consideration will be given to the 
application’s overall conformity with the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 
 
13.20 Policy DM7.5 states that the Council will seek applicants of major 
development proposals to contribute towards the creation of local employment 
opportunities and support growth in skills through an increase in the overall 
proportion of local residents in education or training. Applicants are encouraged 
to agree measures with the Council 
to achieve this, which could include: 
a. The development or expansion of education facilities to meet any identified 
shortfall in capacity arising as a result of the development; and/or, 
b. Provision of specific training and/or apprenticeships that: 
i. Are related to the proposed development; or, 

Page 27



 

ii. Support priorities for improving skills in the advanced engineering, 
manufacturing and the off-shore, marine and renewables sector where relevant 
to the development. 
 
13.21 The Council’s adopted SPD on Planning Obligations (2018) states that the 
Council takes a robust stance in relation to ensuring new development 
appropriately mitigates its impact on the physical, social and economic 
infrastructure of North Tyneside.  Notwithstanding that, planning obligations 
should not place unreasonable demands upon developers, particularly in relation 
to the impact upon the economic viability of development.  The Council will 
consider and engage with the applicants to identify appropriate solutions where 
matters of viability arise and require negotiation. 
 
13.22 The following contributions have been requested by service areas and 
agreed by the applicant: 
 
Affordable housing: 25% - 7 units 
Ecology and Biodiversity: £2,5460 
Allotments: £3,629.12  
Equipped play: £19,600 
Parks and greenspace: £14,909 
Primary education: £75,000 (6 additional primary aged pupils) 
Employment and Training: 1 apprenticeship or £7,000 per apprenticeship or a 
mix of both 
Coastal Mitigation: £9,436 towards the Coastal Mitigation Scheme. 
 
13.23 These contributions are considered necessary, directly related to the 
development and fairly and reasonable relate in scale and kind to the 
development and therefore comply with the CIL Regulations. 
 
13.24 A CIL payment will be required. 
 
13.25 Local Financial Considerations 
13.24 Local financial considerations are defined as a grant or other financial 
assistance that has been, that will or that could be provided to a relevant 
authority by the Minister of the Crown (such as New Homes Bonus payments) or 
sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive in payment of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL).  
 
13.26 The proposal involves the creation of 28no. new dwellings. Granting 
planning permission for new dwellings increases the amount of New Homes 
Bonus, which the Council will potentially receive.  As the system currently stands, 
for North Tyneside for the new increase in dwellings built 2017/18, the council will 
receive funding for five years.  However, the Secretary of State has confirmed 
that in 2018/19 New Homes Bonus payments will be made for four rather than 
five years.  In addition, the new homes will bring additional revenue in terms of 
Council Tax and jobs created during the construction period.  
 
13.27 Members should give appropriate weight to amongst all other material 
considerations to the benefit of the Council as a result of the monies received 
from central Government. 

Page 28



 

 
14.0 Conclusion 
14.1 Members should consider carefully the balance of issues before them and 
the need to take in account national policy within NPPF and the weight to be 
accorded to this as well as current local planning policy.  
 
14.2 Specifically, NPPF states that LPA’s should look for solutions rather than 
problems, and decision-takers at every level should seek to approve applications 
for sustainable development where possible. A core planning principle within 
NPPF requires that every effort should be made objectively to identify and then 
meet the housing, business and other development needs of an area, and 
respond positively to wider opportunities for growth.  
 
14.3 The site is identified as being suitable for mixed use development under 
Policy S4.3 of the Local Plan and lies in a highly sustainable location, close to 
shops, services and transport links.   It is therefore officer advice that the 
principle of residential development on this site is acceptable.  Members need to 
consider the impacts of the proposed development as set out in paragraph 1.0 of 
this report. It is officer advice that the development is acceptable in terms of its 
impact on residential amenity, the highway network, existing landscape features 
and biodiversity and its overall design and appearance.  
 
14.4 Approval is recommended, subject to conditions and securing the requested 
financial contributions via a S106 Agreement.   
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Committee is recommended to indicate that it is minded to grant this 
application and  
 
a) authorise the Head of Housing, Environment and Leisure to determine 

the application subject to the conditions set out below and the addition, 
omission or amendment of any other conditions considered necessary 
and the completion of an agreement under Section 106 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following: 

Affordable housing: 25% - 7 units 
Ecology and Biodiversity: £2,5460 
Allotments: £3,629.12  
Equipped play: £19,600 
Parks and greenspace: £14,909 
Primary education: £75,000 (6 additional primary aged pupils) 
Employment and Training: 1 apprenticeship or £7,000 per 
apprenticeship or a mix of both 
Coastal Mitigation: £9,436 towards the Coastal Mitigation Scheme. 

 
b) authorise the Head of Law and Governance and the Head of 

Environment, Housing and Leisure to undertake all necessary 
procedures under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 to secure the 
following highway improvements:  

New car park accesses 
Individual footway crossings 

Page 29



 

Upgrade of footpaths abutting the site 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 

 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans and specifications. 
         - Application form 
         - Site location plan 101 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed site layout 103 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed site layout - coloured 104 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed car parking and cycle storage plan 107 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed materials and hard surfacing plan 105-P1 Rev.P1 
         - Proposed boundary treatment plan 108 Rev.P2 
         - Housetype Booklet December 2020 
         - Landscape strategy plan 1609-1-1 Rev.E 
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2. Standard Time Limit 3 Years FUL MAN02 * 

 
3.    The construction site subject of this approval shall not be operational and 
there shall be no demolition activity, construction, deliveries to, from or vehicle 
movements within the site outside the hours of 0800-1800 Monday - Friday and 
0800-1400 Saturdays with no working on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenity of nearby residents having regard to 
policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
4. Construction Method Statement - Major SIT007 * 

 
5.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to occupation of the development use 
details of facilities to be provided for the storage of refuse and recycling shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
facilities which should also include the provision of wheeled bins for all waste 
types shall be provided in accordance with the approved details, prior to the 
occupation of extension and thereafter permanently retained. 
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of the area having regard to 
policies DM6.1 of North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
6.    The scheme for parking, garaging and manoeuvring indicated on the 
approved plans shall be laid out prior to the initial occupation of the development 
hereby permitted and these areas shall not thereafter be used for any other 
purpose. 

Page 30



 

         Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off and turn clear of the highway 
thereby avoiding the need to reverse onto the public highway having regard to 
policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
7.    No part of the development shall be occupied until the new means of access 
has been sited and laid out in accordance with the approved drawing. 
         Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off and turn clear of the highway 
thereby avoiding the need to reverse onto the public highway having regard to 
policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
8.    The development shall not be occupied until a scheme for the following off-
site highway works has been submitted to and approved by in writing the Local 
Planning Authority: 
         New car park accesses 
         Individual footway crossings 
         Upgrade of footpaths abutting the site 
         Associated street lighting 
         Associated drainage 
         Associated road markings 
         Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
         Associated street furniture & signage 
         The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details 
and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to 
users of the highway and of the access having regard to policy DM7.4 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
9.    The development shall be implemented in line with the drainage scheme 
contained within the submitted document entitled "Surface Water Drainage 
Assessment" dated "December 2020". The drainage scheme shall ensure that 
foul flows discharge to the combined sewer at manhole 6506 and ensure that 
surface water discharges to the combined sewer at manhole 6506. The surface 
water discharge rate shall not exceed the available capacity of 20l/sec that has 
been identified in this sewer. Prior to commencement of the development, a 
detailed scheme for the disposal surface water, to include the final surface water 
discharge rate shall be submitted and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  Thereafter the development shall take place in accordance with the 
approved details.  
         Reason: This information is required from the outset to demonstrate that 
the proposed development would not increase flood risk in accordance with 
NPPF. 
 
10.    Prior to occupation of the development details of the maintenance regime 
for the surface water drainage infrastructure and contact details for the company 
responsible for this work, must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To ensure that the proposed development would not increase 
flood risk in accordance with NPPF. 
 
11. Desk Study and Method Statement CON003 * 

Page 31



 

 
12. Site Investigation CON004 * 

 
13. Remediation Method Statement CON005 * 

 
14. Validation Report CON006 * 

 
15. Unexpected Hotspots CON007 * 

 
 
16.    Prior to occupation of the development, a noise scheme to address the 
road traffic noise arising from Norfolk Street and Stephenson Street and external 
noise arising from neighbouring commercial buildings must be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The sound attenuation 
scheme must be in accordance with BS8233 and the World Health Organisation 
community noise guidelines and must ensure that all habitable rooms are 
provided with sound attenuation measures  to give a resultant noise level of 
below 30 dB LAeq and maximum noise level of 45dB for bedrooms and 35 dB 
LAeq for living rooms.  External gardens must meet the world health organisation 
community noise level for outside spaces to be below 50 dB LAeq.  The scheme 
shall thereafter be implemented before the development is first occupied in 
accordance with the approved details and permanently retained. 
         Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of the nearby residents 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and 
National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
17.    Prior to occupation of the development, a ventilation scheme must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
scheme must ensure an appropriate standard of comfort is achieved to prevent 
overheating and ensure internal noise levels with windows closed comply with 
BS8233 and the WHO community noise standards at night, namely a minimum of 
night time equivalent noise level of 30 dB (23:00 hours to 07:00 hours)  and 
Maximum noise level of 45dB and daytime equivalent noise level of 35dB (07:00 
hours to 23:00 hours) in bedrooms and daytime equivalent noise level (23:00 
hours to 07:00  hours) of 35 dB in living rooms. Where the internal noise levels 
are not achievable, with windows open, due to the external noise environment, 
an alternative mechanical ventilation system must be installed, equivalent to 
System 4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical heat recovery (MVHR) 
system, that addresses thermal comfort to reduce the need to open windows, 
unless an overheating assessment is provided to verify that there are no 
overheating risks. The alternative ventilation system must not compromise the 
facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. Where an overheating 
assessment is provided this must be carried in accordance to the current CIBSE 
guidance.  Where the property is subject to a risk of overheating an alternative 
ventilation or cooling system must be provided that is designed to achieve the 
levels in the current CIBSE guidance. The scheme shall thereafter be 
implemented before the development is first occupied in accordance with the 
approved details and permanently retained. 
         Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of the nearby residents 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 32



 

 
18.    The residential accommodation located adjacent to the Bell and Bucket 
Public House, shall not be occupied until a noise assessment has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and a 
scheme of sound insulation works have been installed. The noise assessment 
shall identify the residential plots that require a scheme of sound insulation works 
to be installed for mitigating noise arising from the public house.  Such a scheme 
of works shall be capable of restricting noise breakout from the commercial use 
at the Bell and Bucket Public House to all adjacent residential accommodation to 
levels complying with the following: 
o          All habitable rooms : NR20 
o          All habitable rooms: LAFmax  45dB, max 10 events  
Note: Noise rating curves should be measured as an LZeq(15 mins) at octave 
band centre frequencies 31.5Hz to 8kHz). 
Where the above noise criteria cannot be achieved with windows partially open, a 
system of alternative acoustically treated mechanical ventilation, such as 
mechanical heat recovery (MVHR) system, should be provided to all habitable 
rooms, that addresses thermal comfort and purge ventilation requirements to 
reduce the need to open windows. The alternative ventilation system must not 
compromise the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels.  The 
scheme shall thereafter be implemented before the development is first occupied 
in accordance with the approved details and permanently retained. 
Reason: In order to protect the residential amenity of the nearby residents having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
19.    Notwithstanding condition 1, prior to the construction of the development 
above damp proof course level, a schedule and/or samples of construction and 
surfacing materials and finishes shall be submitted and approved in writing by the 
local planning authority.  Thereafter the development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To secure a satisfactory external appearance having regard to the 
NPPF and policy DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
20.    Within one month from the commencement of the development or any 
operations such as site excavation works and site clearance (including site strip), 
a fully detailed landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The trees shall be specified to sizes and locations 
as shown on the Landscape Strategy Plan (drawing 1609-1-1 Rev E) unless in 
agreement with the Planning Authority. Tree species will need to include a 
number of native trees. Thereafter, the landscape scheme shall be planted in 
accordance with the approved details and to a standard in accordance with the 
relevant recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014. The works shall be 
carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 
accordance with the timetable agreed with the Local Planning Authority.  Any 
plants that die, are removed or become seriously damaged or defective within 
five years of planting shall be replaced in the next available planting season with 
others of similar size and species.  The agreed landscaping shall be maintained 
for a minimum of five years in accordance with a maintenance schedule that 
must be submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority for the 
purposes of discharging this condition. 

Page 33



 

         Reason: In the interests of amenity, biodiversity and to ensure a 
satisfactory standard of landscaping having regard to policies DM5.9 and DM5.5 
of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
21.    Prior to installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, a 
lighting scheme must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  Lighting should be limited to low level lighting, avoiding the 
use of high intensity security lighting in order to avoid affecting the site's 
suitability for bats. 
         The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved scheme. 
         Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and to ensure that local wildlife 
populations are protected in the interests of ecology, having regard to the NPPF 
and Policies DM5.19 and DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan. 
 
22.    No vegetation removal shall take place during the bird nesting season 
(March-August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist has 
confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works commencing. 
         Reason: In the interest of biodiversity and landscaping having regard to 
policy DM5.5 and DM 5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 2017. 
 
23.    3no. bird boxes must be provided in suitable locations within the 
development site.  Details of bird box specification and locations must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 
weeks of development commencing on site and thereafter installed in 
accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology, having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan. 
 
24.    3no. bat boxes must be provided in suitable locations within the 
development site.  Details of bird box specification and locations must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 
weeks of development commencing on site and thereafter installed in 
accordance with the approved details. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology, having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan. 
 
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
The Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively with the applicant 
to identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the 
proposal comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the 
development plan. These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been 
secured by planning condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore 
implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 

Page 34



 

 
Informatives 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
Contact ERH Construct Highway Access  (I05) 
 
Contact ERH Works to Footway  (I08) 
 
No Doors Gates to Project Over Highways  (I10) 
 
Contact ERH Erect Scaffolding on Rd  (I12) 
 
Do Not Obstruct Highway Build Materials  (I13) 
 
Street Naming and numbering  (I45) 
 
Highway Inspection before dvlpt  (I46) 
 
Due to the age of the building there is the potential for it to contain asbestos.  A 
pre demolition asbestos survey must be carried out and any asbestos removed 
accordingly by suitably licensed contractors prior to site redevelopment. 
 
  

Page 35



 

 
 
 

 

 
Application reference: 21/00029/FUL 
Location: Unicorn House, Stephenson Street, North Shields  
Proposal: Creation of 28 units (Use Class C3) comprising of 22 town 
houses and 6 apartments, together with vehicle parking and associated 
works 

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence Number 
0100016801 

 

Date: 30.03.2021 

 

Page 36



 

Appendix 1 – 21/00029/FUL 
Item 1 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Internal Consultees 
1.1 Highway Network Manager 
1.2 This application is for the creation of 28 units, comprising of 22 town houses 
and 6 apartments, together with vehicle parking and associated works.  The town 
houses will have driveways with direct access onto Norfolk Street & Stephenson 
Street with additional parking to the rear via an access from Stephenson Street.  
The apartments are accessed via another separate access from Stephenson 
Street. 
 
1.3 An appropriate level of parking will be provided and whilst some existing on-
street provision will be lost from Norfolk Street & Stephenson Street and the 
council's Regeneration Team have confirmed that the loss of this parking will not 
significantly impact on the overall town centre plan.  The site has excellent links 
with public transport and cycle parking is proposed.  Conditional approval is 
recommended.  
 
1.4 Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
1.5 The applicant will be required to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement 
for the following works: 
New car park accesses 
Individual footway crossings 
Upgrade of footpaths abutting the site 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 
 
1.6 Conditions: 
ACC11 - New Access: Access prior to Occ 
PAR04 - Veh: Parking, Garaging before Occ 
REF01 - Refuse Storage: Detail, Provide Before Occ 
SIT07 - Construction Method Statement (Major) 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until a scheme for the following off-
site highway works has been submitted to and approved by in writing the Local 
Planning Authority: 
New car park accesses 
Individual footway crossings 
Upgrade of footpaths abutting the site 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 

Page 37



 

The scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details and 
retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interest of highway safety 
 
1.7 Informatives: 
I05 - Contact ERH: Construct Highway Access 
I08 - Contact ERH: Works to footway. 
I10 - No Doors/Gates to Project over Highways 
I12 - Contact ERH Erect Scaffolding on Rd 
I13 - Don't obstruct Highway, Build Materials 
I45 - Street Naming & Numbering 
I46 - Highway Inspection before dvlpt 
 
1.8 Local Lead Flood Authority 
1.9 I have carried out a review of planning application 21/00029/FUL.  I can 
confirm in principle I have no objections to the proposals as the applicant will be 
providing surface water attenuation on site via the use of an underground 
attenuation tank and permeable paving and will be restricting the discharge rate 
to 5l/s before discharging into local sewer network. I note the permeable paving 
on the submitted drawings does not appear to be linked to the surface water 
drainage network.  The applicant should confirm that these areas will have 
positive drainage linked to them as the underlying ground conditions will not allow 
for infiltration. I will also require confirmation as to who will be responsible for the 
long-term maintenance of the areas of permeable paving and attenuation tank. 
 
1.10 I would recommend the following conditions are placed on the application; 
- Detailed drainage design to be submitted to LLFA for approval prior to 
construction. 
- Details of the appointed Suds management company to be provided to LLFA 
upon completion of development. 
 
1.11 Manager of Environmental Health (Contaminated Land) 
1.12 I have read the Phase 1 report submitted with this application and I note that 
this states the following: 
 
“It has been assumed that current buildings will be subjected to a pre demolition 
asbestos survey, and any asbestos removed accordingly by suitably licensed 
contractors prior to site redevelopment. 
 
There is a potential for contamination to be present on the site from former 
vehicle refuelling and servicing, and from demolition of buildings.” 
 
1.13 As potential contaminant linkages have been identified the following must be 
applied: 
 
Con 003 
Con 004 
Con 005 
Con 006 
Con 007 
 

Page 38



 

1.14 Due to the age of the building there is the potential for it to contain asbestos.  
A pre demolition asbestos survey must be carried out and any asbestos removed 
accordingly by suitably licensed contractors prior to site redevelopment. 
 
1.15 Manager of Environmental Health (Pollution) 
1.16 The site is located within the town centre area of North Shields with 
commercial and residential properties in close proximity to the site.  I am 
concerned about road traffic noise affecting the proposed residential properties, 
noise from any external plant installed at nearby commercial units, noise arising 
from the street late at night and noise arising from customer voices and amplified 
music arising from the Bell and Bucket Public House. There may also be external 
plant consisting of extraction plant, air conditioning units and chiller units located 
to the rear of the public house. 
 
1.17 No noise assessment has been provided with this application which will be 
required to assess the external noise sources. The applicant has advised 
difficulties in obtaining representative data to enable the noise assessment to be 
provided at the application stage. The noise assessment is necessary to ensure 
appropriate sound mitigation measures are provided within the build design for 
the residential development.    
 
1.18 It is not clear whether the public house has a rear beer garden, and this may 
lead to potential restrictions on the activities of the public house as the 
introduction of residential housing will cause a potential nuisance to arise.  
Environmental Health has historically received complaints about customer noise 
from similar premises and therefore the noise assessment needs to ensure that 
potential noise arising from the public house is fully assessed to ensure 
appropriate mitigation measures are provided.   
 
1.19 I note that the layout drawing shows that the proposed housing will have a 
gable end directly adjacent to the public house.  I have viewed the external 
boundary wall of the public house and note that this is at a minimum height of 
around 4-5 metres, this will help screen noise arising from any beer garden for 
the new build gardens adjacent to the site.  However, noise may still arise from 
noise breakout from the building itself as live music is played at the premises and 
this will affect habitable rooms for those properties located to the southern 
boundary and it will be necessary for sound mitigation measures to be 
incorporated for those habitable rooms. I would therefore recommend that the 
noise scheme for the housing affected by the public house incorporates a noise 
scheme that ensure that habitable rooms meet the NR20 criteria. 
 
1.20 The noise scheme will need to include for a traffic noise assessment, which 
will need to be carried out based on the memorandum of road traffic noise and 
consideration should be given to ensure that gardens and internal rooms located 
to the north of the site are provided with appropriate noise mitigation to ensure 
good standards of internal noise levels in accordance with BS8233 to give a 
resultant noise level of below 30 dB LAeq and maximum noise level of 45dB  for 
bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq for living rooms is achieved  All external gardens will 
need to meet the world health organisation community noise level for outside 
spaces to achieve noise levels below 50 dB LAeq.  
 

Page 39



 

1.21 If planning approval is to be given I would recommend the following 
conditions. 
 
- Prior to occupation, submit and implement on approval of the local Planning 
Authority a noise scheme to address the road traffic noise arising from  Norfolk 
Street and Stephenson Street and external noise arising from neighbouring 
commercial buildings.  Details of the sound attenuating scheme in accordance 
with BS8233 and the World Health Organisation community noise guidelines 
must be provided to show that all habitable rooms are provided with sound 
attenuation measures  to give a resultant noise level of below 30 dB LAeq and 
maximum noise level of 45dB for bedrooms and 35 dB LAeq for living rooms is 
achieved and external gardens  meet  the world health organisation community 
noise level for outside spaces to below 50 dB LAeq.   
 
- Prior to occupation, submit details of the ventilation scheme for approval in 
writing and thereafter implemented to ensure an appropriate standard of comfort 
to prevent overheating and ensure internal noise levels with windows closed 
comply with BS8233 and the WHO community noise standards at night namely a 
minimum of night time equivalent noise level of 30 dB ( 23:00 hours to 07:00 
hours  and Maximum noise level of 45dB and daytime equivalent noise level of 
35dB (07:00 hours to 23:00 hours) in bedrooms and daytime equivalent noise 
level (23:00 hours to 07:00  hours) of 35 dB in living rooms. Where the internal 
noise levels are not achievable, with windows open, due to the external noise 
environment, an alternative mechanical ventilation system must be installed, 
equivalent to System 4 of Approved Document F, such as mechanical heat 
recovery (MVHR) system that addresses thermal comfort to reduce the need to 
open windows, unless an overheating assessment is provided to verify that there 
are no overheating risks. The alternative ventilation system must not compromise 
the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. Where an overheating 
assessment is provided this must be carried in accordance to the current CIBSE 
guidance.  Where the property is subject to a risk of overheating an alternative 
ventilation or cooling system must be provided that is designed to achieve the 
levels in the current CIBSE guidance. 
 
- The residential accommodation, located adjacent to the Bell and Bucket Public 
House, hereby permitted shall not be occupied until a noise assessment has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and a 
scheme of sound insulation works has been installed and thereafter retained.  
Such a scheme of works shall be capable of restricting noise breakout from the 
commercial use at the Bell and Bucket Public House to all adjacent residential 
accommodation to levels complying with the following: 
o All habitable rooms : NR20 
o All habitable rooms: LAFmax  45dB, max 10 events  
Note: Noise rating curves should be measured as an LZeq(15 mins) at octave 
band centre frequencies 31.5Hz to 8kHz). 
Where the above noise criteria cannot be achieved with windows partially open, 
include a system of alternative acoustically treated mechanical ventilation, such 
as mechanical heat recovery (MVHR) system, should be provided to all habitable 
rooms, that addresses thermal comfort and purge ventilation requirements to 
reduce the need to open windows. The alternative ventilation system must not 
compromise the facade insulation or the resulting internal noise levels. 

Page 40



 

 
HOU05 
HOU04 
SIT03 
 
1.22 Planning Policy (Heritage and Design) 
1.23 Comments in respect of the original proposal: 
1.24 The proposed application is on the site of the former Unicorn House in North 
Shields. The site borders Northumberland Square conservation area and forms 
part of its setting. 
 
1.25 The overall design and layout is well considered and successfully responds 
to the site and the surrounding area. Units front the existing streets and have 
complimentary landscaping proposed. Refuse is logically located to the rear of 
units. The units respond to the topography of the site and step up the street. The 
detailed design is of a contemporary nature with feature windows and brickwork.  
There are a number of different house types proposed which when combined 
create an attractive street 
scene. Car parking is broken up with landscaping comprising of a mixture of 
specimen trees, shrubs and hedge planting. 
 
1.26 It is proposed to use 3 different contrasting colour bricks to add interest and 
variation. There are some concerns about the grey brick walls to the front of 
properties in combination with the red and buff bricks proposed for the units. A 
more restraint palette of materials would be more in keeping with the area with 
boundary walls matching the brick colour of the units. 
 
1.27 Boundary treatments have been submitted with the application. Some 
amendments are required to these. On plots 7 and 8, a 1800 high timber fence is 
not supported to the front of the properties. 
 
1.28 It is unclear what the proposed boundary treatment is to the side of plot 28. 
Boundary treatments are not shown for the private amenity space for units 1 and 
4. 
 
1.29 Due to the large extent of timber fencing to the rear of the properties it is 
advised that some brick piers are added between units to help break up the 
overall amount of timber fencing. 
 
1.30 Overall, subject to the amendments above, the scheme is supported. 
 
1.31 Comments in respect of the amended plans: 
1.32 I have no further comments. 
 
1.33 Landscape Architect 
1.34 This application is for the creation of 28 units comprising of 22 town houses 
and 6 apartments, together with vehicle parking and associated works. 
 
1.35 Unicorn House is located in North Shields between Stephenson Street and 
Norfolk Street. Northumberland Square conservation area is located to the west 
of the application site and covers all of Northumberland Square and Howard 

Page 41



 

Street. No part of the site falls within the conservation area boundary although it 
is within close proximity. Unicorn House is a large office block, with associated 
car parking which has been vacant for several years. Permission has been 
granted for its demolition.  There are a number of mixed species trees around the 
site, many located to the boundaries of the site with neighbouring streets. There 
are level changes across the site, accommodated with retaining features and 
graded land. The proposed development will be accessed from the existing road 
network with parking to the front of properties on Stephenson Street and Norfolk 
Street and some parking to the rear of properties accessed via an existing lane 
leading to east Norfolk Street. A small parking court is proposed to serve the 
apartments facing onto Suez Street. 
 
1.36 The site is not located in a wildlife corridor or designated open space as 
determined by the Local Plan.  However, there are a number trees on the site. 
Policy DM5.9 applies to this site which seeks protect areas of existing woodland, 
trees, hedgerow and landscape features. It also seeks to secure new tree 
planting. 
 
1.37 The trees have been surveyed and evaluated for the purposes of British 
Standard 5837:2012 ‘Trees in relation to design, demolition & construction’, 
details of which are included in an arboricultural impact assessment (AIA). 
Twenty eight trees and 1no tree group are present on the site. None of the trees 
are identified as category A specimens, although 12no trees have been identified 
as category B trees (moderate retention). The proposal seeks to remove all of the 
existing trees (T1 to T28 and group 1) to facilitate the proposed development. 
 
1.38 The trees on the site contribute to the amenity of the local landscape and 
category B trees are considered worthy of retention and incorporation into a 
development. The existing trees are sizeable and visually prominent from public 
footpaths and highways, are an important feature in urban landscapes and make 
a positive contribution to the character and quality of our landscape as well as 
enhancing biodiversity. The loss of the trees will be a visual change to amenity 
and it is unfortunate that some of the existing tree structure could not be retained 
to meet the requirements of Policy DM5.9.  However, a number of trees appear 
to be struggling, likely due to the hostile environment in which they find 
themselves and in order to meet the requirements of DM5.9, a landscape 
strategy plan has been submitted that provides a comprehensive planting 
scheme incorporating new tree planting. This provides a new opportunity for 
improved landscape and streetscape enhancement. 
 
1.39 A revised Landscape Strategy Plan (drawing 1609-1-1 Rev E) provides the 
planting of 26no individual trees (a loss of 2no.) but with tree species that will 
provide a level of visual impact and amenity. This includes the planting of 4no 
semi mature street trees to the highway verges to Norfolk Street which is now 
supported by NTC Highways. The trees to the play street have been revised to 
birch which will provide increased visual amenity to this area. All other trees have 
been proposed at a minimum size of 14 to 16cm girth. 
 
1.40 The inclusion of larger street trees to Norfolk Street (larger trees, less 
numbers) and increased tree size elsewhere is sufficient mitigation for the loss of 
trees on the site and meets the requirements of the Local Plan Policy DM5.9. 

Page 42



 

 
1.41 Conditions: 
- Within one month from the start on site of any operations such as site 
excavation works, site clearance (including site strip) for the development, a fully 
detailed landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The tree shall be specified to sizes and locations as 
shown on the Landscape Strategy Plan (drawing 1609-1-1 Rev E) unless in 
agreement with the Planning Authority. Tree species will need to include a 
number of native trees. Thereafter, the Landscape scheme shall be planted in 
accordance with the approved details and to a standard in accordance with the 
relevant recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014. The works shall be 
carried out prior to the occupation of any part of the development or in 
accordance with the timetable agreed with the Local Planning Authority. 
 
- Should any plant, within a period of five years after planting, is removed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective, it shall be replaced with others of 
species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the first available 
planting season thereafter. No development shall take place until a schedule of 
landscape maintenance for a minimum period of five years including details of 
the arrangements for its implementation has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in 
accordance with the approved schedule. 
 
1.42 Biodiversity Officer 
1.43 The above application is for the creation of 28 units with vehicle parking at 
the site of Unicorn House in North Shields. 
 
1.44 Bat Risk Assessment: The scheme will result in the demolition of a building 
and loss of trees on site to facilitate the scheme, therefore, a bat risk assessment 
has been undertaken to assess the site for the risk of supporting roosting bats. 
 
1.45 The Bat Risk Assessment concludes that the building and trees within the 
site are 
considered to be of negligible suitability for use by roosting bats with no potential 
roost 
features identified during the survey. The trees within the site also provide some 
opportunities for nesting birds, although no evidence was recorded during the 
survey. 
 
1.46 Landscape Strategy: The Landscape Strategy is generally ornamental with 
no native trees indicated within the scheme. It is therefore, recommended that 
some native trees are incorporated into the planting scheme to provide some 
additional biodiversity value within the site. A landscape condition should be 
attached to the application to ensure details of landscaping are submitted for 
approval. 
 
1.47 Coastal Designated Sites: The scheme will also result in an increase in 
residential units in North Tyneside that may impact coastal designated sites due 
to an increase in recreational disturbance. It is, therefore, recommended that an 
appropriate financial contribution is secured towards the delivery of a Coastal 
Mitigation Service in accordance with the Councils Coastal Mitigation SPD, to 

Page 43



 

mitigate these recreational impacts. This contribution should be agreed with the 
LPA prior to the determination of the application. 
 
1.48 Conditions: 
 
- External lighting that may affect the site’s suitability for bats will be avoided. If 
required this will be limited to low level lighting, avoiding the use of high intensity 
security lighting. 
 
- No tree removal or building demolition shall take place during the bird nesting 
season 
(March- August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist has 
confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works commencing. 
 
- 3no. bird boxes will be provided in suitable locations within the development 
site. 
Details of bird box specification and locations must be submitted to and approved 
in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 weeks of development 
commencing 
on site and will be installed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
- 3no. bat boxes will be provided in suitable locations within the development site. 
Details of bat box specification and locations must be submitted to and approved 
in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority within 4 weeks of development 
commencing 
on site and will be installed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
- Within one month from the start on site of any operations such as site 
excavation 
works, site clearance (including site strip) for the development, a fully detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning 
Authority. The landscape scheme shall include details and proposed timing of all 
new 
tree and shrub planting and ground preparation noting the species and sizes for 
all 
new plant species (trees to be a minimum 12-14cm girth). The landscaping 
scheme 
shall be implemented in accordance with the approved details within the first 
available planting season following the approval of details. All hard and soft 
landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details and 
to 
a standard in accordance with the relevant recommendations of British Standard 
8545:2014. Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, 
are 
removed, die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced with 
others of species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the first 
available planting season thereafter. No development shall take place until a 
schedule of landscape maintenance for a minimum period of five years including 

Page 44



 

details of the arrangements for its implementation has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved schedule 
 
2.0 External Consultees 
2.1 Northumbria Police 
2.2 I have noted the plans and we do not have any objection to the application, 
we do however have the following comments: 
 
2.3 We have noted the boundary treatments and these are acceptable, especially 
to the rear of the properties overlooking the communal parking, this will allow for 
natural surveillance of vehicles.  Can it be clarified if rear garden boundaries will 
have timber gates installed, allowing access to the rear car parking area, if 
installed these need to be lockable gates and the same height as the boundary 
fence. 
 
2.4 Boundary treatments to be clarified for Plot No’s 1 – 6 and 28, as it is not 
clear from the proposed boundary treatment plan what these should be. 
 
2.5 Street lighting in the communal parking court should comply with BS 5489-
1:2013 
 
2.6 Northumbrian Water 
2.7 We would have no issues to raise with the above application, provided the 
application is approved and carried out within strict accordance with the 
submitted document entitled “Surface Water Drainage Assessment”. The 
proposals in this document align with our pre-planning enquiry advice provided. 
 
2.8 We would therefore request that the following condition be attached to any 
planning approval, so that the development is implemented in accordance with 
this document: 
 
CONDITION: Development shall be implemented in line with the drainage 
scheme contained within the submitted document entitled “Surface Water 
Drainage Assessment” dated “December 2020”. The drainage scheme shall 
ensure that foul flows discharge to the combined sewer at manhole 6506 and 
ensure that surface water discharges to the combined sewer at manhole 6506. 
The surface water discharge rate shall not exceed the available capacity of 
20l/sec that has been identified in this 
sewer. The final surface water discharge rate shall be agreed by the Lead Local 
Flood Authority. 
REASON: To prevent the increased risk of flooding from any sources in 
accordance with the NPPF. 
 
2.9 Tyne and Wear Archaeology Officer 
2.10 I have checked the site against the HER and historic maps. The site was 
partly occupied by a ropery in the early 19th century (HER 4568 
https://www.twsitelines.info/SMR/4568) but was otherwise undeveloped. It was 
developed for terraced housing and a tram depot in the mid 19th century. These 
were demolished by the 1960s and the present Unicorn house (Government 
Buildings) constructed. 

Page 45



 

 
2.11 Previous phases of building and demolition are likely to have truncated any 
earlier deposits and structures. I therefore consider the site to have low 
archaeological potential, and no archaeological work is required. 
 
2.12 Natural England 
2.13 Summary of Natural England’s Advice 
Internationally and nationally designated sites – no objection subject to 
appropriate mitigation 
 
2.14 This development falls within the ‘zone of influence’ for coastal sites 
designated at a national and international level as Sites of Special Scientific 
Interest and Special Protection Areas/ Special Areas of Conservation/ Ramsar 
sites. Since this application will result in a net increase in residential 
accommodation, impacts to the designated sites may result from increased 
recreational disturbance. 
 
2.15 Northumberland and North Tyneside Councils operate a Coastal Mitigation 
Service to mitigate for potential impacts from increased recreational disturbance 
resulting from increased residential development and tourism activities within this 
zone. 
 
2.16 Subject to appropriate mitigation being secured in line with the details of this 
Service, Natural England is satisfied there will be no damage or disturbance to 
the interest features of these sites. 
 
2.17 Although your authority has measures in place to manage these potential 
impacts through the agreed strategic solution which we consider to be 
ecologically sound, Natural England’s advice is that this proposed development, 
and the application of these measures to avoid or reduce the likely harmful 
effects from it, may need to be formally checked and confirmed by your Authority, 
as the competent authority, via an appropriate assessment in view of the 
European Site’s conservation objectives and in accordance with the 
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended). 
 
2.18 This is because Natural England notes that the recent People Over Wind 
Ruling by the Court of Justice of the European Union concluded that, when 
interpreting article 6(3) of the Habitats Directive, it is not appropriate when 
determining whether or not a plan or project is likely to have a significant effect 
on a site and requires an appropriate assessment, to take account of measures 
intended to avoid or reduce the harmful effects of the plan or project on that site. 
The ruling also concluded that such measures can, however, be considered 
during an appropriate assessment to determine whether a plan or project will 
have an adverse effect on the integrity of the European site. Your Authority 
should have regard to this and may wish to seek its own legal advice to fully 
understand the implications of this ruling in this context. 
 
2.19 Natural England advises that it is a matter for your Authority to decide 
whether an appropriate assessment of this proposal is necessary in light of this 
ruling. In accordance with the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 

Page 46



 

2017 (as amended), Natural England must be consulted on any appropriate 
assessment your Authority may decide to make. 
 
2.20 Natural England’s advice on other natural environment issues is set out 
below. 
 
2.21 Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones: 
The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural 
England on “Development in or likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” 
(Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be 
used during the planning application validation process to help local planning 
authorities decide when to consult Natural England on developments likely to 
affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from the 
data.gov.uk website. 
 
3.0 Representations 
3.1 1no. representation has been received.   
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety. 
- As Church Secretary of St Columba's URC I would like to point out that at on a 
number 
of occasions members of our church have had near misses with cars coming out 
of the flats in Norfolk Street and coming up over onto Northumberland Square. 
Norfolk street is supposed to be a one-way system. Please could you make 
signage clearer so that everyone is clear which way to go before there is a 
serious accident. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 
Application 
No: 

20/01741/FUL Author: Maxine Ingram 

Date valid: 23 October 2020 : 0191 643 6322 
Target 
decision date: 

22 January 2021 Ward: Valley 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Plot 11, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, West 
Allotment, NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE 
 
Proposal: Erection of petrol filling station (Sui Generis) with associated 
retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee shop (Use Class E) with 
associated car parking, service arrangements, landscaping and access 
including the provision of a new roundabout (Additional information 
submitted 17.12.2020)  
 
Applicant: BP Oil UK Ltd & Highbridge Business Park Ltd, C/o Agent      
 
Agent: Lichfields, Mr Robert Dibden The St Nicholas Building  St Nicholas Street  
Newcastle Upon Tyne  NE1 1RF 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Committee is recommended to indicate that it is minded to approve the 
application and  
 
a) authorise the Head of Environment, Housing and Leisure to determine 
the application subject to: 

i. the conditions set out below and the amendment to, addition or 
omission of any other condition considered necessary; 

ii. the applicant entering into a legal agreement under Section 106 of 
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following: 

• Travel Plan monitoring fee £1, 250.00 (£250.00 per annum) 

• £18, 750.00 ecology and biodiversity: towards mitigating the 
impacts on the Local Wildlife Site.  

 
b) authorise that the Head of Law and Governance and the Head of 
Environment, Housing and Leisure to undertake all necessary procedures 
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 to secure the following 
highways improvements:  
Provision of roundabout new accesses 
Improved footpath links 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



 

 
c) authorise that the Head of Law and Governance and the Head of 
Environment, Housing and Leisure to undertake all necessary procedures 
under Section 247 and 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to 
formally close all roads and footpaths within the site that are no longer 
required. 
 
INFORMATION 
 
1.0  Summary Of Key Issues & Conclusions 
 
The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-Principle of the development, 
-Impact on the amenity of surrounding occupiers and businesses, 
-Impact on the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area, 
-Impact on highway safety; and,  
-Other issues.  
 
1.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be 
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material 
considerations indicate otherwise.  Members need to consider whether this 
application accords with the development plan and take into account any other 
material considerations in reaching their decision. 
 
2.0 Description of the Site 
2.1 The site to which this application relates is an area of vacant land, measuring 
approximately 2.0 hectares (ha). It is designated as available employment land 
under policy S2.2 of the Local Plan (LP).   
 
2.2 The site is located to the south of New York Road (A191) and east of The 
Silverlink North. Immediately to the east of the site is the Silverlink wagonway 
and a disused railway. A designated Local Wildlife Site (LWS) and Local Nature 
Reserve (LNR), Silverlink Park and Wagonway, lie adjacent to the site. Members 
are advised that part of the LWS is located within the redline boundary of this 
application.  
 
2.3 The site itself sits at a lower level than New York Road with a steep 
embankment to the northern part of the site. Most of the site comprises mown 
semi-improved grassland, with boundary planning that includes ornamental 
planting and semi-mature trees along the western and northern boundary of the 
site. Hedgerow and trees are sited along the eastern boundary of the site, this 
landscaping is fragmented by informal routes from the site onto the adjacent 
wagonway. A strip of land along the southern boundary comprises of scattered 
and dense scrub, coarse grassland and marshy grassland. This area is within the 
boundary of the Silverlink Park LWS.  
 
3.0 Description of the Proposed Development 
3.1 Planning permission is sought for the construction of a petrol filling station 
(Sui Generis) with associated retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee 
shop (Use Class E) with associated car parking, service arrangements, 
landscaping and access including the provision of a new roundabout.  

Page 50



 

 
4.0 Relevant Planning History  
07/00959/FUL - The erection of 3 office buildings with associated car parking 
landscaping – Withdrawn 23.05.2007 
 
07/00380/FUL - Access road and footpath – Withdrawn 02.04.2007 
 
00/01111/OUT - Uses within classes B1(Business), B2(General Industry), B8 
(Storage or Distribution) of the Town and Country Planning (Use of Classes) 
Order 1987 – Permitted 08.09.2000 
 
5.0 Development Plan 
5.1 North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
 
6.0 Government Policies 
6.1 National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (February 2019) 
 
6.2 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) (As amended) 
 
6.3 Planning applications must be determined in accordance with the 
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. The NPPF 
is a material consideration in the determination of all applications. It requires 
Local Planning Authorities (LPAs) to apply a presumption in favour of sustainable 
development in determining development proposals. Due weight should still be 
attached to Development Plan policies according to the degree to which any 
policy is consistent with the NPPF.  
 
 
 
PLANNING OFFICERS REPORT 
 
7.0 Detailed Planning Considerations 
7.1 The main issues for Members to consider in this case are: 
-Principle of the development,  
-Impact on the amenity of surrounding occupiers and businesses,  
-Impact on the character and appearance of the site and the surrounding area,  
-Impact on traffic, parking and highway safety; and,  
-Other issues.  
 
7.2 Consultations responses and representations received because of the 
publicity given to this application are set out in the appendix to this report. 
 
8.0 Principle of the development 
8.1 The Local Plan (LP) was adopted in July 2017 to guide development in the 
period up to 2032. The council acknowledges that the policies contained within 
the LP predate the publication of the revised NPPF however, it is clear from 
paragraph 213 of the NPPF that: “However, existing policies should not be 
considered out-of-date simply because they were adopted or made prior to the 
publication of this Framework. Due weight should be given to them, according to 
their degree of consistency with this Framework (the closer the policies in the 
plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the weight that may be given).” 

Page 51



 

The council considers that the local plan policies set out in this report are 
consistent with the NPPF and can be afforded significant weight.  
 
8.2 The NPPF makes it clear that the purpose of the planning system is to 
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. Achieving sustainable 
development means that the planning system has three overarching objectives: 
an economic objective; a social objective; and an environmental objective. 
Planning policies and decisions should play an active role in guiding development 
towards sustainable solutions, but in doing so should take local circumstances 
into account, to reflect the character, needs and opportunities of each area.  
 
8.3 The NPPF paragraph 11 makes it clear that plans and decisions should apply 
a presumption in favour of sustainable development. However, the presumption 
in favour of sustainable development does not change the statutory status of the 
development plan as the starting point for decision making. The NPPF paragraph 
12 states “Where a planning application conflicts with an up-to-date development 
plan…. permission should not normally be granted. Local Planning Authorities 
(LPA’s) may take decisions that depart from an up-to-date development plan, but 
only if material considerations in a particular case indicate that the plan should 
not be followed”.  
 
8.4 Loss of employment land 
8.5 The NPPF paragraph 80 states that planning decisions should help create 
the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt.  Significant 
weight should be placed on the need to support economic growth and 
productivity, considering both local business needs and wider opportunities for 
development. 
 
8.6 Policy S1.1 ‘Spatial Strategy for Sustainable Development’ seeks to ensure 
North Tyneside's requirements for homes and jobs can be met with adequate 
provision of infrastructure, and in a manner that enables improvements to quality 
of life, reduces the need to travel and responds to the challenges of climate 
change. Amongst other matters this includes locating employment development 
within the main urban area with access to existing infrastructure and locating 
most retail and leisure activities within town centres. 
 
8.7 Policy DM1.3 ‘Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development’ states: 
“The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to jointly find solutions that 
mean proposals can be approved wherever possible that improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions in the area through the development 
management process and application of the policies of the Local Plan. Where 
there are no policies relevant to the application, or relevant policies are out of 
date at the time of making the decision, then the Council will grant permission 
unless material considerations indicate otherwise – taking into account whether:  
a. Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and 
demonstrably outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the 
NPPF taken as a whole; or  
b. Specific policies in the NPPF indicate that development should be restricted.” 
 

Page 52



 

8.8 Policy S2.1 ‘Economic Growth Strategy’ states proposals that make an 
overall contribution towards sustainable economic growth, prosperity and 
employment in North Tyneside will be encouraged.  
 
8.9 Policy S2.2 ‘Provision of Land for Employment Development’ seeks to ensure 
an attractive and flexible supply of employment land is available to deliver the 
Council's strategy for economic prosperity and job growth and investment a total 
of 822ha of currently occupied or available employment land is recognised of 
particular value to the economy. This policy identifies the 150ha land available for 
development to 2032. A further 30ha identified as reserved land, is within the 
curtilage of existing businesses and is therefore treated as potential expansion 
land for businesses.  
 
8.10 Policy DM2.3 ‘Development Affecting Employment Land and Buildings’ 
states: “The Council will support proposals on employment land, as shown on the 
Policies Map, for new or additional development for uses within use classes B1, 
B2 or B8 or that which is deemed ancillary. Proposals on identified employment 
land or other buildings in use-class B1, B2 or B8 for uses that could conflict with 
the development and regeneration of sites for economic development, will be 
permitted where these proposals would not: a. result in the unacceptable loss of 
operating businesses and jobs; and b. result in an excessive reduction in the 
supply of land for development for employment uses, taking into account the 
overall amount, range, and choice available for the remainder of the plan period; 
and, c. have an adverse impact upon the amenity and operation of neighbouring 
properties and businesses”.  
 
8.11 Objections have been received regarding non-compliance with policy. 
  
8.12 Members are advised that this site is designated as available employment 
land. As with other employment land designated in the LP, the identified 
acceptable uses are Class B1, which now fall under use Class E as of 
September 2020, (offices, light industrial and Research and Development), B2 
(general industrial) and B8 (storage and distribution). The explanatory text to 
Policy DM2.3 seeks to enable flexibility in the use and development of 
employment land whilst ensuring that developments support the overall growth 
and prosperity of North Tyneside.  
 
8.13 To achieve this flexibility Policy DM2.3 seeks to ensure that applications for 
development on employment land are considered based on their impact on 
economic prosperity of North Tyneside, rather than whether the use proposed 
falls within the identified planning uses. This is to ensure sufficient flexible 
opportunities for businesses that are within the identified planning uses are 
retained, but also that full use can be made of the economic potential of land in 
highly sustainable and accessible locations across North Tyneside.  
 
8.14 National policy is clear that local authorities need to plan for future needs of 
economic development, but a balance needs to be struck between making land 
available and reserving land that little likelihood of being taken up, where this is 
the case, other uses can be considered.  
 

Page 53



 

8.15 The applicant has submitted a Planning and Retail Statement to accompany 
their application. Within this statement the applicant considers that this 
development:  
-Would not result in the loss of any existing businesses, jobs or operations within 
the area.   
-Would generate employment opportunities in its own right (creation of direct and 
indirect jobs during construction and once complete generate approximately 41 
full time jobs onsite).  
-Would not undermine the quantative supply of employment land within the 
Borough over the plan period given the need identified through the adopted Local 
Plan’s evidence base and the supply identified.  
-Would not result in a significant qualitative loss of employment land given that 
the site has remained vacant for over 20 years. The sites loss as employment 
land is recognised in the Council’s Local Plan evidence (Housing Land 
Availability Assessment (HLAA) (Plot 137) as being suitable and available for 
residential development).  
-Would not undermine the amenity of surrounding businesses and properties. 
Indeed, the uses proposed would be compatible with the neighbouring uses to 
the west of The Silverlink North and further south on Cobalt Business Park.  
 
8.16 The site is designated as available employment land under Policy S2.2 of 
the LP. The site is located on the northern edge of the wider business park; sited 
on a corner plot adjacent to the local highway network (A191 and The Silverlink 
North). Whilst it would be preferable to retain this site for future employment uses 
as set out in Policy DM2.3, this site has been available for over 20 years with no 
employment development coming forward and the applicant suggests there is no 
indication of any interest in the immediate future.  
 
8.17 The employment land to be lost because of this development, approximately 
2ha, is relatively small in comparison to the overall land allocated for employment 
land (150ha). The applicant has advised that this would equate to less than 
approximately 2% of the total available employment land over the plan period. On 
top of this available employment land, the Council has identified a further 30ha of 
land as reserve employment sites of which this site is part of. It is the view of 
officers, that this is not an excessive reduction in the supply of land for 
development of employment uses, considering the overall amount, range and 
choice available for the remainder of the plan period. This development would not 
result in an unacceptable loss of operational businesses and jobs as the land is 
currently vacant. Consideration must also be given to the fact that this 
development would generate employment opportunities during construction and 
post construction. These employment opportunities tie in with the aims of the 
NPPF. On balance, the loss of employment to retail development would be in 
accordance with the criteria set out in Policy DM2.3. The criteria set out in Policy 
DM2.3 relating to impacts on neighbouring properties and businesses is 
considered in the latter sections of this report.  
 
8.18 Impact on existing centres  
8.19 NPPF paragraph 86 stipulates that local planning authorities should apply a 
sequential test to planning applications for main town centre uses, which are 
neither in an existing centre nor in accordance with an up-to-date plan. Main town 
centre uses should be located in town centres, then in edge of centre locations; 

Page 54



 

and only if suitable sites are not available (or expected to become available 
within a reasonable period) should out of centre sites be considered. 
 
8.20 Paragraph 90 of NPPF states that where an application fails to satisfy the 
sequential test it should be refused. 
 
8.21 National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) advises that the application of 
the test will need to be proportionate and appropriate to any given proposal.  
NPPG also states that there is a requirement to demonstrate flexibility.  If there 
aren’t any suitably sequentially preferable locations, the sequential test is 
passed. 
 
8.22 Policy DM3.4 provides relevant policy criteria in respect of the assessment 
of retail (and other town centre uses) which are proposed and within designated 
centres. This highlights that all such proposals need to pass a sequential test 
which requires the applicant to demonstrate that a proposed development cannot 
be accommodated on any identified sites/properties that are within designated 
centres and also edge of centres or out of centre sites previously occupied by 
appropriate main town centre uses that are readily accessible to Metro stations or 
other transport connections.  
 
8.23 The NPPF sets out clear guidance for Local Authorities through the 
decision-making and plan-making process to ensure adequate provision of 
community services and to guard against unnecessary loss.  
 
8.24 It is considered that Policy DM3.6 ‘Local Facilities’ can be afforded some 
weight. The supporting text to this policy states “To support sustainable 
development in the Borough the Plan supports out-of-centre provision of small-
scale local facilities that could support local communities in appropriate retail and 
leisure uses, without having a significant impact on nearby centres recognised in 
the Centres Hierarchy. Policy S7.10 Community Infrastructure recognises the 
importance of community facilities serving more localised neighbourhood 
catchments and proposals for the loss of such facilities are covered in that 
policy.” 
 
8.25 Objections have been received regarding the need for this type of 
development, non-compliance with policy and the site not being sustainable. It is 
clear from their comments that they consider that there are sufficient local 
facilities within the immediate vicinity of the site.  
 
8.26 This proposal includes main town centre uses. The site lies in an out of 
centre location. The applicant has complied with the relevant policy requirements 
by submitting a sequential test within their supporting documents. This 
information has considered other suitable, available and viable alternatives within 
other centres, including Northumberland Park District Centre and expansion land 
to the west of this District Centre (subject to Policy S3.3), land adjacent to 
Holystone Roundabout, land west of the A19, land off Hotspur South, land west 
of the A186 and land adjacent to the Cobalt Exchange. At the time of carrying out 
their assessment there were no vacant units at the district centre and the vacant 
unit on the expansion land was discounted due to the operational needs of this 
proposal. The other sites within this assessment have been discounted due to 

Page 55



 

their size, location, availability, and policy designation within the LP. Based on 
the evidence provided, officers consider that the proposal would be in 
accordance with Policy DM3.4.  
 
8.27 The applicant has defined their catchment as primarily localised focusing up 
on employees from Cobalt Business park and to some extent the nearby 
residential areas. It would also serve passers-by on the A191 and local road 
network.  
 
8.28 In assessing the potential impact of this proposal on the vitality and viability 
of Northumberland Pak district centre the applicant considers that it is important 
to understand the operational requirements of their scheme. Their scheme is 
intended to attract customers from two key areas: 
-Provide food and drink and petrol filling station for employees of the business 
park by providing facilities that are easily accessible and thus reduce the need to 
travel further afield to other such facilities; and,   
-Attract more general ‘pass-by’ trade from those travelling on the A191 and The 
Silverlink North.  
 
8.29 The applicant has advised that the above reasons underpin the viability of 
the scheme being in this location.  
 
8.30 In considering the scale and turnover of the facilities proposed and the 
limited number of facilities which they would compete with within the district 
centre the application does not give rise to a significant adverse impact upon this 
centre. On this basis, this proposal will not impact on the vitality and viability of 
the district centre which is performing well.  
 
8.31 Officers consider that from a retail planning perspective the development 
complies with Policy DM3.4 and paragraph 86 of the NPPF in terms of the 
sequential approach to site selection. However, consideration must also be given 
to meeting the requirements of Policy DM3.6. It is acknowledged that the site is 
not located within 300m of all buildings located on Cobalt Business Park. 
However, it is sited within reasonable walking distance of the existing buildings 
located to the west side of The Silverlink North and those located further south, 
as well as the existing commercial uses to the east of the site and residential 
estates located within the vicinity of the site. The impacts on neighbouring uses 
will be assessed later in this report however, the site is separated from existing 
commercial uses and residential properties by existing highway infrastructure and 
vegetation. The applicant considers that the development will contribute to social 
inclusion by virtue of its design and layout and compromises sustainable 
development. The issue of impacts on the vitality and viability of existing centres 
has already been addressed.  
 
8.32 Objections have been received regarding climate change and the loss of 
open space for recreational activities.  
 
8.33 The North Tyneside Climate Change Strategy sets outs the Council’s 
priorities and strategy for addressing climate change. LP Policies S1.1 and S1.4 
also refer to climate change. 
 

Page 56



 

8.34 The applicant considers that this proposal will fulfil the social sustainability 
objectives of the NPPF, through the provision of local facilities intended to 
enhance the range of services available to employees of the business park and 
passers-by. The proposal also accommodates cycle storage for staff and cycle 
parking for customers to encourage and electric vehicle charging points. 
Landscaping and sustainable urban drainage systems (SuDS) also form part of 
the overall layout. Landscaping and drainage will be discussed in further detail 
throughout this report.  
 
8.35 Whilst the site is currently undeveloped, it is not formally designated as 
open space. Therefore, the site is not required to meet any shortfall across the 
borough in terms of open space provision. The existing informal routes across 
the site are acknowledged and provision has been made to allow access for 
pedestrians and cyclists through the site onto the adjacent wagonway. However, 
a balance between the impacts of maintaining pedestrian and cyclist permeability 
through the site and the impacts on biodiversity, particularly the adjacent LWS 
and LNR, must be met.   
 
8.36 Members need to determine whether the principle of the proposed 
development is acceptable. It is the view of officers that the principle of the 
proposed development is considered to be acceptable, subject to all other 
material considerations set out below being addressed.  
 
9.0 Impact on amenity 
9.1 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF states “Planning policies and decisions should 
also ensure that new development is appropriate for its location taking into 
account the likely effects (including cumulative effects) of pollution on health, 
living conditions and the natural environment, as well as the potential sensitivity 
of the site or the wider area to impacts that could arise from the development. In 
doing so they should: a) mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse 
impacts resulting from noise from new development – and avoid noise giving rise 
to significant adverse impacts on health and the quality of life; b) identify and 
protect tranquil areas which have remained relatively undisturbed by noise and 
are prized for their recreational amenity value for this reason; and c) limit the 
impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark 
landscapes and nature conservation”.  
 
9.2 LP Policy S1.4 “General Development Principles” states “Proposals for 
development will be considered favourably where it can be demonstrated that 
they would accord with the strategic, development management or area specific 
policies of this Plan.” Amongst other matters this includes: be acceptable in terms 
of their impact upon local amenity for new or existing residents and businesses, 
adjoining premises and land uses; and be accommodated by, and make best use 
of, existing facilities and infrastructure, particularly in encouraging accessibility 
and walking, cycling and public transport, whilst making appropriate provision for 
new or additional infrastructure requirements”.  
 
9.3 LP Policy DM5.19 Pollution states “Development proposals that may cause 
pollution either individually or cumulatively of water, air or soil through noise, 
smell, smoke, fumes, gases, steam, dust, vibration, light, and other pollutants will 
be required to incorporate measures to prevent or reduce their pollution so as not 

Page 57



 

to cause nuisance or unacceptable impacts on the environment, to people and to 
biodiversity. 
 
Development proposed where pollution levels are unacceptable will not be 
permitted unless it is possible for mitigation measures to be introduced to secure 
a satisfactory living or working environment. 
 
Development that may be sensitive (such as housing, schools and hospitals) to 
existing or potentially polluting sources will not be sited in proximity to such 
sources. Potentially polluting development will not be sited near to sensitive 
areas unless satisfactory mitigation measures can be demonstrated…..” 
 
9.4 Objections regarding noise, litter, disruption, additional traffic, impact on 
residential amenity have been received. These objections are noted.  
 
9.5 The site is located approximately 130m south of residential properties located 
in St Albans View. These properties are separated from the site by the A191. The 
application site sits at a lower level than the A191.  
 
9.6 Due to the siting of the proposal, it is not considered that the residential 
amenity of residential properties, in terms of loss of privacy and light, would be 
significantly affected.  
 
9.7 The Manager for Environmental Health has been consulted. She has advised 
that a detailed noise assessment is not necessary for the determination of this 
application. However, it is clear from her comments set out in the appendix to this 
report paragraph 1.16 that a noise scheme for the installation of any noise 
generating external plant and equipment that may result in additional noise to the 
area would need to be considered. This can be secured via condition.  
 
9.8 The applicant has advised that the retail kiosk and drive thru unit would not 
have any cooking of foods and for that reason no kitchen extraction or odour 
abatement equipment is required. The Manager for Environmental Health has 
advised that a condition will need to be imposed to prohibit cooking of foods and 
to only permit the reheating of foods.  
 
9.9 The Manager of Environmental Health has advised that the applicant is 
informed of the necessity to meet the requirements of the Environmental 
Permitting Regulations 2010 for the petrol station. An informative is suggested to 
advise the applicant of these requirements.  
 
9.10 The NPPF, paragraph 54 states “Local Planning Authorities should consider 
whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made acceptable through 
the use of conditions or planning obligations.” Paragraph 55 states “Planning 
conditions should be kept to a minimum and only imposed where they are 
necessary, relevant to planning and to the development to be permitted, 
enforceable, precise and reasonable in all other respects.” The NPPF paragraph 
180 aims to "avoid noise from giving rise to significant adverse impacts on health 
and quality of life".  Members are advised that it is clear from the environmental 
health comments set out in paragraphs 1.16-1.18 of the appendix to this report 
that appropriate mitigation to reduce the impacts arising from the identified noise 

Page 58



 

sources and odours can be secured by conditions. Further conditions are also 
suggested to control litter (litter management strategy) and lighting (lighting 
scheme). Subject to the imposition of the suggested conditions, it is not 
considered that this development would significantly impact on the residential 
amenity of nearby neighbouring properties, businesses or the LWS.  
 
9.11 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on amenity. It is officer advice that the proposed 
development is acceptable in terms of its impact on residential amenity subject to 
the imposition of the suggested conditions.  As such, it is officer advice that the 
proposed development does accord with the advice in paragraph 180 of the 
NPPF and LP policies DM5.19 and DM6.1.  
 
10.0 Impact on character and appearance 
10.1 Paragraph 124 of the NPPF encourages good design stating that “this is a 
key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which to live and 
work and helps make development acceptable to communities. Paragraph 130 of 
the NPPF makes it clear that “Permission should be refused for development of 
poor design that fails to take the opportunities available for improving the 
character and quality of an area and the way it functions, taking into account any 
local design standards or style guides in plans or supplementary planning 
documents”.  
 
10.2 LP Policy DM6.1 ‘Design of Development’ makes it clear that applications 
will only be permitted where they demonstrate high and consistent design 
standards. Amongst other matters proposed developments are responsive to 
their location, including topography, wildlife habitats, site orientation and existing 
buildings; ensuring a positive relationship to neighbouring buildings and spaces; 
ensuring sufficient parking is well integrated into the layout; and a good standard 
of amenity for existing and future residents.  
 
10.3 LDD11 ‘Design Quality’ applies to all planning applications that involve 
building works.  
 
10.4 LP Policy DM5.9 ‘Trees, Woodlands and Hedgerows’ seeks to safeguard 
existing features such as trees.  
 
10.5 The objections received regarding impact on visual amenity and loss of 
landscaping and open space are noted.  
 
10.6 The proposed layout is largely dictated by the highway infrastructure 
required to provide a safe access/egress to and from the site. Other site 
constraints such as powerlines and an associated wayleave and the adjacent 
wagonway also dictate the positioning of the buildings. The proposed buildings 
are set back from the site boundaries to retain areas of landscaping between the 
adjacent road network and wagonway. The positioning of the buildings within the 
site, the difference in levels between the site and the A191 and the existing 
vegetation to the eastern and southern boundaries would reduce their visual 
prominence to the north, east and south. The buildings will be visible from The 
Silverlink North, as are most buildings located on this part of the business park.  
 

Page 59



 

10.7 The proposed buildings are single storey to ensure the scale of the 
development is not significantly obtrusive. The buildings are a simple 
contemporary design which maintains the ethos of the design of the office 
buildings located throughout the wider business park. A condition is 
recommended to ensure that the proposed materials complement the wider 
business park.  
 
10.8 Members are advised that the applicant has worked with the council to 
amend the site layout. These amendments include positioning areas of parking 
along the eastern boundary further from the wagonway and removing parking 
from the central part of the site to accommodate additional landscaping.  
 
10.9 A landscape strategy has been submitted for consideration. This strategy 
has been considered by the Council’s Landscape Architect and Biodiversity 
Officer. The principles of the landscape strategy are considered to be acceptable 
subject to a condition to ensure that the following are secured: 
-Western boundary to be replanted with a tree/shrub line similar to that which 
currently exists. 
-Planting to the northern boundary of the site with native shrub planting or 
hedgerow with trees to mark the boundary of the site.  
-Planting to the west of the SuDS basin to be less ornamental incorporating 
native tree and scrub planting and extend along the north of the SuDS area 
following the new access road and path. A fence would be required to restrict 
access and minimise disturbance to this part of the LWS and protect the planting 
as it becomes established.  
 
10.10 Members are advised that it is clear from the Landscape Architect and 
Biodiversity Officer comments set out in paragraphs 1.23-1.57 of the appendix to 
this report that appropriate mitigation to reduce the visual impacts and impacts on 
the LWS arising from the proposed development can be secured by condition. 
Subject to the imposition of the suggested conditions, it is not considered that this 
development would significantly impact on the visual amenity of the immediate 
vicinity or the LWS.  
 
10.11 The objections received regarding connectivity, footpath links and 
reference to LTN 1/20 are noted. 
 
10.12 To the north of the site there is an existing footpath which leads onto the 
shared pedestrian/cycle path along the western edge of the site. To the east the 
site is bound by an existing wagonway. Further south of the site and to the west 
of The Silverlink North are existing pedestrian/cycle links.  
 
10.13 The comments provided by the Public Rights of Way (PRoW) Officer are 
noted. Members are advised that at this time there are no definitive rights of way 
crossing this site. It is acknowledged that desire lines exist across this site and 
there are informal routes from the adjacent wagonway into the site. Members are 
advised that the existing footpath to the north of the site, part of the footpath to 
the west of the site and the wagonway do not fall within the red boundary line of 
the application site. Therefore, no works to existing footpaths outside of the 
redline boundary or the wagonway are proposed nor is this considered to be 
necessary. To retain permeability through the site for pedestrians/cyclists two 

Page 60



 

connections are proposed onto the adjacent wagonway (one in the north east 
corner of the site and one in south east corner of the site). The width of these 
connections must be balanced against the need to minimise impacts on 
biodiversity, so they would not meet the requirements of LTN 1/20 and they 
would be unlit. Other connections suggested by the PROW have not been 
pursued as they are not considered to be necessary and some of them would 
result in further impacts on landscaping, particularly due to level differences.  
 
10.14 Members need to consider whether the impact on the character and 
appearance of the immediate surrounding area is acceptable and whether the 
proposed site layout is acceptable. It is officer advice that, the proposed 
development would not result in a significant visual impact on the character or 
appearance and an appropriate site layout has been achieved. As such, the 
proposed development accords with national and local planning policies. 
 
11.0 Impact on highway safety  
11.1 The NPPF paragraph 109 makes it clear that development should only be 
prevented or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable 
impact on highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network 
would be severe.  
 
11.2 The NPPF paragraph 110 states, amongst other matters, that applications 
for development should give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements both 
within the scheme and with neighbouring areas and address the needs of people 
with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of transport.  
 
11.3 LP Policy DM7.4 ‘New Development and Transport’ makes it clear that the 
Council will ensure that the transport requirements of new development, 
commensurate to the scale and type of development, are taken into account and 
seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental impacts and 
support resident’s health and well-being.  
 
11.4 The Council’s maximum parking standards are set out in the Transport and 
Highways SPD (LDD12).  
 
11.5 Objections have been received regarding the impact on highway safety, 
including access/egress to the site and increase in traffic. These objections are 
noted.   
 
11.6 The site is vacant and is located to the north of the business park and to the 
east of The Silverlink North. To provide access into this site a new roundabout is 
proposed that would also serve the existing hospital site opposite and act as a 
traffic calming feature on the existing road.  
 
11.7 Servicing will take place wholly within the site and parking has been 
provided to meet the needs of the site with cycle parking and Electric Vehicle 
(EV) charging points included in the layout. 
 
11.8 Pedestrian and cyclist access through the site has been maintained 
including the provision of two connections points along the eastern boundary to 
provide access onto the wagonway.  

Page 61



 

 
11.9 A Transport Assessment (TA) and a Framework Travel Plan have been 
submitted. This information has been considered by the relevant consultees. It is 
clear from the sustainable transport comments that the content of the Travel Plan 
can be secured via condition.  
 
11.10 The Highways Network Manager has been consulted. He has advised that 
the proposal will not result in a severe impact on the adjacent highway network. 
On this basis, he has recommended conditional approval.  
 
11.11 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on the highway network, highway safety and 
connectivity. It is officer advice that it is. The proposed development accords with 
both national and local planning policies.  
 
12.0 Other Issues 
12.1 Contaminated Land and ground conditions  
12.2 Paragraph 178 of the NPPF states planning policies and decisions should 
ensure that a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground 
conditions and any risks arising from land instability and contamination i.e. mining 
or land remediation.  
 
12.3 Paragraph 179 of the NPPF goes onto say that where a site is affected by 
contamination or land instability issues, responsibility for securing a safe 
development, rests with the developer and/or landowner.   
 
12.4 Local Plan Policy DM5.18 ‘Contaminated and Unstable Land’ sets out 
guidance on these constraints. 
  
12.5 The NPPF sets out that LPAs should define Mineral Safeguarding Areas 
(MSAs), with further detail included in National Planning Practice Guidance 
(2014). The whole of the local plan area has been identified as a MSA. Policy 
DM5.17 Minerals is considered to be relevant. 
 
12.6 The Contaminated Land Officer has been consulted. She has raised no 
objection to the proposed development, subject to the imposition of the 
suggested conditions.  
 
12.7 The Coal Authority has been consulted. They have raised no objection to 
the proposed development.  
 
12.8 Members need to consider whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on ground conditions. It is officer advice that it 
is.  
 
12.9 Flooding 
12.10 Paragraph 157 of the NPPF advises that all plans should apply a 
sequential, risk-based approach to the location of development – taking into 
account the current and future impacts of climate change – so as to avoid, where 
possible, flood risk to people and property.  
 

Page 62



 

12.11 The National Planning Policy Framework states that when determining any 
planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure that flood risk is 
not increased elsewhere. Where appropriate, applications should be supported 
by a site-specific flood-risk assessment. 
 
12.12 LP Policy DM5.14 states that applicants will be required to show, with 
evidence, they comply with the Defra technical standards for sustainable 
drainage systems (unless otherwise updated and/or superseded).  A reduction in 
surface water run off rates will be sought for all new development.  On brownfield 
sites, surface water run off rates post development should be limited to a 
maximum of 50% of the flows discharged immediately prior to development 
where appropriate and achievable.  For greenfield sites, surface water run off 
post development must meet or exceed the infiltration capacity of the greenfield 
prior to development incorporating an allowance for climate change. 
 
12.13 LP Policy DM5.15 states that applicants will be required to show, with 
evidence, they comply with the Defra technical standards for sustainable 
drainage systems (unless otherwise updated and/or superseded). 
 
12.14 A Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) and Drainage Strategy has been 
submitted. This has been considered by the Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA). 
This proposal would provide surface water attenuation within the developments 
surface water drainage network and SuDS pond. These attenuation measures 
are designed to accommodate a 1in100yr storm event +40% increase for climate 
change. The surface water from the SuDS pond would then discharge into an 
existing highway drain which serves The Silverlink North. The rate of discharge 
from the site would be restricted to the equivalent to greenfield run-off rate of 
3.9l/s and would be controlled via the use of a flow control device.  The SuDS 
pond would be under the ownership of the developer and the future maintenance 
of these assets would be either carried out by the developer or an appointed 
management company. The proposed petrol station drainage would incorporate 
a forecourt separator which would help prevent pollutants from entering the site’s 
surface water drainage system. On this basis, the LLFA has recommended 
conditional approval.  
 
12.15 Northumbrian Water has been consulted. They have raised no objection to 
the proposed development.  
 
12.16 The Environment Agency (EA) has been consulted. The details regarding 
the tank design, pipework, delivery arrangements, leak detection systems and 
two oil-water separators to be utilised to manage organic pollutants in surface 
water runoff are adequate. The proposal gives the EA confidence that these risks 
can be satisfactorily managed.  
 
12.17 Biodiversity 
12.18 The application site comprises of approximately 2ha of available 
employment land.  Members are advised that the most southern part of the site is 
designated as a Local Wildlife Site and Local Nature Reserve (Silverlink Park and 
Wagonway LWS and LNR). The Silverlink wagonway lies adjacent to the eastern 
boundary of the site which is supported on both sides by linear hedgerow 

Page 63



 

sections and trees with fragmented, individual and occasional tree groupings. To 
the west of the site, beyond the road, lies West Allotment Pond LWS.  
 
12.19 Most of the application site comprises of semi-improved grassland, with 
boundary planting that includes ornamental planting and semi-mature tree 
avenues along the western and northern boundary. A strip of land along the 
southern boundary, of approximately 0.45ha, supports a mosaic of scattered and 
dense scrub, coarse grassland and marshy grassland. This area is within the 
boundary of the LWS.  
 
12.20 This application is accompanied by several tree and ecological reports. 
These reports have been considered by the Council’s Landscape Architect and 
Biodiversity Officer.  
 
12.21 Members are advised that the trees within the site are not protected by a 
Tree Preservation Order (TPO) or located within the conservation area. The 
consultees have advised that the structural tree cover and hedgerows bordering 
the site are important existing landscape assets as they complement and support 
biodiversity of the immediate and wider area as well as helping to screen the 
area from external lateral views not the site. The submitted Aboricultural Impact 
Assessment (AIA) sets out the impacts of the proposed development. These 
impacts are set out in paragraph 1.32 of the appendix to this report.  
 
12.22 The submitted ecology reports advise the following: 
-No evidence of potential bat roosts was found on site. The trees, hedgerow and 
scrub provide foraging opportunities for bats. The data provided showed low bat 
activity by common pipistrelle bats with the main features of importance being the 
wagonway and adjacent LWS and LNR. Previous data showed more activity 
across the whole site.  
-Water vole and otter were not thought likely to use the site.  
-Eight great crested newt ponds are located within 500m of the site. Surveys 
indicated that great crested newts are absent from ponds within 250m of the site 
therefore unlikely to be adversely affected by the development.  
-No evidence of badger was found.  
-No significant invertebrate features were found on the site during survey and no 
patches of important food source plants for key species were recorded.  
-Hedgehog, brown hare and common toad were considered likely to be present 
on site at times throughout the year, though there are no nearby hedgehog 
records.  
 
12.23 The submitted assessments suggest that the site of low to local value for 
the habitats it supports, but adjacent to, and part of, a wider network of habitats 
of district value including the LWS and LNR. The potential impacts of the 
proposed development are set out in paragraph 1.37 of the appendix of this 
report.  
 
12.24 The mitigation for the impacts of the scheme include landscaping within the 
site, precautionary method statements for amphibians and hedgehog, provision 
of bird and bat boxes and lighting design to minimise impacts on bats.  
 

Page 64



 

12.25 The Breeding Bird Survey concludes that most breeding birds are present 
in scrub and hedgerows along the southern and eastern boundaries and 
retaining habitats in these areas will minimise impacts on birds. It recommends 
retaining existing scrub and hedgerows where possible, particularly along the 
southern and eastern boundaries.  
 
12.26 The northern boundary of the LWS is within the application site. This area 
would be used to provide drainage associated with the proposed development. 
This includes a large SuDS area with associated connections. The consultees 
considered that the current drainage scheme is overly engineered with little 
biodiversity value, resulting in the loss of valuable habitat. Members are advised 
that discussions were held with the applicant and consultees to discuss an 
alternative SuDS design and it has been agreed that a permanent shallow body 
of water that would offer a wider range of diverse habitats more suited to the 
LWS is to be provided. The consultees have advised that this approach would 
benefit amphibians and species such as great crested newt.  
 
12.27 Additional native planting (native hedges and scrub) to the immediate area 
surrounding the SuDS pond would provide an essential buffer between the 
development and the LWS and protect the site from disturbance associated with 
litter/pollution, noise, lighting and human disturbance.  This planting should be 
temporarily fenced off until it becomes established to ensure the LWS is 
adequately protected. 
 
12.28 The consultees have identified indirect impacts to the LWS associated with 
the proposed development including increase in footfall and potential litter issues. 
Members are advised that the applicant has agreed to manage litter within the 
application site and part of the adjacent LWS to address this and a financial 
contribution is to be secured towards the management of habitats within the LWS 
and LNR.  
 
12.29 To accommodate the proposed development standard trees (young and 
recently planted) along the western boundary are to be removed. The submitted 
landscape strategy indicates that the western boundary would be replanted with 
a tree/shrub line similar to that which currently exists. As already discussed, the 
proposed development would partially impact on part of the LWS to 
accommodate the proposed drainage.  The proposed drainage would result in 
the loss of some tree, scrub and semi-improved grassland. These impacts would 
be mitigated by the SuDS being designed to hold shall permanent water and 
native scrub and hedgerow planting would be provided along the northern 
boundary of the LWS to enhance and protect this area. To the eastern boundary 
of the site a 7m wide native scrub planting buffer would be provided. To the 
northern boundary, adjacent to the proposed petrol filling station, a native 
hedgerow would be planted.  
 
12.30 It is acknowledged that the wagonway to the east of the site would be 
impacted through the introduction of two new footpaths cutting through this area. 
Members are advised that the proposed connections are utilising existing desire 
lines. Following discussions with the applicant and consultees, these connections 
are considered to be acceptable subject to the width of these connections not 
exceeding 2.5m and unlit.  

Page 65



 

 
12.31 Lighting within the site has the potential to have an adverse impact on the 
LWS, LNR and the wagonway which form part of the designated wildlife corridor. 
Following discussions with the applicant and consultees, it has been agreed that 
any lighting adjacent to the LWS and wagonway must be below 2 lux. These 
details can be secured by an appropriately worded condition.  
 
12.32 Members are advised that it is clear from the Landscape Architect and 
Biodiversity Officer comments set out in paragraphs 1.23-1.57 of the appendix to 
this report that appropriate mitigation to reduce the impacts on biodiversity and 
the LWS/LNR arising from the proposed development can be secured by 
condition. Subject to the imposition of the suggested conditions, it is not 
considered that this development would significantly impact on biodiversity or the 
LWS/LNR.  
 
12.33 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of its impact on biodiversity and the adjacent LWS and LNR. 
It is officer advice that it is. The proposed development accords with both national 
and local planning policies.  
 
12.34 Archaeology 
12.35 Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states “Local planning authorities should 
require developers to record and advance understanding of the significance of 
any heritage assets to be lost (wholly or in part) in a manner proportionate to their 
importance and the impact and to make this evidence (and any archive 
generated) publicly accessible. However, the ability to record evidence of our 
past should not be a factor in deciding whether such loss should be permitted.”  
 
12.36 LP Policy DM6.7 ‘Archaeological Heritage’ seeks to protect, enhance and 
promote the borough’s archaeological heritage and where appropriate, 
encourage its interpretation and presentation to the public.  
 
12.37 The Tyne and Wear Archaeology Officer has been consulted. She has 
recommended conditional approval.  
 
12.38 S106 Contributions 
12.39 Paragraph 54 of NPPF states that local planning authorities should 
consider whether otherwise unacceptable development could be made 
acceptable through the use of conditions or planning obligations.  Planning 
obligations should only be used where it is not possible to address unacceptable 
impacts through a planning condition. 
 
12.40 Paragraph 56 of NPPF states that planning obligations must only be 
sought where they meet all of the following tests; 
- Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms; 
- Directly related to the development; and  
- Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development. 
 
12.41 LP S7.1 General Infrastructure and Funding states “The Council will 
ensure appropriate infrastructure is delivered so it can support new development 
and continue to meet existing needs. Where appropriate and through a range of 

Page 66



 

means, the Council will seek to improve any deficiencies in the current level of 
provision. 
 
The Council will also work together with other public sector organisations, within 
and beyond the Borough, to achieve funding for other necessary items of 
infrastructure. This will include the use of combined and innovative funding 
schemes to maximise the amount and impact of funding. 
 
New development may be required to contribute to infrastructure provision to 
meet the impact of that growth, through the use of planning obligations and other 
means including the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 
 
Planning obligations will be sought where: 
a. It is not possible to address unacceptable impacts through the use of a 
condition; and, 
b. The contributions are fair, reasonable, directly related to the development and 
necessary to make the application acceptable. 
 
In determining the level of contributions required from a development, regard will 
be given to the impact on the economic viability of the scheme.” 
 
12.42 LP Policy DM7.2 states that the Council is committed to enabling a viable 
and deliverable sustainable development.  If the economic viability of a new 
development is such that it is not reasonably possible to make payments to fund 
all or part of the infrastructure required to support it, applicants will need to 
provide robust evidence of the viability of the proposal to demonstrate this.  
When determining the contributions required, consideration will be given to the 
application’s overall conformity with the presumption in favour of sustainable 
development. 
 
12.43 LP Policy DM7.5 ‘Employment and Skills’ seeks applicants of major 
development proposals to contribute towards the creation of local employment 
opportunities and support growth in skills through an increase in the overall 
proportion of local residents in education or training.  
 
12.44 The Council’s adopted SPD on Planning Obligations (2018) states that the 
Council takes a robust stance in relation to ensuring new development 
appropriately mitigates its impact on the physical, social and economic 
infrastructure of North Tyneside.  Notwithstanding that, planning obligations 
should not place unreasonable demands upon developers, particularly in relation 
to the impact upon the economic viability of development.  The Council will 
consider and engage with applicants to identify appropriate solutions where 
matters of viability arise and require negotiation. 
 
12.45 The applicant has agreed to pay the requested Travel Plan Monitoring Fee 
and a financial contribution towards mitigating the impacts of the proposed 
development on the adjacent Local Wildlife Site (LWS). These contributions are 
considered necessary and directly related to the development. A condition is 
recommended to secure employment and training. As such, the development 
complies with the CIL Regulations, the NPPF and LP polices.  
 

Page 67



 

12.46 This development is CIL liable.  
 
13.0 Local Financial Considerations 
13.1 Local financial considerations are defined as a grant or other financial 
assistance that has been, that will or that could be provided to a relevant 
authority by the Minister of the Crown (such as New Homes Bonus payments) or 
sums that a relevant authority has received, or will or could receive in payment of 
the Community Infrastructure Levy.  The proposal would result in additional 
business rates being received by the council and this is a benefit of the proposal.     
 
14.0 Conclusion 
14.1 Members need to determine whether the proposed development is 
acceptable in terms of the principle of the development, its impact on amenity, its 
impact on the character and appearance of the area and all other issues 
including its impact on highways, flood risk, biodiversity, archaeology and ground 
conditions. It is the view of officers that the proposed development is acceptable. 
As such, officers consider that the proposed development does accord with 
national and local planning policies. Approval is recommended.  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
 
The Committee is recommended to indicate that it is minded to approve the 
application and  
 
a) authorise the Head of Environment, Housing and Leisure to determine 
the application subject to: 
iii. the conditions set out below and the amendment to, addition or 

omission of any other condition considered necessary; 
iv. the applicant entering into a legal agreement under Section 106 of 

the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to secure the following: 

• Travel Plan monitoring fee £1, 250.00 (£250.00 per annum) 

• £18, 750.00 ecology and biodiversity: towards mitigating the 
impacts on the Local Wildlife Site.  

 
b) authorise that the Head of Law and Governance and the Head of 
Environment, Housing and Leisure to undertake all necessary procedures 
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 to secure the following 
highways improvements:  
Provision of roundabout new accesses 
Improved footpath links 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 
 
c) authorise that the Head of Law and Governance and the Head of 
Environment, Housing and Leisure to undertake all necessary procedures 
under Section 247 and 257 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 to 

Page 68



 

formally close all roads and footpaths within the site that are no longer 
required. 
 
 
Conditions/Reasons 
 
1.    The development to which the permission relates shall be carried out in 
complete accordance with the following approved plans and specifications: 
         Ordnance survey plan (1:1250) Dwg No. 15370-27  
         Layout as existing Dwg No. 15370-20 
         Layout as existing Dwg No. 15370-21 
         Existing elevations Dwg No. 15370-22 
         Proposed BP building Dwg No. 15370-26 
         Proposed site layout Dwg No. 15370-23 C 
         Illustrative masterplan Dwg No. N912-ONE-ZZ-XX-DR-L-0801 P04  
         Planting Strategy Dwg No. N912-ONE-ZZ-XX-DR-L-0201 P04  
         Costa elevations 1800(Side)-02E 
         Costa floor plan 1800(Side)-03E 
         Costa roof plan 1800(Side)-03C 
         Reason:  To ensure that the development as carried out does not vary from 
the approved plans. 
 
2.    The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of 
three years from the date of this permission. 
         Reason: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990. 
 
3.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of development a 
detailed scheme for the following off-site highway works, including a timetable for 
these works, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority: 
         Provision of roundabout new accesses 
         Improved footpath links 
         Associated street lighting 
         Associated drainage 
         Associated road markings 
         Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
         Associated street furniture & signage 
         Thereafter, these agreed works shall be implemented in accordance with 
these agreed details and within the timescales set out. 
         Reason: This information is required at the outset, in order to minimise 
danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway and of the 
development having regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017). 
 
4.    No part of the development hereby approved shall be brought into use until 
an area has been laid out within the site for vehicles to turn in accordance with 
the approved drawing and that area shall not thereafter be used for any other 
purpose. 

Page 69



 

         Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off and turn clear of the highway 
thereby avoiding the need to reverse onto the public highway having regard to 
policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
5.    The scheme for parking and manoeuvring indicated on the approved plans 
shall be laid out prior to the occupation of any part of the development hereby 
permitted and these areas shall not thereafter be used for any other purpose. 
         Reason:  To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway 
to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining 
highway having regard to policy DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
6.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the occupation of any part of the 
development hereby approved details of facilities to be provided for the storage 
of refuse and recycling for each building shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The facilities which should also include 
the provision of wheeled for all waste types shall be provided in accordance with 
the approved details, prior to the occupation of each residential dwelling and 
thereafter permanently retained. 
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of the area having regard to 
policies DM6.1 of North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
 
7.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
Construction Method Statement, in accordance with the required tree protection 
measures, for the duration of the construction period has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved statement 
shall: identify the access to the site for all site operatives (including those 
delivering materials) and visitors, provide for the parking of vehicles of site 
operatives and visitors; details of the site compound for the storage of plant (silos 
etc) and materials used in constructing the development; provide a scheme 
indicating the route for heavy construction vehicles to and from the site; a turning 
area within the site for delivery vehicles; dust suppression scheme (such 
measures shall include mechanical street cleaning, and/or provision of water 
bowsers, and/or wheel washing and/or road cleaning facilities, and any other 
wheel cleaning solutions and dust suppressions measures considered 
appropriate to the size of the development). The scheme must include a site plan 
illustrating the location of facilities and any alternative locations during all stages 
of development. The approved statement shall be implemented and complied 
with during and for the life of the works associated with the development. 
         Reason: This information is required pre-development to ensure that the 
site set up does not impact on highway safety, pedestrian safety, retained trees 
(where necessary) and residential amenity having regard to policies DM5.9, 
DM5.19 and DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
8.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, no development shall commence until a 
scheme to show wheel washing facilities and mechanical sweepers to prevent 
mud and debris onto the public highway has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This scheme shall include details of the 
location, type of operation, maintenance/phasing programme. Construction shall 
not commence on any part of the development other than the construction of a 

Page 70



 

temporary site access  and site set up until these agreed measures are fully 
operational for the duration of the construction of the development hereby 
approved. If the agreed measures are not operational then no vehicles shall exit 
the development site onto the public highway.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-development to ensure that the 
adoptable highway(s) is kept free from mud and debris in the interests of highway 
safety having regard to policies DM5.19 and DM7.4 of the North Tyneside Local 
Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
9.    No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until a car 
park management strategy has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  This strategy shall be carried out in accordance with 
the agreed details and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety having regard to Policy DM7.4 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
10.    No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until any 
adopted highways or Public Rights of Way no longer required within the site have 
been formally stopped up under Section 247/257 of the Town & Country Planning 
Act 1990. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety having regard to Policy DM7.4 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
11.    No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until a 
delivery, service and refuse management strategy including appropriate 
methodology and signage has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  This strategy shall be carried out in accordance with 
the agreed details and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety having regard to Policy DM7.4 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
12.    No part of the development hereby approved shall be occupied until a 
scheme for secure, undercover cycle parking has been submitted to and agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  This scheme shall be carried out in 
accordance with the agreed details and retained thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of highway safety having regard to Policy DM7.4 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
13.    Notwithstanding the details submitted in the Travel Plan, no part of the 
development shall be occupied until a Full Travel Plan in accordance with the 
council's Travel Plan Scope, has been submitted to and approved by in writing 
the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in 
full accordance with the agreed Travel Plan. 
         Reason: To accord with Central Government and Council Policy concerning 
sustainable transport. 
          
14.    The development hereby permitted shall not be constructed above damp 
proof course level until the details of a scheme of site investigation and 
assessment to test for the presence and likelihood of gas emissions from 
underground workings, historic landfill, unknown filled ground or made ground 
has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 71



 

          
         Upon approval of the method statement: 
          
         a) A detailed site investigation should be carried out to establish the degree 
and nature of the gas regime, and whether there is a risk likely to arise to the 
occupants of the development. The results and conclusions of the detailed site 
investigations should be submitted to and the conclusions approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority.  The Ground Gas Assessment Report should be 
written using the current government guidelines. 
          
         b) In the event that remediation is required following the assessment of the 
ground gas regime using current guidelines, then a method statement must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
          
         The detailed design and construction of the development shall take account 
of the results of the site investigation and the assessment should give regard to 
results showing depleted oxygen levels or flooded monitoring wells. The method 
of construction shall also incorporate all the measures shown in the approved 
assessment. 
          
         This should provide details of exactly what remediation is required and how 
the remediation will be implemented on site; details including drawings of gas 
protection scheme should be included. 
          
         c) Where remediation is carried out on the site then a validation report will 
be required. This report should confirm exactly what remediation has been 
carried out and that the objectives of the remediation statement have been met.  
          
         The validation report should include cross sectional diagrams of the 
foundations and how any gas protection measures proposed in the remediation 
method statement are incorporated.  In the event that integrity testing of 
membranes is required then any test certificates produced should also be 
included. 
          
         A verification report shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before the development is occupied/brought into use. 
          
         d) In the event that there is a significant change to the ground conditions 
due to the development, for example grouting or significant areas of hard 
standing; then additional gas monitoring should be carried out to assess whether 
the gas regime has been affected by the works carried out. In the event that the 
gas regime has been altered then a reassessment of remediation options shall 
be submitted to the Local Planning authority to be agreed in writing before the 
development is occupied/brought into use. 
          
         Thereafter the development shall not be implemented otherwise than in 
accordance with the scheme referred to in c) above. 
          
         Reason: In order to safeguard the development and/or the occupants 
thereof from possible future gas emissions from underground and or adverse 
effects of landfill gas which may migrate from a former landfill site having regard 

Page 72



 

to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning 
Policy Framework. 
 
15.    No development shall be commenced until a Desk Study (Phase 1) has 
been completed and a written sampling strategy (scope of works) for the 
contamination site investigation is submitted to, and agreed in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority before the commencement of site investigation works. 
                   
         The Desk Study Report should be written in accordance with the current 
government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including the 
BS10175 2011 +A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination YALPAG Version 11.2 - June 2020, Land 
Contamination Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
         Reason:  This needs to be pre-commencement to ensure that the potential 
contamination of the site is properly investigated and its implication for the 
development approved fully taken into account having regard to policy DM5.18 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
16.    Prior to commencement of development a detailed Site Investigation 
(Phase 2) must be carried out including an interpretative report on potential 
contamination of the site.  This must be prepared by an appropriately qualified 
person and submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA to establish: 
                   
         i) If the site is contaminated; 
         ii) To assess the degree and nature of the contamination present, and an 
assessment whether significant risk is likely to arise to the end users and public 
use of land, building (existing or proposed) or the environment, including 
adjoining land; 
         iii) To determine the potential for the pollution of the water environment by 
contaminants and; 
         iv) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s). 
                   
         The Site Investigation report must include the following information: 
                   
         - A site plan with sampling points and log; 
         - Results of sampling and monitoring carried out in accordance with 
sampling strategy, and; 
         - An interpretative report on potential contamination of the site, conclusions 
must be prepared by a competent person (a person with a recognised relevant 
qualification, sufficient experience in dealing with the type(s) of pollution or land 
instability, and membership of a relevant professional organisation). 
                   
         The Site Investigation report should be written in accordance with the 
current government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in 
the BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination YALPAG Version 11.2 - June 2020, Land 
Contamination Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
         Reason:  This needs to be pre-commencement to ensure that the potential 
contamination of the site is properly investigated and its implication for the 
development approved fully taken into account having regard to policy DM5.18 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 

Page 73



 

 
17.    Prior to the commencement of the development a detailed Remediation 
Method Statement shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  The remediation method must include phase 1 and 2 reports 
in accordance with BS10175 risk assessment pre and post remediation scheme.  
The method statement must specify remediation for each identified contaminants 
giving installation or construction methods required to break pathway, or 
specifying disposal; or in situ treatment as deemed appropriate, the handling and 
disposal of contaminants to prevent spread of contaminants and the critical 
control checks required to ensure remediation areas, handling and deposition 
areas and installation drawings of gas protection scheme must be included. 
                   
         The design of the remediation strategy should consider the results from the 
previous two phases of investigation and consider the proposed use/layout of the 
development. 
                   
         The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site 
management procedures.  The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify 
as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protections Act 1990 in 
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.  An options appraisal 
will only be acceptable upon the inclusion of the recommended preferred option. 
          
         The Remediation Method Statement should be written in accordance with 
the current government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including 
in the BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Development on Land 
Affected by Contamination YALPAG Version 11.2 - June 2020, Land 
Contamination Risk Management. 
         Reason:  This needs to be pre-commencement to ensure that the potential 
contamination of the site is properly investigated and its implication for the 
development approved fully taken into account having regard to policy DM5.18 of 
the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
18.    Prior to the first occupation of the development hereby permitted, a 
Remediation Validation report for the site must be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  A Validation report (sometimes referred 
to as a Verification report) is used to demonstrate remediation completed in 
accordance with submitted and approved remediation report. 
          
         This report must contain the following: 
          
         - A summary of site investigation and remediation works undertaken with 
accompanying site layout identifying source / treatment areas; 
         - Confirmation of Required Concentration of Reduction Targets, and/or 
Cover and Break Screens; 
         - Post Remediation Interpretative report of Sampling to demonstrate 
compliance with quantative goals. 
         - An explanation / discussion of any anomalous results, or failure to meet 
agreed target values, alongside additional work proposed and actioned; 
         - Demonstrate via photographic and documentation evidence of remedial 
measures; 

Page 74



 

         - Post-remediation contaminated land risk assessment profile; 
         - Cross sectional diagrams for the site and detailed plans of the site. 
          
         The Remediation Validation report should be written in accordance with the 
current government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in 
the BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Verification Requirements 
for Cover Systems YALPAG Version 3.4 - November 2017, Land Contamination 
Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
         Reason:  To ensure that the potential contamination of the site is properly 
investigated and its implication for the development approved fully taken into 
account having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
and National Planning Policy Framework. 
          
19.    If any unexpected contamination or hotspots are encountered during the 
investigation and construction phases it will be necessary to inform the Local 
Authority within 24 hours.  Work must be ceased until any risk is assessed 
through chemical testing and analysis of the affected soils or waters.  If required 
remediation of any unexpected contamination or underground storage tanks 
discovered during the development must take place before development 
recommences.  Thereafter the development shall not be implemented otherwise 
than in accordance with the scheme approved under the planning consent. 
          
         Any additional reports should be written in accordance with the current 
government guidelines including but not exclusive of those including in the 
BS10175 2011+A1 2013, BS 5930 2015 +A12020, Verification Requirements for 
Cover Systems YALPAG Version 3.4 - November 2017, Land Contamination 
Risk Management - Environment Agency. 
          
         Reason:  To ensure that the potential contamination of the site is properly 
investigated and its implication for the development approved fully taken into 
account having regard to policy DM5.18 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) 
and National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
20.    Prior to the commencement of each building hereby approved above damp 
proof course level details of the height, position, design and materials of any 
chimney or extraction vent to be provided in connection with the development 
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out other than in accordance 
with the approved details. 
         Reason:  In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
21.    Prior to the commencement of any building hereby approved above damp 
proof course level details of the air ventilation systems have been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall 
thereafter be implemented before the development is first occupied in 
accordance with the approved details and permanently retained. 
         Reason:  To protect the amenities of the occupiers of residential 
accommodation in the vicinity having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          

Page 75



 

 
22.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved above damp proof course level details of any refrigeration plant to be 
installed in connection with the development have been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The plant shall thereafter 
only be installed in accordance with the approved details and permanently 
retained as such. 
         Reason:  To protect the amenities of the occupiers of residential 
accommodation in the vicinity having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
23.    No equipment for the cooking of foods to be installed or used within the 
retail units at any time.  Only small appliances for the reheating of foods shall be 
permitted for use in the units. 
         Reason:  To protect the amenities of the occupiers of residential 
accommodation in the vicinity having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
24.    Prior to the construction of the external walls of any of the individual units 
hereby approved a management operating plan relating to that respective unit 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This shall include an assessment on the   potential for sources of noise and 
disturbance from that unit likely to affect residential amenity in the area, and shall 
also identify the following: 
         -Hours of opening for that unit for visiting members of the public 
         -Hours of deliveries and collections for that unit  
         -A waste management plan setting out how and when waste associated 
with the unit and lorry park will be stored, collected and timings relating to the 
collection and emptying of refuse and recyclables. 
         -Outside maintenance and cleaning activities for each unit. 
         -The provision of Litter bins and litter management plans for that unit 
including all associated parking.  
         -A parking management plan for that unit including the details on the 
allocation and management of all associated parking.  
         If the assessment indicates that the hours of use and operational 
requirements are likely to affect neighbouring residential amenity then a detailed 
scheme of  mitigation measures for that unit shall be submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the units to 
which the mitigation measure apply. The approved details shall be implemented 
prior to the commencement of the use and be permanently maintained thereafter. 
         Reason: To safeguard the occupiers of adjacent properties from undue 
noise of other associated disturbance having regard to policy DM5.19 of the 
North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
25.    Prior to the occupation of each unit an employment strategy and scheme 
and method statement for the provision of targeted local employment recruitment 
and training opportunities to maximise local employment shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such a scheme could 
include but may not necessarily be restricted to the following; 
         -Job Opportunities, including number of full time equivalent jobs created 
and job title; 

Page 76



 

         -Recruitment through Jobcentre Plus and other local employment vehicles; 
         -Apprenticeship; 
         -Traineeship; 
         -Graduate Internship; 
         -Work trials and interview guarantees; 
         -Pre-employment training; 
         -Vocational Training (NVQ); 
         -Supervisor training; 
         -Leadership and Management Training; 
         -Support with transport, childcare and work equipment; and 
         -In-house training schemes. 
         Thereafter the approved strategy/scheme and method statement shall be 
implemented as approved. 
         Reason: To ensure that appropriate employment and training opportunities 
are secured in accordance with Policy DM7.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan 
(2017). 
 
26.    No sound reproduction equipment which is audible outside the curtilage of 
the premises shall be operated on the site. 
         Reason:  In order to protect the amenities of occupiers of nearby properties 
having regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
27.    Before the development hereby permitted commences a scheme shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority which 
specifies the provisions to be made for the control of noise emanating from the 
site. The approved scheme shall be carried out in full prior to the use and 
occupation of the site and of the building(s) hereby permitted. 
         Reason:  This information is required from the outset to protect the 
occupants of nearby residential properties from noise disturbance having regard 
to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
28.    Prior to the installation of any external plant and equipment a noise scheme 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This scheme must be submitted in accordance with BS4142 to determine the 
current background noise levels for daytime, evening and night. The rating level 
for all external plant and equipment must not exceed the current background 
noise levels. Thereafter, the installed plant and equipment shall be permanently 
maintained in accordance with these details and the verification details subject of 
condition 29.  
         Reason:  To safeguard the amenities of neighbouring premises having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017) and National 
Planning Policy Framework. 
 
29.    Within one month of the installation of any plant and equipment pursuant to 
condition 28 acoustic testing shall be undertaken to verify compliance with this 
condition. This verification shall be submitted to and approved in writing prior to 
the continued operation of this plant and equipment. Thereafter, any plant or 
equipment shall only be operated in accordance with the approved details and 
permanently maintained.   
         Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining properties having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 

Page 77



 

 
30.    Prior to installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, a 
lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority.  This shall include the following information: 
         - a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination;  
         - a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, 
indicating parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting 
any significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features;  
         - details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting 
columns or other fixtures;  
         - the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires;  
         - the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light;  
         - an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical 
locations on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential 
properties or the public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting 
engineers Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare 
and intrusive light for agreed environmental zone ; and  
         - where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
         The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the 
approved scheme. 
         Reason: In the interest of visual amenity and/or highway safety having 
regard to policy DM5.19 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
         31.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any part 
of the development hereby approved, a detailed scheme for the disposal of foul 
and surface water from the development hereby approved must be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with 
Northumbrian Water and the Lead Local Flood Authority. The surface water 
drainage scheme must include detailed surface water design drainage including 
ecological benefits (permanent open water and appropriate native planting), 
details of the appointed SUDS management company, a plan showing the 
surface water flow paths through the development for rainfall events in 
exceedance of a 1in100yr storm event and identify any mitigation measures 
required to prevent flooding to buildings during this type of rainfall event, a 
condition survey to be undertaken of The Silverlink North highway drain from the 
A191 roundabout through to a distance of 100m south of the proposed 
connection point. Any issues identified within the highway drain to be raised with 
LLFA and any agreed repairs to be undertaken by developer prior to a formal 
connection being made. 
          Thereafter the development shall take place in accordance with the 
approved details. 
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to prevent the 
increased risk of flooding from any sources in accordance with the NPPF and to 
enhance ecological benefits in accordance with Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017).  
 
32.    No groundworks or development shall commence until a programme of 
archaeological fieldwork (to include evaluation and where appropriate mitigation 
excavation) has been completed. This shall be carried out in accordance with a 
specification provided by the Local Planning Authority. 

Page 78



 

         Reason: This needs to be pre-commencement as the site is located within 
an area identified as being of potential archaeological interest. The investigation 
is required to ensure that any archaeological remains on the site can be 
preserved wherever possible and recorded, in accordance with paragraph 199 of 
the NPPF, Local Plan S6.5 and policies DM6.6 and DM6.7. 
 
33.    The building(s) shall not be occupied/brought into use until the final report 
of the results of the archaeological fieldwork undertaken in pursuance of 
condition (32) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
         Reason: The site is located within an area identified as being of potential 
archaeological interest. The investigation is required to ensure that any 
archaeological remains on the site can be preserved wherever possible and 
recorded, in accordance with paragraph 199 of the NPPF, Local Plan S6.5 and 
policies DM6.6 and DM6.7. 
           
34.    The buildings shall not be occupied/brought into use until a report detailing 
the results of the archaeological fieldwork undertaken has been produced in a 
form suitable for publication in a suitable and agreed journal and has been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
submission to the editor of the journal. 
         Reason: The site is located within an area identified in the Unitary 
Development Plan a being of potential archaeological interest and the publication 
of the results will enhance understanding of and will allow public access to the 
work undertaken in accordance with paragraph 199 of the NPPF, Local Plan S6.5 
and policies DM6.6 and DM6.7. 
           
35.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved a scheme for managing any borehole installed for the installed for the 
investigation of soils, groundwater or geotechnical purposes shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the 
Environment Agency. The scheme shall provide details of how redundant 
boreholes/pits are to be decommissioned and how any boreholes that need to be 
retained, post-development, for monitoring purposes will be secured protected 
and inspected. The scheme as approved shall be implemented prior to the 
occupation of each phase of development. The EA can provide our 'Good 
practice for decommissioning redundant boreholes and wells' upon request.  
         Reason: This information is required from the outset to prevent 
contamination having regard to the NPPF. 
 
36.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the construction of any part of the 
development hereby approved above damp-proof course level a schedule and/or 
samples of all surfacing materials and external building materials, including doors 
and windows) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, the development shall not be carried out other than in 
accordance with the approved details.  
         Reason: To ensure a satisfactory appearance having regard to Policy 
DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
37.    Notwithstanding Condition 1, prior to the commencement of any 
construction works on the site details showing the existing and proposed ground 

Page 79



 

levels and levels of thresholds and floor levels of the proposed buildings shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Such 
levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed and known datum point. Thereafter, 
the development shall not be carried out other than in accordance with the 
approved details. 
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that the 
work is carried out at suitable levels in relation to adjoining properties and 
highways, having regard to amenity, access, highway and drainage requirements 
and protecting existing landscape features having regard to the NPPF and policy 
DM6.1 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
38. Restrict Hours No Construction Sun BH HOU004 * 

 
39.    No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being 
retained on the submitted plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or 
destroyed, cut back in any way or removed during the development phase other 
than in accordance with the approved plans or without the prior written consent of 
the Local Planning Authority. Any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without such 
consent, or which die or become severely damaged or seriously diseased within 
three years from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be 
replaced with trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species until the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.  
         Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
landscaping having regard to Policies DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan (2017). 
 
40.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved a revised Arboricultural Method Statement (AMS) and Tree Protection 
Plan (TPP) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. This revised information must incorporate the amended layout as per 
revised drawing No. DR-L- 0801 P03.  Thereafter, the development hereby 
permitted shall only be carried out in accordance with the revised Arboricultural 
Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan and BS5837:2012 'Trees in relation 
to design, demolition and construction - Recommendations'. The TPP is to be 
extended to include any areas of retained grassland habitat to the north and 
western boundaries of the site.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
existing landscape features are adequately protected in the interests of amenity 
and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping having regard to Policies 
DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
41.    Prior to the commencement of any site clearance works in connection with 
the development hereby approved (including demolition/excavation works, tree 
works, soil moving, hardstandings, temporary access construction and / or 
widening or any operations involving the use of motorised vehicles or 
construction machinery, site security fencing, services), the trees within or 
adjacent to and overhang the site that are to be retained are to be protected by 
fencing and in the locations in the Tree Protection Plan (TPP) pursuant to 
condition 40. No operational work, site clearance works or the development itself 
shall commence until the fencing is installed.  The protective fence shall remain 
in place until the works are complete or unless otherwise agreed in writing with 

Page 80



 

the Local Planning Authority.  The protective fence is not to be repositioned 
without the approval of the Local Authority. 
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
existing landscape features are adequately protected in the interests of amenity 
and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping having regard to Policies 
DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
42.    All works within the root protection area (RPA) of the retained trees that 
include (but not limited to) kerb installation, fence post installation, footpath 
construction, lighting, drainage and the installation of any services (utilities), are 
to be carried out in complete accordance with the Arboricultural Method 
Statement, BS 5837:2012 and the National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) 
'Guidelines for the Planning, Installation and Maintenance of Utility Apparatus in 
Proximity To Trees'.  Where works are within the RPA (root protection area) of 
any tree, works will be undertaken by hand or suitable method such as an air 
spade to ensure works will not damage to the root systems of the retained trees. 
Confirmation of the proposed working method is to be submitted and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to any works hereby approved 
commencing on site. Thereafter, the development hereby approved shall be 
carried out in full accordance with these agreed details.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
existing landscape features are adequately protected in the interests of amenity 
and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping having regard to Policies 
DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
43.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved above damp proof course level a fully detailed landscape plan and 
landscape management and monitoring plan for a period of 10 years shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
landscape scheme shall include:  
         -Native standard trees at 10m spacings to be planted within any native 
hedgerow  
         -Native hedge to northern boundary to extend long the western boundary  
         -Standard trees to the western boundary to be a minimum of 14-16cm girth  
         -Temporary fence will be required to restrict access and minimise 
disturbance to the northern boundary of the hedgerow to the SUD's area    
         -Details of retained semi-improved grassland areas 
         -Details of re-instated species rich grassland areas 
          
         The landscape management and monitoring plan for all landscaping within 
the application site, including the SUDs area within the LWS shall include:  
         -Long term design objectives, management responsibilities, timescales and 
maintenance schedules for all landscaped, grassed or paved areas.  
         Details of monitoring surveys of the SUDs pond and species rich grassland 
areas with update reports submitted to the LPA for review.   
          
         The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details within the first available planting season following the approval 
of details.  All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved details and to a standard in accordance with the relevant 
recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014.  Any trees or plants that, within 

Page 81



 

a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or become seriously 
damaged or defective, shall be replaced with others of species, size and number 
as originally approved, by the end of the first available planting season thereafter.  
The development shall be carried out in full accordance with the approved 
landscape details and landscape management and monitoring plan.  
         Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
landscaping having regard to Policies DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan (2017). 
 
44.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved above damp proof course level details of landscaping for the new 
roundabout and road alterations shall be submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in 
accordance with the approved details within the first available planting season 
following the approval of details.  All hard and soft landscape works shall be 
carried out in accordance with the approved details and to a standard in 
accordance with the relevant recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014.  
Any trees or plants that, within a period of five years after planting, are removed, 
die or become seriously damaged or defective, shall be replaced with others of 
species, size and number as originally approved, by the end of the first available 
planting season thereafter. 
         Reason: In the interests of amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
landscaping having regard to Policies DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside 
Local Plan (2017). 
 
45.    An arboricultural consultant is to be appointed by the developer to advise 
on the tree management for the site and to undertake regular supervision visits to 
oversee the agreed tree protection and visit as required to oversee any 
unexpected works that could affect the trees prior to any works hereby approved 
commencing on-site.  The supervision is to be undertaken in accordance with the 
approved Arboricultural Method Statement. This condition may only be fully 
discharged on completion of the development subject to satisfactory written 
evidence of regular monitoring and compliance by the pre-appointed tree 
specialist during construction.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement in the interests of 
amenity and to ensure a satisfactory standard of landscaping having regard to 
Policies DM6.1 and DM5.9 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
46.    Prior to any works commencing on site, an Ecological Clerk of Works 
(ECoW) shall be appointed by the developer to undertake a pre-commencement 
walkover and checking surveys and to advise on habitat and species protection 
and mitigation for the site. The ECoW will also undertake regular supervision 
visits to oversee the agreed habitat protection areas and visit as required to 
oversee any unexpected works that could affect habitats or species on site.  The 
supervision is to be undertaken in accordance with relevant method statements 
and a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP). This condition 
may only be fully discharged on completion of the development subject to 
satisfactory written evidence of regular monitoring and compliance by the pre-
appointed ecologist prior to and during construction.  

Page 82



 

         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
local wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
47.    Prior to the construction of any unit hereby approved above damp proof 
course level, details of the internal footpaths that provide access onto the 
adjacent wagonway shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. These details shall include alignment, width not exceeding 
2.5m, levels surface treatment and boundary treatment. Thereafter, footpaths 
shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and where 
footpaths are constructed within the RPA's of retained trees, works shall be 
carried out in accordance with BS 5837:2012 using Cell web or similar.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
           
48.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved a Litter Management Strategy for the construction and operation of the 
development that extends into the Silverlink Biodiversity Park Local Wildlife Site 
(LWS) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Thereafter, the development hereby approved shall be carried out in 
full accordance with these agreed details and permanently retained post 
construction.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
local wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
           
49.    No tree or vegetation removal shall take place during the bird nesting 
season (March- August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified 
ecologist has confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works 
commencing. 
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
           
50.    Prior to the commencement of any unit hereby approved above damp proof 
course level details of 10no. bird boxes (variety of designs) shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall 
include specifications and suitable locations. Thereafter, these agreed details 
shall be installed prior to any unit hereby approved being brought into use and 
shall be permanently maintained and retained.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
           
51.    Prior to the commencement of any unit hereby approved above damp proof 
course level details of 10no. bat boxes shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include specifications 
and suitable locations. Thereafter, these agreed details shall be installed prior to 
any unit hereby approved being brought into use and shall be permanently 
maintained and retained.  

Page 83



 

         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
52.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved an Amphibian Working Method Statement shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works onsite 
shall be carried out in full accordance with these agreed details.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
local wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
53.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved an Invasive Species working method statement shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works 
onsite shall be carried out in full accordance with these agreed details.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that the 
amenity of the area is protected in the interests of ecology having regard to the 
NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
54.    Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby 
approved a Hedgehog Working Method Statement shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, all works onsite 
shall be carried out in full accordance with these agreed details.  
         Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that 
local wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
55.    Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for 
mammals that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in 
width and angled no greater than 45°.  
         Reason: To ensure that local wildlife populations are protected in the 
interests of ecology having regard to the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North 
Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
          
 
Statement under Article 35 of the Town & Country (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015): 
The Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively with the applicant 
to identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the 
proposal comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, 
social and environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the 
development plan. These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been 
secured by planning condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore 
implemented the requirements in Paragraph 38 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 84



 

Informatives 
 
Building Regulations Required  (I03) 
 
Consent to Display Advertisement Reqd  (I04) 
 
Contact ERH Construct Highway Access  (I05) 
 
Contact ERH Works to Footway  (I08) 
 
No Doors Gates to Project Over Highways  (I10) 
 
Do Not Obstruct Highway Build Materials  (I13) 
 
Advice All Works Within Applicants Land  (I29) 
 
Take Care Proximity to Party Boundary  (I21) 
 
Coal Mining Referral Area , (FULH)  (I43) 
 
Street Naming and numbering  (I45) 
 
Highway Inspection before dvlpt  (I46) 
 
Free and full access to the Public Right of Way network is always to be 
maintained.  Should it be necessary for the protection of route users to 
temporarily close or divert an existing route during development, this should be 
agreed with the council's Public Rights of Way Officer. 
 
Northumbrian Waterinform you that strategic water mains lie within the site 
boundary and may be affected by the proposed development. Northumbrian 
Water does not permit a building over or close to our apparatus. We will work 
with the developer to establish the exact location of our assets and ensure any 
necessary diversion, relocation or protection measures required prior to the 
commencement of the development.  We include this informative so that 
awareness is given to the presence of assets on site. For further information is 
available at https://www.nwl.co.uk/services/developers/ 
 
Environment Agency information:   -Sub water fuel storage (Position Statement 
D3) With each storage tank having a diameter of 3.02m and groundwater levels 
known to be between 0.6-3.6m below ground level, it is inevitable that the tanks 
and most of the related sub-surface infrastructure will be below the water table in 
the superficial geology (estimated to be at least 8m in thickness) underlying the 
site. Therefore mitigation measures should be strenuous and pollution prevention 
measures should remain robust during installation and operational phases of the 
development. The integrity of the concrete infrastructure in which the tanks will 
be places must be sufficient to prevent any leaking petrol or diesel from escaping 
into surrounding groundwater and any leaks must be dealt with swiftly to prevent 
pollution of the environment. Ponds with potential hydraulic connectivity with shall 
groundwater are located ~ 165 metres south-west, ~ 100m east and ~ 200m 
south-east of the proposed location for fuel storage. Pollution prevention 

Page 85



 

measures must be robust to ensure that hydrocarbons cannot migrate laterally to 
these sensitive habitats.   -Surface water drainage  Formal consent should exist 
for discharge of surface water to the proposed Highways drain should be in 
place. The two Class 1 oil-water separators ('forecourt separator' to serve the 
petrol filling station and 'bypass separator' to serve the 'drive thru' coffee shop) 
should be of sufficient capacity for the volumes of surface water to be treated. 
They must be serviced, maintained and cleaned as per manufacturer's 
instructions to ensure they do not pose a risk of pollution to groundwater and 
surface waters.   -Adherence to good practice guidance  Good practice should be 
followed in the location, design, construction and maintenance of petrol stations 
and other fuel dispensing facilities. Due regard should be given to 'The 
Environment Agency's approach to groundwater protection' document, in 
particular the position statements and guidance in the section on the storage of 
pollutants (chapter D). You should also refer to the following pollution prevention 
and mitigation guidance including: -Guidance on Environmental Management at 
Petrol Filling Stations - Energy Institute  -Design, construction, modification, 
maintenance and decommissioning of filling stations (also known as the Blue 
Book (APEA/EI) - Energy Institute - 4th Edition, 2018 - It is acknowledged that 
the Blue Blook will be adhered to in this development.  -Groundwater Protection 
Code - Petrol stations and other fuel dispensing facilities involving underground 
storage tanks - Defra Code of Practice -CIRIA C736: Design of Containment 
Systems for the Prevention of Water Pollution The Blue Book provides detailed 
information on the decommissioning (and investigation) of redundant tanks, risk 
assessment, the design and construction criteria and maintenance procedures 
which we expect to be implemented -Adhere to Land Contamination: Risk 
Management (LCRM) guidance  While some site investigation work has been 
undertaken, we recommend that developers should do the following;  -
Follow the risk management framework provided in Land Contamination: Risk 
Management, when dealing with land affected by contamination;   -Refer to our 
Guiding principles for land contamination for the type of information that we 
require in order to assess risks to controlled waters from the site - the local 
authority can advise on risk to other receptors such as human health;   -
Consider using the National Quality Mark Scheme for Land Contamination 
Management which involves the use of competent persons to ensure that land 
contamination risks are appropriately managed.   Please note that our comments 
are only in relation to environmental issues. Other may need to be consulted with 
respect to Health and Safety or amenity issues.   Further guidance can be found 
on water management pages of gov.uk   
 
 
 
  

Page 86



 

 

 

 
Application reference: 20/01741/FUL 
Location: Plot 11, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, West 
Allotment  
Proposal: Erection of petrol filling station (Sui Generis) with associated 
retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee shop (Use Class E) with 
associated car parking, service arrangements, landscaping and access 
including the provision of a new roundabout  

Not to scale © Crown Copyright and database right 
2011.  Ordnance Survey Licence 
Number 0100016801 

 

Date: 30.03.2021 

 

Page 87



 

Appendix 1 – 20/01741/FUL 
Item 2 
 
Consultations/representations 
 
1.0 Internal Consultees 
1.1 Highways Network Manager 
1.2 This application is for the erection of a petrol filling station (Sui Generis) with 
associated retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee shop (Use Class E) 
with associated car parking, service arrangements, landscaping & access 
including the provision of a new roundabout 
 
1.3 The site is vacant and is located to the north of the business park on 
Silverlink North and a Transport Assessment (TA) was submitted as part of the 
application which looked at the highway network in the vicinity of the site.  The 
impact of the development on the network is not deemed as severe.  As part of 
the development, a new roundabout is proposed that will also serve the existing 
hospital site opposite and act as a traffic calming feature on the existing road. 
 
1.4 Servicing will take place wholly within the site and parking has been provided 
to meet the needs of the site with cycle parking and Electric Vehicle (EV) 
charging points included in the layout. 
 
1.5 The site has pedestrian links into the existing adopted highway at the front as 
well as the Public Right of Way to the east of the site and a Framework Travel 
Plan has been included. 
 
1.6 For these reasons outlined above, conditional approval is recommended. 
 
1.7 Recommendation - Conditional Approval 
 
1.8 The applicant will be required to formally close all roads and footpaths within 
the site that are no longer required under Section 247/257 of the Town & Country 
Planning Act 1980. 
 
1.9 The applicant will be required to enter into an appropriate Legal Agreement 
for the following works: 
Provision of roundabout new accesses 
Improved footpath links 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 
 
1.10 Conditions: 
ACC25 - Turning Areas: Before Occ 
PAR04 - Veh: Parking, Garaging before Occ 
REF01 - Refuse Storage: Detail, Provide Before Occ 
SIT07 - Construction Management 
SIT08 - Wheel Wash 

Page 88



 

 
No part of the development shall be occupied until a scheme for the following off-
site highway works has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local 
planning Authority.  This scheme shall be carried out in accordance with the 
agreed details and retained thereafter: 
 
Provision of roundabout new accesses 
Improved footpath links 
Associated street lighting 
Associated drainage 
Associated road markings 
Associated Traffic Regulation Orders 
Associated street furniture & signage 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until any adopted highways or 
Public Rights of Way no longer required within the site have been formally 
stopped up under Section 247/257 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until a car park management 
strategy has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  This strategy shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details 
and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until a delivery, service & refuse 
management strategy including appropriate methodology & signage has been 
submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local planning Authority.  This strategy 
shall be carried out in accordance with the agreed details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
No part of the development shall be occupied until a scheme for secure, 
undercover cycle parking has been submitted to and agreed in writing by the 
Local planning Authority.  This scheme shall be carried out in accordance with 
the agreed details and retained thereafter. 
Reason: In the interests of highway safety. 
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted in the Framework Travel Plan, no part of 
the development shall be occupied until a Full Travel Plan has been submitted to 
and approved by in writing the Local Planning Authority.  The Travel Plan will 
require the Travel Plan Coordinator to be in place prior to first occupation until at 
least two years from occupation of the final dwelling and will also include an 
undertaking to conduct travel surveys to monitor whether the Travel Plan targets 
are being met and be retained thereafter. 
Reason: To accord with Central Government and Council Policy concerning 
sustainable transport. 
 
1.11 Informatives: 
I05 - Contact ERH: Construct Highway Access 
I08 - Contact ERH: Works to footway. 

Page 89



 

I10 - No Doors/Gates to Project over Highways 
I13 - Don't obstruct Highway, Build Materials 
I45 - Street Naming & Numbering 
I46 - Highway Inspection before dvlpt 
 
Free and full access to the Public Right of Way network is always to be 
maintained.  Should it be necessary for the protection of route users to 
temporarily close or divert an existing route during development, this should be 
agreed with the council's Public Rights of Way Officer. 
 
1.12 Contaminated Land Officer 
1.13 Due to the lack of geotechnical reports submitted for review and limited gas 
monitoring data carried out I am unable to make a fully informed decision. 
 
1.14 The central part of the site lies within a Coal referral area and although the 
environmental assessment has suggested the installation of a gas membrane no 
detail of the exact membrane have been given. Due to the lack of information and 
the age of the reports that the environmental assessment was based on (14 
years) the following must be attached: 
 
Con 003, CON004, CON005, CON006, CON007  
Gas 006 
 
1.15 Environmental Health  
1.16 I have reviewed the applicant’s response indicating that a noise assessment 
was scoped out at the pre-application stage.  I would agree that a detailed noise 
assessment was not necessary for the determination of the application.  
However, where any noise generating external plant and equipment that may 
result in additional noise to the area would need to be considered and a noise 
scheme provided via planning conditions to ensure no increase to the 
background noise levels where these are already elevated.  Road traffic noise is 
anonymous in nature whereas plant noise such as external chiller units, extractor 
fans, pumps etc, which may have associated tonality of operate intermittently 
would need to be assessed in accordance to BS4142 and therefore I disagree 
that a noise scheme for the installation of such equipment would not be 
necessary.  It is not considered that the distance and topography of the land 
would provide sufficient screening and as the existing background noise levels 
are not known and external plant may operate during the night time period when 
the background would be lower, a noise scheme to ensure any noise external 
plant and equipment is suitably mitigated will be required.   
 
1.17 I note that the applicant advises that M&S and Costa unit will not have any 
cooking of foods and for that reason no kitchen extraction or odour abatement 
equipment is required.  A condition will need to be attached to any planning 
consent to prohibit cooking of foods and to only permit the reheating of foods. 
 
1.18 If planning approval is to be given, I would recommend the following 
conditions: 
 
EPL01 in accordance to layout plan provided with application. 
EPL02 

Page 90



 

EPL03 
 
Non standard condition: Cooking of foods 
No equipment for the cooking of foods to be installed or used within the retail 
units at any time.  Only small appliances for the reheating of foods shall be 
permitted for use in the units. 
 
HOU03 A3 and Retail kiosk 07:00 - 23:00 hours Outdoor seating area to be 
restricted to 07:00 and 21:00 hours. 
 
Deliveries or collections to the site to be restricted to between 07:00 hours and 
23:00 hours. 
 
NOI02 
NOI10 
 
Noise condition: New External Plant and Equipment 
A noise scheme must be submitted in accordance with BS4142 to determine the 
current background noise levels for daytime, evening and night. The rating level 
for all external plant and equipment must not exceed the current background 
noise levels. 
 
It will be necessary following installation of the plant and equipment that acoustic 
testing is undertaken to verify compliance with this condition within one month of 
its installation and submitted for written approval prior to the operation of the 
plant and thereafter maintain in working order. 
 
LIG01 
 
1.19 Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA) 
1.20 I have carried out a review of planning application 20/01741/FUL surface 
water drainage proposals. I can confirm in principle I have no objections to these 
proposals, as the applicant will be providing surface water attenuation within the 
developments surface water drainage network and suds pond which are 
designed to accommodate a 1in100yr storm event + 40% increase for climate 
change. The surface water from the suds pond will then discharge into an 
existing highway drain which serves The Silverlink North. The rate of discharge 
from the site will be restricted to the equivalent to greenfield run-off rate of 3.9l/s 
and will be controlled via the use of a flow control device.  The suds pond will be 
under the ownership of the developer and the future maintenance of these assets 
will be either carried out by the developer or an appointed management 
company. The proposed petrol station drainage will incorporate a forecourt 
separator which will help prevent pollutants from entering the site’s surface water 
drainage system. 
 
1.21 I would recommend the following conditions are placed on the application: 
- A copy of the detailed surface water drainage design to be provided to the 
LLLFA for approval prior to construction. 
- Details of the appointed Suds management company to be provided to LLFA 
upon completion of development. 

Page 91



 

- A plan showing the surface water flow paths through the development for 
rainfall events in exceedance of a 1in100yr storm event and identifying any 
mitigation measures required to prevent flooding to buildings during this type of 
rainfall event. 
- A Condition survey to be undertaken of The Silverlink North highway drain from 
the A191 roundabout through to a distance of 100m south of the proposed 
connection point. Any issues identified within the highway drain to be raised with 
LLFA and any agreed repairs to be undertaken by developer prior to a formal 
connection being made. 
 
1.22 Landscape and Biodiversity 
1.23 Existing Site Context 
1.24 The proposed development site comprises of approx. 2.0ha of open space 
currently vacant of any use. The site is located to the south of New York Road 
(A191) and east of the Silverlink North.  A designated Local Wildlife Site and 
Local Nature Reserve (Silverlink Park & Wagonway LWS & LNR) lies to the 
south of the site, with part of this designated site located within the red line 
boundary of the proposed scheme. The Silverlink wagonway lies adjacent to the 
eastern boundary of the site which is supported on both sides by linear hedgerow 
sections and trees with fragmented, individual and occasional tree groupings. To 
the west of the site, beyond the Silverlink North road, lies another Local Wildlife 
Site, West Allotment Pond LWS.   
 
1.25 The majority of the proposed development site comprises of semi-improved 
grassland, with boundary planting that includes ornamental planting and semi-
mature tree avenues along the western and northern boundary. A strip of land 
along the southern boundary, of approximately 0.45ha, supports a mosaic of 
scattered and dense scrub, coarse grassland and marshy grassland. This area is 
within the boundary of the Silverlink Park Local Wildlife Site (LWS). 
 
1.26 The application is for the erection of a petrol filling station with associated 
retail kiosk and drive-thru coffee shop with associated car parking, service 
arrangements, landscaping and access including the provision of a new 
roundabout. The scheme also includes SuDs as part of the design. 
 
1.27 The site is allocated in the adopted North Tyneside Local Plan as ‘available 
employment land’ under Policy S.2.2. and located in a wildlife corridor as defined 
by the North Tyneside Local Plan. Part of the site is also within the Silverlink Park 
and Wagonway LWS.  In terms of the environment, the following Local Plan 
polices apply: 
 
-DM5.2 The Protection of Green Infrastructure  
-S5.4 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
-DM5.5 Managing effects on Biodiversity and Geodiversity 
-DM5.7 Wildlife Corridors 
-Policy DM 5.9 Trees, woodland and hedgerows 
-NPPF ‘Conserving and Enhancing the Natural Environment’ sections 170, 174 
and 175. 
 

Page 92



 

1.28 Following on from discussions and previous comments, a number of 
surveys, reports and revised information has been submitted to support the 
application including the following: 
-Arboricultural Impact Assessment Arboricultural Method Statement Tree 
Protection Plan  
-Ecological Appraisal 
-Breeding Bird Survey 
-Flood Risk & Drainage Assessment Report 
-Revised Planting Strategy (Drawing no DR-L-0201 P04) 
-Revised Illustrative masterplan (Drawing No. DR-L- 0801 P04) 
-Revised Proposed Site Layout (Drawing No. 15370-23 Rev C) 
 
1.29 Landscape (Trees and Landscape Design) 
1.30 An Arboricultural Impact Assessment Arboricultural Method Statement Tree 
Protection Plan has been submitted by Elliot Consultancy in accordance with 
British Standard 5837:2012 ‘Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition & 
Construction’. The trees within the site are not protected by a TPO or located 
within a conservation area.  However, the structural tree cover and hedgerows 
bordering the site are important existing landscape assets as they complement 
and support the biodiversity of the immediate and wider area as well as helping 
to screen the area from external lateral views into the site.   
 
1.31 Trees are an important feature in urban landscapes and make a significant 
contribution to the character and quality of our landscape.  The existing 
tree/scrub groups are an important component of the wider green infrastructure 
to the area which has developed into an attractive, connected and successful 
landscape design, which compliments the more native and informal layout of the 
surrounding parks/wildlife sites. Therefore, the development should, in the first 
instance, seek to retain, preserve and protect any existing healthy tree structure 
as first consideration in any design for the scheme to be acceptable.   
 
1.32 The submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) details the following 
impacts:- 
 
-Loss of trees to the southern boundary (Group 2) due to the construction of the 
new access, buildings, SUDs basin, and car parking areas.  Tree group 2 is 
located in an area of land that is contained within the Local Wildlife Site and will 
require removal to accommodate a SUD’s area to the south of the site.      
-Two sections of existing trees are to be removed to the eastern boundary of the 
site (tree group 6) to allow access to the existing wagonway.  
-Standard trees along the western boundary are also to be removed (T8 to 17) 
which are young, recently planted trees.  A landscape strategy has been 
submitted (revised illustrative masterplan) which indicates that the western 
boundary will be replanted with a tree/shrub line similar to that which currently 
exists.  
-In addition to tree loss to accommodate the build, there will potentially be 
damage to retained trees during the construction of new footpaths and parking 
bays.  The design shows footpath and parking adjacent to Groups 3 & 6 that 
could lead to branch damage. However, it is proposed to install the appropriate 
protective fencing to ensure damage is minimized. No details have been provided 
regarding utilities which could further impact on retained tree groups. 

Page 93



 

 
1.33 Ecological Appraisal 
1.34 An Ecological appraisal has been submitted to support the application. 
Surveys undertaken in 2014 and 2020 show that the site comprises mainly poor 
semi-improved grassland with areas of coarse mesotrophic grassland at the 
edges, small areas of which are more diverse semi-improved neutral grassland.  
The southern boundary consists of tall herb, tall ruderal and scattered scrub 
vegetation with scattered scrub and marshy grassland habitat in the south east 
part of the site. This area is part of the Local Wildlife Site and Nature Reserve. 
 
1.35 No evidence of potential bat roosts was found on site, though the trees, 
hedgerow and scrub provide foraging opportunities for bats. Field data for 2020 
undertaken at the end of August showed low bat activity by common pipistrelle 
bats with the main features of importance being the wagonway and adjacent 
country park (LWS).  Field data from 2014, undertaken in July and August, 
showed more activity across the whole site (July). Water vole and otter were not 
thought likely to use the site. Eight great crested newt ponds are located within 
500m of the site. eDNA survey indicated that great crested newts are absent 
from ponds within 250m of the site and so unlikely to be adversely affected by the 
development.  No evidence of badger was found and it is not considered likely 
that this species is present on site.  No significant invertebrate species were 
found on site during survey and no patches of important food source plants for 
key species were recorded. Hedgehog, brown hare and common toad were 
considered likely to be present on site at times throughout the year, though there 
are no nearby hedgehog records.  
 
1.36 Assessment of the survey results suggest that the site is of low to local 
value for the habitats it supports, but adjacent to, and part of, a wider network of 
habitats of district value including the Silverlink Park and Waggonway LWS and 
Local Nature Reserve. 
 
1.37 The potential impacts of the scheme include the following:- 
-Loss of trees, scrub and ornamental shrub 
-Loss of 0.25ha of habitats within the Local Wildlife Site (for SuDS) 
-Loss of approximately 1ha of semi-improved grassland 
-Lighting impacts to the LWS and wagonway and impacts on commuting and 
foraging bats 
-Loss of planting along the wagonway 
-Loss of habitat supporting breeding birds and foraging/commuting bats 
-Harm/disturbance to amphibians 
 
1.38 The mitigation for the impacts of the scheme include landscaping within the 
site, precautionary method statements for amphibians and hedgehog, provision 
of bird and bat boxes and lighting design to minimize impacts on bats.  
 
1.39 Breeding Bird Survey 
1.40 Breeding bird surveys undertaken between April to June in 2014 found a 
total of 47 pairs of 20 species recorded in the study area. All of these pairs were 
using the trees and scrub surrounding the grassland; no birds were nesting in the 
grassland. Due to the study area’s urban setting, it was considered to form part of 

Page 94



 

a network of habitats including the country park and waggonway of at least parish 
value. 
 
1.41 Breeding bird survey undertaken in 2020 found 38 pairs of 18 species in the 
study area. Of these, 16 pairs of 13 species were found within the site itself with 
no birds found nesting in the grassland. Three UK Priority Species and Birds of 
Conservation Concern (BoCC) were found breeding within the site (Bullfinch, 
Reed Bunting and Dunnock). These were all breeding within the southern 
boundary of the site within the Local Wildlife Site.  The assessment states that 
the site and immediate setting is likely to be of up to parish value due to the 
presence of species such as bullfinch, blackcap, long-tailed tit and reed bunting. 
These species do not tend to be present in urban habitats such as gardens and 
built development and thus are likely to be absent from many parts of the 
surrounding area.  
 
1.42 The report concludes that the majority of breeding birds are present in scrub 
and hedgerows along the southern and eastern boundaries and retaining 
habitats in these areas will minimise impacts on birds. It therefore recommends 
retaining existing scrub and hedgerows where possible, particularly along the 
southern and eastern boundaries.  
 
1.43 Impacts of the Development and Mitigation 
1.44 Local Wildlife Site Impacts  
1.45 The northern boundary of Silverlink Biodiversity Park LWS is within the site 
boundary for this application and is proposed for use as a drainage area. This 
includes a large SuDs area with associated connections. Whilst no detailed 
drainage plans have been submitted, the SuDs scheme and drainage solutions 
currently presented are overly engineered with little biodiversity value, resulting in 
the loss of valuable habitat (grassland/scrub mosaic habitat).  As this will form 
part of the LWS, discussions have been held and an alternative SUD’s design 
has been agreed that will allow a permanent shallow body of water that will offer 
a wider range of diverse habitats more suited to the local wildlife site. This will 
benefit amphibians and species such as great crested newt which the site is 
designated for.  
 
1.46 Additional native planting (native hedges and scrub) to the immediate area 
surrounding the SUD’s pond will provide an essential buffer between the 
development and the LWS and protect the site from disturbance associated with 
litter/pollution, noise, lighting and human disturbance.  This planting should be 
temporarily fenced off until it becomes established to ensure the LWS is 
adequately protected. 
 
1.47 In addition to the above, Silverlink Biodiversity Park LWS will also be subject 
to indirect impacts associated with the scheme as a result of an increase in 
footfall and litter issues. The applicant has agreed to manage litter within the 
development site and the adjacent Local Wildlife Site to address this (by way of 
condition) and a financial contribution will also be secured towards the 
management of habitats within Silverlink Park. 
 
 
 

Page 95



 

1.48 Mitigation 
1.49 Standard trees along the western boundary are also to be removed (T8 to 
17) which are young, recently planted trees. No detailed landscape plans have 
been provided with the application, but a landscape strategy has been submitted 
(Illustrative masterplan) which indicates that the western boundary will be 
replanted with a tree/shrub line similar to that which currently exists. The scheme 
will partially impact the LWS as a result of drainage requirements and there will 
be some tree, scrub and semi-improved grassland loss. To mitigate these 
impacts, the attenuation pond will be designed to hold permanent water to 
provide biodiversity benefits and native scrub and hedgerow planting will be 
provided along the northern boundary of the LWS to enhance and protect this 
area. In addition, a 7m wide native scrub planting buffer will be provided along 
the eastern boundary of the site as well as a native hedge to the northern 
boundary of the petrol station. Areas of semi-improved grassland will be retained 
where possible within the site and re-instated in those areas shown on the 
landscape plan to species rich grassland. The loss of semi-improved grassland 
within the site will also be addressed by a financial contribution towards the 
management of grassland habitat within the adjacent Silverlink Biodiversity Park 
LWS. 
 
1.50 Impacts to the wildlife corridor /wagonway 
1.51 The wagonway to the east of the site will be impacted through the 
introduction of two new footpaths cutting through this area.  Preapp comments 
previously provided for this site, outlined the importance of the wagonway 
suggesting that planting should be retained and enhanced with buffer planting to 
protect this route from the adjacent development, particularly lighting impacts. 
After various discussion the 2no two footpath routes onto the wagonway would 
be acceptable on the condition that the footpath width is narrow (no more than 
2.5m wide) and unlit. Additional buffer planting to the eastern boundary of the 
development site has been provided to enhance the planting along the 
wagonway giving an overall 7.0m width of buffer planting. 
 
1.52 Lighting Impacts 
1.53 A Lighting Impact Assessment has not been submitted at this stage.  This 
will enable the LPA to assess the impact of lighting on the southern and eastern 
boundaries of the site and impacts to foraging and commuting bats. Lighting 
within the site has the potential to have an adverse impact on the Local Wildlife 
Site/Nature Reserve and the wagonway which form part of the designated wildlife 
corridor, however it has been agreed that this information can be provided on 
condition and that any lighting adjacent to the LWS and wagonway must be 
below 2 lux.  
 
1.54 Impact on Amenity 
1.55 A landscape strategy has been submitted (revised illustrative masterplan) 
which indicates that the western boundary will be replanted with a tree/shrub line 
similar to that which currently exists. The landscape scheme will be revised to 
include planting to the northern boundary of the site with native shrub planting or 
a hedgerow with trees to mark the boundary of the site and reduce the visual 
impact of the development.  Planting to the west of the SUDS basin will be less 
ornamental incorporating native tree and scrub planting and extend along the 
north of the suds area following the new access road and path more in keeping 

Page 96



 

with the LWS.  A fence will be required to restrict access and minimise 
disturbance to an area which will be in effect an extension of the LWS and this 
will also protect the planting as it becomes established.   The area to the east of 
the SUDS is already established with tree, scrub and marshy grassland. This 
area is part of the Local Wildlife Site (LWS) and the northern boundary of this 
part of the LWS contains dense scrub that will be retained and protected as part 
of the works.  To ensure successful establishment of the area, a litter strategy will 
be required as part of a management plan 
 
1.56 Conditions 
1.57 Taking into account further revisions required (on condition) the scheme has 
considered design changes and mitigation that minimizes impacts, protects 
important features such as the Local Wildlife Site and wagonway and provides 
adequate mitigation for habitat loss.   The development is acceptable in principle, 
subject to the provision of a financial contribution agreed by the LPA, towards 
Silverlink Biodiversity Park and the following conditions being attached to the 
application: 
 
Protection of retained trees/shrubs/hedges 
No trees, shrubs or hedges within the site which are shown as being retained on 
the submitted plans shall be felled, uprooted, wilfully damaged or destroyed, cut 
back in any way or removed during the development phase other than in 
accordance with the approved plans or without the prior written consent of the 
Local Planning Authority. Any trees, shrubs or hedges removed without such 
consent, or which die or become severely damaged or seriously diseased within 
three years from the completion of the development hereby permitted shall be 
replaced with trees, shrubs or hedge plants of similar size and species until the 
Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.  
 
Arboricultural Method Statement 
A revised Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree Protection Plan is to be 
submitted to incorporate the amended layout as per revised drawing No. DR-L- 
0801 P03.  Thereafter, the development hereby permitted shall only be carried 
out in accordance with the revised Arboricultural Method Statement and Tree 
Protection Plan and BS5837:2012 ‘Trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction – Recommendations’. The TPP is to be extended to include any 
areas of retained grassland habitat to the north and western boundaries of the 
site.  
 
Tree Protective Fencing  
Prior to the commencement of any site clearance works in connection with the 
development hereby approved (including demolition/excavation works, tree 
works, soil moving, hardstandings,  temporary access construction and / or 
widening or any operations involving the use of motorised vehicles or 
construction machinery, site security fencing, services),  the trees within or 
adjacent to and overhang the site that are to be retained are to be protected by 
fencing and in the locations in the Tree Protection Plan (TPP). No operational 
work, site clearance works or the development itself shall commence until the 
fencing is installed.  The protective fence shall remain in place until the works are 
complete or unless otherwise agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  

Page 97



 

The protective fence is NOT to be repositioned without the approval of the Local 
Authority. 
 
Implementation of Tree Protection during development  
All works within the RPA of the retained trees that include (but not limited to) kerb 
installation, fence post installation, footpath construction, lighting, drainage and 
the installation of any services (utilities), are to be carried out in complete 
accordance with the Arboricultural Method Statement, BS 5837:2012 and the 
National Joint Utilities Group (NJUG) ‘Guidelines for the Planning, Installation 
and Maintenance of Utility Apparatus in Proximity To Trees’.  Where works are 
within the RPA (root protection area) of any tree, works will be undertaken by 
hand or suitable method such as an air spade to ensure works will not damage to 
the root systems of the retained trees. Confirmation of the proposed working 
method is to be submitted for approval.  
 
Lighting                                                                                                                                                                  
Prior to the installation of any floodlighting or other form of external lighting, a 
lighting scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. High intensity security lights will be avoided as far as practical 
and if required, these will be of minimum practicable brightness, be set on a short 
timer and will be motion sensitive only to larger objects.  Lighting must be 
designed in accordance with the BCT & Institute of Lighting Professionals (ILP) 
Guidance Note 08/18 “Bats & Artificial Lighting in the UK’ to minimise light spill to 
adjacent boundary features such as woodland, scrub, grassland and hedgerow 
habitats and should be less than 2 lux in these areas. This shall include the 
following information: 
-a statement of frequency of use, and the hours of illumination; 
-a site plan showing the area to be lit relative to the surrounding area, indicating 
parking or access arrangements where appropriate, and highlighting any 
significant existing or proposed landscape or boundary features; 
-details of the number, location and height of the proposed lighting columns or 
other 
fixtures;                                                                                                                                                           
-the type, number, mounting height and alignment of the luminaires; 
-the beam angles and upward waste light ratio for each light; 
-an isolux diagram showing the predicted illuminance levels at critical locations 
on the boundary of the site and where the site abuts residential properties or the 
public highway to ensure compliance with the institute of lighting engineers 
Guidance Notes for the reduction of light pollution to prevent light glare and 
intrusive light for agreed 
environmental zone; and               
-where necessary, the percentage increase in luminance and the predicted 
illuminance in the vertical plane (in lux) at key points. 
The lighting shall be installed and maintained in accordance with the approved 
scheme. 
 
Landscape scheme 
Within one month from the start on site of any operations such as site excavation 
works, site clearance (including site strip) for the development, a fully detailed 
landscape plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The landscape scheme shall include:  

Page 98



 

-Native standard trees at 10m spacings to be planted within any native hedgerow  
-Native hedge to northern boundary to extend long the western boundary  
-Standard trees to the western boundary to be a minimum of 14-16cm girth  
-Temporary fence will be required to restrict access and minimise disturbance to 
the northern boundary of the hedgerow to the SUD’s area    
-Details of retained semi-improved grassland areas 
-Details of re-instated species rich grassland areas 
 
The landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details within the first available planting season following the approval of details.  
All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and to a standard in accordance with the relevant 
recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014.  Any trees or plants that, within 
a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or become seriously 
damaged or defective, shall be replaced with others of species, size and number 
as originally approved, by the end of the first available planting season thereafter.  
No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a 
minimum period of 10 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be carried out in accordance 
with the approved schedule. 
 
Roundabout Landscape Plan 
Within one month from the start on site of any operations, details of landscaping 
for the new roundabout and road alterations is to be submitted for approval. The 
landscaping scheme shall be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details within the first available planting season following the approval of details.  
All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details and to a standard in accordance with the relevant 
recommendations of British Standard 8545:2014.  Any trees or plants that, within 
a period of five years after planting, are removed, die or become seriously 
damaged or defective, shall be replaced with others of species, size and number 
as originally approved, by the end of the first available planting season thereafter. 
 
Construction Environmental Management Plan 
The contractor’s construction method statement relating to traffic 
management/site compounds/contractor access must be submitted in writing and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority and include tree protection measures 
for the trees to be retained and retention and protection of woodland, scrub and 
grassland habitat areas.  Cabins, storage of plant and materials, and parking are 
not to be located within the RPA of the retained trees or woodland areas as 
defined by the Tree Protection Plan and maintained for the duration of the works.  
The CMS is to include details for the reinstatement of any landscaped areas 
where compounds have been sited. 
 
Drainage 
Detailed drainage plans, including details of ditches, swales and attenuation 
ponds must be submitted to the Local Authority for approval within 4 weeks of 
works commencing. Details will include profiles, cross sections and planting of 
SuDs features. Any ditches, swales or attenuation ponds will be designed to 
provide ecological benefits, including permanent open water and appropriate 
native planting agreed by the LPA. 

Page 99



 

 
Arboricultural supervision 
An arboricultural consultant is to be appointed by the developer to advise on the 
tree management for the site and to undertake regular supervision visits to 
oversee the agreed tree protection and visit as required to oversee any 
unexpected works that could affect the trees.  The supervision is to be 
undertaken in accordance with the approved Arboricultural Method Statement. 
This condition may only be fully discharged on completion of the development 
subject to satisfactory written evidence of regular monitoring and compliance by 
the pre-appointed tree specialist during construction 
 
Ecological supervision 
An Ecological Clerk of Works (ECoW) will be appointed by the developer to 
undertake a pre-commencement walkover and checking surveys and to advise 
on habitat and species protection and mitigation for the site. The ECoW will also 
undertake regular supervision visits to oversee the agreed habitat protection 
areas and visit as required to oversee any unexpected works that could affect 
habitats or species on site.  The supervision is to be undertaken in accordance 
with relevant method statements and a Construction Environmental Management 
Plan (CEMP). This condition may only be fully discharged on completion of the 
development subject to satisfactory written evidence of regular monitoring and 
compliance by the pre-appointed ecologist prior to and during construction.  
 
Footpaths   
Within one month from the start on site of any operations, details of the footpath 
network including alignment, width, levels, surface treatment and boundary 
treatment are to be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority.  Thereafter, footpaths shall be constructed in accordance with the 
approved details and where footpaths are constructed within the RPA’s of 
retained trees, works shall be carried out in accordance with BS 5837:2012 using 
Cell web or similar.   
 
Landscape Management Plan  
Prior to the commencement of any development, a detailed 10 year ‘Landscape 
Management and Monitoring Plan' for the management of all landscaping within 
the application site, including the SUDs area within the LWS, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This plan shall include 
long term design objectives, management responsibilities, timescales and 
maintenance schedules for all landscaped, grassed or paved areas. The Plan will 
include details of monitoring surveys of the SUDs pond and species rich 
grassland areas with update reports submitted to the LPA for review.  Thereafter, 
these areas shall be managed and maintained in full accordance with these 
agreed details unless first agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.   
 
Litter Management                                                                                                                                                  
Details of a Litter Management Strategy for the construction and operation of the 
development site that extends into Silverlink Biodiversity Park Local Wildlife Site 
(LWS), in order to reduce impacts from the scheme on the adjacent LWS, will be 
submitted to the LPA for approval within 4 weeks of development commencing 
on site. The Strategy will be implemented in accordance with the approved 
details. 

Page 100



 

 
Vegetation Removal                                                                                                                                                  
No tree or vegetation removal shall take place during the bird nesting season 
(March- August inclusive) unless a survey by a suitably qualified ecologist has 
confirmed the absence of nesting birds immediately prior to works commencing. 
 
Birds     
10no. bird boxes (variety of designs) will be provided in suitable locations within 
the development site or a location approved by the LPA. Details of bird box 
specification and locations must be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority within 4 weeks of development commencing on site and 
will be installed in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Bats                                                                                                                                                          
10no. bat boxes will be provided in suitable locations within the development site 
or a location approved by the LPA. Details of bat box specification and locations 
must be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority 
within 4 weeks of development commencing on site and will be installed in 
accordance with the approved plans. 
 
Amphibians 
An Amphibian working method statement will be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to works commencing on site. All works on site will be 
carried out in accordance with the approved plan. 
 
Invasive Species 
An Invasive Species working method statement will be submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval prior to works commencing on site. All works on 
site will be carried out in accordance with the approved plan. 
 
Hedgehog 
A Hedgehog working method statement will be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to works commencing on site. All works on site will be 
carried out in accordance with the approved plan. 
 
Mammals                                                                                                                                               
Any excavations left open overnight will have a means of escape for mammals 
that may become trapped in the form of a ramp at least 300mm in width and 
angled no greater than 45°.  
 
1.58 Sustainable Transport comments  
1.59 Travel Plan Summary 
1.60 A Travel Plan Statement has submitted as part of the Planning Application.  
 
1.61 A Travel Plan Bond is not required. 
 
1.62 A £1,250 Travel Plan Monitoring Fee (£250 per annum) is required, to be 
included as a Section 106 Agreement. This is for North Tyneside Council (NTC) 
Officer time spent engaging with the Travel Plan Coordinator (TPC) monitoring 
the travel plan delivery by the TPC, evaluating annual travel plan progress 

Page 101



 

reports produced by the TPC and annual survey results as submitted by the TPC. 
This fee will be secured via a Section 106 Agreement.  
  
1.63 A Full Travel Plan is required for this development. The details of this can be 
conditioned.  
 
Notwithstanding the details submitted in the Travel Plan, no part of the 
development shall be occupied until a Full Travel Plan in accordance with the 
council’s Travel Plan Scope, has been submitted to and approved by in writing 
the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter, the development shall be carried out in 
full accordance with the agreed Travel Plan. 
Reason: To accord with Central Government and Council Policy concerning 
sustainable transport. 
 
1.64 Public Rights of Way (PROW) Officer 
1.65 The following points were received by the PROW Officer:  
-North end: there is an opportunity to utilise the ‘desire line’ which has less 
gradient to create a link into the site and onto the west sustainable access routes. 
This would benefit access to the site and act as a real benefit for those heading 
north without the need to cross the road as it would take them to the New York 
Road underpass.  
-East side: the most northern link is indicated but no detail on construction and 
gradient profile. This could be conditioned but every effort should be made to 
make certain the gradients comply with DDA and I am sure they can eat into the 
site to accommodate. 
-West side south end: the provision of what appears to be a shared path linking 
to the east but it refers to ‘cycle lane’ at east end and cycle walkway at west – 
can this be clarified please? Also, the east west link ties into a split ped/cycle 
path at the west side – is this design continued as per NTC and LTN 1/20 guides 
or is it a standard shared path? What is the width and gradient profile? 
 
2.0 Representations 
2.1 A total of 12 objections have been received. These objections are set out 
below: 
- Nuisance: disturbance, dust, dirt, fumes 
- Within greenbelt/no special circumstance 
- Adverse effect on wildlife  
- Traffic congestion  
- Impact on landscape  
- Inappropriate in special landscape area  
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety  
- Poor/unsuitable vehicular access  
- Adverse effect on wildlife  
- Impact on landscape  
- Loss of visual amenity  
- Loss of/damage to trees  
- Out of keeping with surroundings  
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety  
- Traffic congestion  
- Will result in visual intrusion 

Page 102



 

- Affect character of conservation area  
- Loss of residential amenity  
-Many people access this piece of land from the wagonway and from the 
roadside to exercise their dogs. In fact, you can see a circular trail around the 
perimeter where many people have walked their dogs. Loss of this will mean that 
people will lose a grass field where they can exercise their pets.  
-The Cobalt 'loop' past this, Arnold Clark and then right is used by many to run on 
and indeed hosts amateur athletics events. The Terry O Gara 5k race is held 
here and so are the Gordon Smith Relays. The addition of these amenities will 
mean the cancellation of these events due to the route being unsafe. Yet another 
event cancelled due to the route being developed on. Given the current 
pandemic is it wise to stop people exercising and racing outdoors? 
-I question the need for a petrol station and coffee shop in this location. We have 
a petrol station in Shiremoor and then there is the Shell garage on Middle Engine 
lane. Will there be enough trade for all 3? Given that most people now get petrol 
at Supermarkets I doubt it. There are local established food places in the 
shopping precinct next to Tesco, a Subway in the Village Hotel and then a drive 
through Costa next to Aldi. The market will be over saturated in the vicinity. There 
is no need for this to be built. More of the same is pointless and over 
development 
-Given the size of Shiremoor and surrounding villages and that it is not a major 
through route I don't think the proposed development is required and will have a 
negative impact on the surrounding environment without bringing any tangible 
benefits to the area 
-The area is already congested with traffic and inadequate parking and more 
shopping facilities would add again to this substantial problem. 
-It is one of the last remaining open field sites leading onto a wildlife corridor. It 
will impact negatively on wildlife in the area. This is just overdoing development 
for development sake.  
-Already a very high level of traffic. The proposed addition will be just off one of 
the busiest most congested roundabouts leading into Cobalt Business Park. 
During rush hour it is often at a total stand still. To then as additional congestion 
and cars to this part without any changes to road layout is ludicrous.  
-There will be increased noise levels from people using this after standard 
working hours, meaning extra noise at night. Shiremoor used to be quiet and 
peaceful. Now all I hear is road and traffic noise. 
-The proposed area is just above the wagonways and right next to the Silverlink 
biodiversity park, meaning a disruption to the wildlife who use this area, and 
probable death of wildlife. 
-With the government banning Petrol and Diesel car sales within next 15 years, 
should more petrol stations be developed when the demand is reducing? The 
rental car site across the road was a petrol station which was not sustainable and 
closed. There is also a Shell garage within 1 mile. 
-Improvements to pedestrian footpath on A191 New York Road should also be 
considered.  
-This field should not be developed. It is crucial for local wildlife e.g. frogs and 
newts and would significantly disrupt local wildlife in the adjoining Biodiversity 
Park. One of the only joys of this (increasingly concrete) local community.  
 
2.2 Objection from Wallsend Harriers and Athletic Club  
-Impact on highway safety.  

Page 103



 

-Traffic generation.  
-Road access.  
 
Please note that we do not object to development of this particular site. However, 
there is a separate question of need with Costa operating a similar facility one 
mile away.  Our objection is more with the current proposal and the high 
dependency of vehicular traffic crossing the existing site boundaries at all times 
of day. 
 
This development, in its current standing, will limit the advancement of amateur 
athletics in the local community and the activities and growth of the local athletics 
club.  
  
Athletics Training: Operating as an amateur athletics club, the club does not have 
a permanent base to which to conduct training.  In addition, as we are all well 
aware, the Covid pandemic and lockdown restrictions have limited all aspects of 
everyone’s lives this year.  In line with our governing body, England Athletics, our 
guidelines and health and safety risk assessments the club has utilised the West 
Allotment Country Park and Cobalt Business Park as an informal training location 
for both senior and junior amateur athletes during 2020.  The site provides a well-
maintained, traffic free venue for which club activities can be held keeping a safe 
distance from the general public. 
Before the Covid pandemic, the site boundary had also been used as a location 
for our internal 5km club competition, which was held monthly for junior and 
senior athletes, as well as twice weekly training sessions. 
 
By approving this development as it stands on this site, the club will no longer 
consider it safe to operate its current training in this location due to the amount of 
vehicular traffic that will intersect the new junction. 
 
Races: (Prior to Covid restrictions) 
The Terry O’Gara Memorial 5k Road Race is an annual race, usually held on a 
Sunday morning in March/April, held in memory of our former chairman who 
passed away in 2012.  The race is open to all runner and there is also a junior 
‘fun run’.  The race is advertised as a flat, fast, largely traffic-free course at Cobalt 
Business Park, starting from the West Allotment Country Park adjacent to this 
site.  This new development will intersect the pavement that part of the race route 
follows.  
  
In addition to this, the club hosts the Gordon Smith Relays.  This is an evening 
event held in May each year.  This is a popular relay event within the North East 
running community, following a largely traffic-free course.  Again, the relay route 
follows pavement that this new development will intersect. 
 
Both races are held under licence from England Athletics and permission from 
North Tyneside Council and Northumbria Police.  We provide risk assessments 
as well as a high number of race marshals in place for the health and safety of all 
participants. 
It is noted that each race crosses a number of B roads around the Algernon 
industrial estate and Merlin Way/Silver Fox Way.  However, the times of each 
event are held when the industrial sites are not in operation.  Therefore, there is 

Page 104



 

less intersecting traffic and a lower foreseen health and safety risk.  Each 
crossing is also monitored by race marshals. 
 
This proposed hours of operation of this development will clash with the 
operation of the club events.  As vehicles will consistently require access to the 
development, this makes the future hosting of these races in this location 
untenable. 
 
Furthermore, the events mentioned above use the Cobalt Exchange as the race 
headquarters and the races are sponsored and supported by local business. 
Building this development as it currently stands and forcing the athletics club to 
find an alternative venue, will have a detrimental impact on local businesses. 
 
Finance: The races mentioned above are the main source of income for the 
athletics club.  In our most recent accounts (to 31 January 2020) the club had an 
income of £13.5k, of which £6.29k (46%) came from hosting both races.  By 
pressing ahead with this development as it stands and forcing the cancellation of 
these events until another venue is identified, the development is denying the 
club, now with charitable status, of nearly half of its income and limiting our ability 
to meet our Charitable Objects as listed with the Charity Commission. 
 
Sport England: The Government advises local planning authorities to consult with 
Sport England in cases where development might lead to loss of, or loss of use 
for sport, of any major sports facility.  Wallsend Harriers are directly affiliated to 
the national governing organisation for the sport in England, England Athletics, 
who have a shared interest in providing athletics opportunities for all. It is our 
intention to share our objection and reasons listed above with Sport England and 
other local stakeholders. 
In summary, the club, its charity trustees and management committee believe 
that this development as it currently stands will have a negative impact on local 
amateur athletics in North Tyneside and our ability to meet out charitable 
objectives.  
 
2.3 Living Streets North Tyneside  
On behalf of Living Streets North Tyneside, I would like to object to this planning 
application on the ground of non-compliance with approved policy and 
inappropriate design.  
- Inappropriate design  
- Non-compliance with approved policy  
 
Policy DM7.4 (New Development and Transport) states that the Council and its 
partners will ensure that the transport requirements for new development, 
commensurate to the scale and type of development, are taken into account and 
seek to promote sustainable travel to minimise environmental impacts and 
support resident’s health and well-being. 
 
The route for pedestrians and cyclists along the eastern side of The Silverlink 
North is incorrectly identified in the transport assessment as a shared use, 
whereas in fact it is constructed as a separate cycleway and footway. 
 

Page 105



 

The proposed site access arrangement has not been designed in accordance 
with current guidance for walking and cycling facilities LTN 1/20, instead the 
transport assessment states that it has been designed in accordance with Design 
Manual for Roads and Bridges (DMRB) standards which are those prescribed for 
trunk roads rather than urban streets. 
 
Uncontrolled crossings for pedestrians and cyclists across each arm of The 
Silverlink North/Proposed Site Access Roundabout do not meet the requirements 
of LTN 1/20 which stipulates cycle priority or parallel crossings for a location of 
this type. The overall design of the proposed roundabout does not support 
installation of these crossings. 
 
The design of walking and cycling routes within the site is based 2.0m wide 
footways along both sides of the site access road, which again do not meet the 
standards of LTN 1/20. 
 
Upgrading walking and cycling infrastructure along the A191 northern boundary 
of the site to comply with LTN 1/20 and meet the requirements for improved 
transport links along this corridor identified in the local plan would require land 
from the site. This has not happened, and the land is instead identified as 
landscaping. 
 
Aspects of the layout are to be lauded with the connections to the waggonways  
network in particular being well thought out. However with new government 
guidance coming into force from 27th July 2020 there is ample time for the 
design including access from Silverlink North to have been adapted and made 
compliant, this has not happened. 
 
Policy DM3.6 (Local Facilities) states that "Small-scale out of centre facilities 
serving local retail and leisure needs of less than 500m2 gross floorspace, or 
extensions to existing facilities, will be permitted if it can be shown that all of the 
following requirements are met: 
a. The proposal is of an appropriate size and function to meet specific day-to-day 
needs of a neighbourhood population within convenient, safe walking distance 
(300m); 
b. It will not have an adverse effect on the amenity of neighbouring uses;  
c. Contribute to social inclusion and sustainable development; 
d. Safeguard the retail character and function of existing centres and not detract 
from their vitality and viability. 
Proposals to meet the day to day needs of employees on employment sites 
would be subject to this policy." 
 
The proposed retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee shop (Use Class E) 
are not within 300 metres of any of the office accommodation on Cobalt Business 
Park. There is undeveloped land allocated for employment adjacent to the 
existing Cobalt local facilities development which does meet these criteria. There 
is very little residential housing within 300 metres, all to the north of the A191.  
 
These retail and restaurant uses with little or no catchment within walking 
distance will instead rely on drawing trade which would otherwise sit within the 

Page 106



 

boroughs town centres in contravention of policy DM3.5 Primary Shopping Areas. 
 
The development of these restaurant and retail uses with no walkable catchment 
does not comply with policy S1.1 Spatial Strategy for Sustainable Development 
which states that "To ensure North Tyneside's requirements for homes and jobs 
can be met with adequate provision of infrastructure, and in a manner that 
enables improvements to quality of life, reduces the need to travel and responds 
to the challenges of climate change, the Spatial Strategy for the location and 
scale of development is that: 
a. Employment development will be located: 
i. within the main urban area; and, 
ii. at areas easily accessible to residents by a range of sustainable means of 
transport" 
 
Climate Emergency Declaration (July 2019) and Climate Emergency Action plan 
(September 2020) - Decarbonising transport is one of the key objectives of North 
Tyneside Council, which declared Climate Emergency in July 2019. The Action 
plan issued in September 2020 states: "Transport has a central role to play in 
North Tyneside reaching carbon neutral by 2050. The sector is the second 
largest contributor to the Borough's footprint, accounting for around a third (32%) 
of the total emissions." 
The proposed development includes a petrol filling station and drive-thru outlets, 
which is inconsistent with the Council's commitment to reduce transport-related 
emissions and invest in EV charging infrastructure, hydrogen-fuelled public 
transport and active travel. Clearly the path set in the action plan does not 
support petrol filling amenities. There are two other existing petrol stations within 
5-min drive of the proposed development. 
 
2.4 Objection on behalf of North Tyneside public transport users’ group. The 
objections are the same as those submitted on behalf of Living Streets North 
Tyneside.  
 
3.0 External Consultees 
3.1 Northumbrian Water  
3.2 In making our response to the local planning authority Northumbrian Water 
will assess the impact of the proposed development on our assets and assess 
the capacity within Northumbrian Water’s network to accommodate and treat the 
anticipated flows arising from the development.  We do not offer comment on 
aspects of planning applications that are outside of our area of control. 
  
3.3 It should also be noted that, following the transfer of private drains and 
sewers in 2011, there may be assets that are the responsibility of Northumbrian 
Water that are not yet included on our records. Care should therefore be taken 
prior and during any construction work with consideration to the presence of 
sewers on site. Should you require further information, please visit 
https://www.nwl.co.uk/services/developers/ 
  
3.4 We can advise that the sewers the applicant proposes to connect to for both 
surface water and foul are in private ownership and do not form part of our public 
sewerage network at the points of connection.  We therefore recommend that the 
applicant obtains formal approval from the owner before making a connection, 

Page 107

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Gt7dCONpfAm5E1tEi-6L?domain=nwl.co.uk/


 

and also applies to NWL for an indirect connection through the S106 process at 
the time of construction. 
  
3.5 For information only 
3.6 We can inform you that strategic water mains lie within the site boundary and 
may be affected by the proposed development. Northumbrian Water does not 
permit a building over or close to our apparatus. We will work with the developer 
to establish the exact location of our assets and ensure any necessary diversion, 
relocation or protection measures required prior to the commencement of the 
development.  We include this informative so that awareness is given to the 
presence of assets on site. For further information is available at 
https://www.nwl.co.uk/services/developers/ 
 
3.7 Northumbria Police  
3.8 We have no objections from a crime prevention point of view. 
 
3.9 Tyne and Wear Archaeology Officer 
3.10 The applicant has provided an archaeological desk-based assessment for 
the site. The report concluded that there was limited evidence for below ground 
archaeology of the prehistoric period, and no evidence for the Roman and Early 
Medieval periods. During the medieval period the site is likely to have been used 
for agricultural purposes. Evidence for post-medieval structures including the 
Allotment Mill, the Blyth and Tyne Railway and the Backworth Wagonway may 
survive on the margins of the site. 
  
3.11 The archaeological desk-based assessment demonstrates that the site has 
some archaeological potential. Geophysical survey, potentially followed by 
archaeological trial trenching, should be carried out in order to establish the 
presence or otherwise of archaeological remains (NPPF para 189). If 
archaeological remains are present then further work may be required to 
determine their significance. The archaeological work should be carried out prior 
to the determination of the application in order to understand the nature and 
significance of any archaeological remains present. 
  
3.12 I can provide more information on the scope of the works when required. 
 
3.13 No previous fieldwork on the site, it would have been on HER and included 
in the desk-based assessment. We would normally expect allocated sites to go 
through the same process of archaeological evaluation as other sites, and I 
would always advise that this takes place prior to determination unless there are 
practical reasons why it cannot happen, e.g. there is a building on the site which 
requires demolition before the archaeological work can take place. 
  
3.14 It can be done but the following conditions will need to be applied to cover 
the evaluation work and any further archaeological work and publication, 
depending on what is found: 
  
Archaeological Excavation and Recording Condition 
No groundworks or development shall commence until a programme of 
archaeological fieldwork (to include evaluation and where appropriate mitigation 

Page 108

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/Gt7dCONpfAm5E1tEi-6L?domain=nwl.co.uk/


 

excavation) has been completed. This shall be carried out in accordance with a 
specification provided by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: The site is located within an area identified as being of potential 
archaeological interest. The investigation is required to ensure that any 
archaeological remains on the site can be preserved wherever possible and 
recorded, in accordance with paragraph 199 of the NPPF, Local Plan S6.5 and 
policies DM6.6 and DM6.7. 
  
Archaeological Post Excavation Report Condition 
The building(s) shall not be occupied/brought into use until the final report of the 
results of the archaeological fieldwork undertaken in pursuance of condition (     ) 
has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason: The site is located within an area identified as being of potential 
archaeological interest. The investigation is required to ensure that any 
archaeological remains on the site can be preserved wherever possible and 
recorded, in accordance with paragraph 199 of the NPPF, Local Plan S6.5 and 
policies DM6.6 and DM6.7. 
  
Archaeological Publication Report Condition 
The buildings shall not be occupied/brought into use until a report detailing the 
results of the archaeological fieldwork undertaken has been produced in a form 
suitable for publication in a suitable and agreed journal and has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to submission to 
the editor of the journal. 
Reason: The site is located within an area identified in the Unitary Development 
Plan a being of potential archaeological interest and the publication of the results 
will enhance understanding of and will allow public access to the work 
undertaken in accordance with paragraph 199 of the NPPF, Local Plan S6.5 and 
policies DM6.6 and DM6.7. 
  
3.15 Environment Agency  
3.16 We had previous objected to this application. Thank you for supplying the 
additional information which we have reviewed in detail.  
 
3.17 The details regarding the tank design, pipework, delivery arrangements, 
leak detection systems and two oil-water separators to be utilised to manage 
organic pollutants in surface water runoff are adequate to overcome the objection 
previously imposed with regards to unacceptable risks to groundwater.  
 
3.18 The revised proposal gives the EA confidence that these risks can be 
satisfactorily managed.  
 
3.19 Decommission of investigative boreholes 
3.20 Two documents submitted in support of this planning application indicate 
that a number of investigative boreholes, windowless samples and trial pits were 
installed to determine ground conditions and groundwater levels. These are as 
follows; 
-‘Ground Investigation Geotechnical Interpretative Report’, dated 24 May 2007, 
prepared by Cundall;  
 -Six boreholes; five to a depth of 10 metres (m), 1 to a depth of 26.5m;  
 -Eleven windowless samples to 6m depth;  

Page 109



 

 -Four trial pits.  
-‘Environmental Site Assessment’, dated January 2019;  
 -Six trial pits (TP01 – TP06), to a maximum depth of 3.1m.  
 
3.21 If these boreholes and trial pits, along with any other boreholes/pits not 
detailed above, are not managed correctly they can provide preferential 
pathways for contaminant movement which poses a risk to groundwater quality. 
Groundwater is particularly sensitive in this location because the proposed 
development site is a Secondary A aquifer.  
 
3.22 In light of the above, we consider that planning permission should only be 
granted for the proposed development, as submitted, if the following condition is 
imposed. Without this condition we cannot be sure that the proposed 
development will not cause unacceptable risk to the environment and we would 
wish to object to this application.  
 
3.23 Condition: Boreholes 
A scheme for managing any borehole installed for the installed for the 
investigation of soils, groundwater or geotechnical purposes shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (LPA). The scheme shall 
provide details of how redundant boreholes/pits are to be decommissioned and 
how any boreholes that need to be retained, post-development, for monitoring 
purposes will be secured protected and inspected. The scheme as approved 
shall be implemented prior to the occupation of each phase of development. The 
EA can provide our ‘Good practice for decommissioning redundant boreholes 
and wells’ upon request.  
 
3.24 In addition to the condition mentioned above, we also have the following 
informatives.  
 
3.25 Informatives 
-Sub water fuel storage (Position Statement D3) 
With each storage tank having a diameter of 3.02m and groundwater levels 
known to be between 0.6-3.6m below ground level, it is inevitable that the tanks 
and most of the related sub-surface infrastructure will be below the water table in 
the superficial geology (estimated to be at least 8m in thickness) underlying the 
site. Therefore, mitigation measures should be strenuous and pollution 
prevention measures should remain robust during installation and operational 
phases of the development. The integrity of the concrete infrastructure in which 
the tanks will be places must be sufficient to prevent any leaking petrol or diesel 
from escaping into surrounding groundwater and any leaks must be dealt with 
swiftly to prevent pollution of the environment. Ponds with potential hydraulic 
connectivity with shall groundwater are located ~ 165 metres south-west, ~ 100m 
east and ~ 200m south-east of the proposed location for fuel storage. Pollution 
prevention measures must be robust to ensure that hydrocarbons cannot migrate 
laterally to these sensitive habitats.  
 
-Surface water drainage  
Formal consent should exist for discharge of surface water to the proposed 
Highways drain should be in place. The two Class 1 oil-water separators 
(‘forecourt separator’ to serve the petrol filling station and ‘bypass separator’ to 

Page 110



 

serve the ‘drive thru’ coffee shop) should be of sufficient capacity for the volumes 
of surface water to be treated. They must be serviced, maintained and cleaned 
as per manufacturer’s instructions to ensure they do not pose a risk of pollution to 
groundwater and surface waters.  
 
-Adherence to good practice guidance  
Good practice should be followed in the location, design, construction and 
maintenance of petrol stations and other fuel dispensing facilities. Due regard 
should be given to ‘The Environment Agency’s approach to groundwater 
protection’ document, in particular the position statements and guidance in the 
section on the storage of pollutants (chapter D). You should also refer to the 
following pollution prevention and mitigation guidance including: 
-Guidance on Environmental Management at Petrol Filling Stations – Energy 
Institute  
-Design, construction, modification, maintenance and decommissioning of filling 
stations (also known as the Blue Book (APEA/EI) – Energy Institute – 4th Edition, 
2018 – It is acknowledged that the Blue Book will be adhered to in this 
development.  
-Groundwater Protection Code – Petrol stations and other fuel dispensing 
facilities involving underground storage tanks – Defra Code of Practice 
-CIRIA C736: Design of Containment Systems for the Prevention of Water 
Pollution 
The Blue Book provides detailed information on the decommissioning (and 
investigation) of redundant tanks, risk assessment, the design and construction 
criteria and maintenance procedures which we expect to be implemented 
-Adhere to Land Contamination: Risk Management (LCRM) guidance  
While some site investigation work has been undertaken, we recommend that 
developers should do the following; 
 -Follow the risk management framework provided in Land Contamination: 
Risk Management, when dealing with land affected by contamination;  
 -Refer to our Guiding principles for land contamination for the type of 
information that we require in order to assess risks to controlled waters from the 
site – the local authority can advise on risk to other receptors such as human 
health;  
 -Consider using the National Quality Mark Scheme for Land 
Contamination Management which involves the use of competent persons to 
ensure that land contamination risks are appropriately managed.  
 
Please note that our comments are only in relation to environmental issues. 
Other may need to be consulted with respect to Health and Safety or amenity 
issues.  
 
Further guidance can be found on water management pages of gov.uk  
 
3.26 The Coal Authority  
3.27 The Coal Authority Response: Material Consideration 
3.28 As you are aware, the application site falls within the defined Development 
High Risk Area. The Coal Authority’s information indicates that the Ryhope Little 
Coal seam is conjectured to outcrop at or close to the surface across the site. 
This seam may have been worked in the past. 
 

Page 111



 

3.29 You will recall that the Coal Authority objected to the proposal in our initial 
consultation response of 20 November 2020 due to the lack of a Coal Mining 
Risk Assessment Report, or an equivalent report, to identify and assess the risks 
posed to the proposed development by coal mining legacy. 
 
3.30 We are therefore pleased to note that the applicant has now submitted a 
Coal Mining Risk Assessment report (January 2021, prepared by Arcadis) in 
support of their planning application, which draws upon a range of relevant 
sources of coal mining and geological information, including the results of 
previous phases of intrusive investigations carried out at the site. 
 
3.31 The report acknowledges that the Ryhope Little Coal seam outcrops across 
the site and is expected to be present at shallow depth, however, it considers that 
this seam is thin and is unlikely to have been worked. The report acknowledges 
that the Moorland Coal seam underlies the Ryhope Little Coal and is likely to be 
present at shallow depth. Whilst of a potentially workable thickness, it considers 
that the collapse of any unrecorded workings in the seam are unlikely to lead to 
surface instability due to the depth and thickness of the seam. 
 
3.32 The report concludes that the site is unlikely to be affected by stability 
issues associated with shallow mine workings. No further investigatory, remedial 
or mitigatory measures are proposed in this regard. 
 
3.33 The report considers that the presence of unrecorded mine entries within 
the site cannot be ruled out. We therefore welcome the precautionary measures 
set out in within Section 8.2.2 of the report (site inspection following top soil strip), 
which are recommended in order to mitigate the risk posed by any unrecorded 
mine entries which may be present. Should any previously unrecorded mine 
entry be encountered during development, appropriate treatment will be required, 
in accordance with details agreed under a Coal Authority Permit. 
 
3.34 The report highlights that gas monitoring carried out previously by others 
recommended the incorporation of gas protection measures within development 
at the site. The Coal Authority recommends that the LPA seek comments from 
the Council’s Environmental Health / Public Protection Team on this matter. 
 
3.35 The Coal Authority considers that the content and professional opinion 
expressed in the Coal Mining Risk Assessment report are sufficient for the 
purposes of the planning system and meet the requirements of the NPPF in 
demonstrating that the application site is, or can be made, safe and stable for the 
proposed development. The Coal Authority therefore withdraws its objection to 
the proposed development. However, further more detailed considerations of 
ground conditions, foundation design and gas protection measures may be 
required as part of any subsequent building regulations.  
   
 
 
 
 

Page 112



ADDEND Committee Addendum Report 1 

Printed:4/13/2021 

 

ADDENDUM 1 – 08.04.2021 
Item No: 7 
 
Application 
No: 

20/01741/FUL Author
: 

Maxine Ingram 

Date valid: 23 October 2020 : 0191 643 6322 
Target decision 
date: 

22 January 2021 Ward: Valley 

 
Application type: full planning application 
 
Location: Plot 11 The Silverlink North Cobalt Business Park West 
Allotment NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE  
 
Proposal: Erection of petrol filling station (Sui Generis) with associated 
retail kiosk (Use Class E) and drive-thru coffee shop (Use Class E) with 
associated car parking, service arrangements, landscaping and access 
including the provision of a new roundabout (Additional information 
submitted 17.12.2020) 
 
Applicant: BP Oil UK Ltd & Highbridge Business Park Ltd, C/o Agent      
 
Agent: Lichfields, Mr Robert Dibden The St Nicholas Building  St Nicholas 
Street  Newcastle Upon Tyne  NE1 1RF 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Minded to grant  legal agreement req. 
 
One objection has been received:  
- Adverse effect on wildlife  
- Impact on landscape  
- Inappropriate design  
- Loss of visual amenity  
- Out of keeping with surroundings  
- Poor traffic/pedestrian safety  
- Poor/unsuitable vehicular access  
- Traffic congestion  
- Will result in visual intrusion 
-I objection this as we are moving into the world of EV's and moving away 
from ICE this is not a future proof plan, with a costa drive-through only a 
moment away to the west and a fuel station also located a moment away to 
the east it seems an unnecessary build destroying vital green space.  
 
The applicant has suggested that condition 48 is amended as it was not clear 
that only part of the adjacent Local Wildlife Site would be subject to control 
under this condition: 
Current wording:  

Page 113



ADDEND Committee Addendum Report 2 

Printed:4/13/2021 

 

Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby approved 
a Litter Management Strategy for the construction and operation of the 
development that extends into the Silverlink Biodiversity Park Local Wildlife 
Site (LWS) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development hereby approved shall be 
carried out in full accordance with these agreed details and permanently 
retained post construction.  
Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that local 
wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
Proposed wording: 
Prior to the commencement of any part of the development hereby approved 
a Litter Management Strategy, including a plan to show the area of coverage 
of the Silverlink Biodiversity Park Local Wildlife Site (LWS) within and adjacent 
to the application site redline, for the construction and operation of the 
development shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. Thereafter, the development hereby approved shall be 
carried out in full accordance with these agreed details and permanently 
retained post construction.  
Reason: This information is required pre-commencement to ensure that local 
wildlife populations are protected in the interests of ecology having regard to 
the NPPF and Policy DM5.5 of the North Tyneside Local Plan (2017). 
 
 

Page 114


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	5 Planning Officer Reports
	6 21/00029/FUL, Unicorn House, Stephenson Street, North Shields
	7 20/01741/FUL, Plot 11, The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park
	20/01741/FUL - Plot 11 The Silverlink North Cobalt Business Park - Addendum


